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cempany profile

additional information

First Midwest is the premier
relationship-based banking franchise in
the growing Chicagoland banking
market. As one of the Chicago
metropolitan area's largest independent
bank holding companies, First Midwest
provides the full range of both business
and retail banking and trust and
investment management services. First
Midwest operates 67 offices located in
49 communities, primarily in
northeastern Illinois, a network of 100
ATMs, and its on-line full service
electronic banking center
www.firstmidwest.com. First Midwest
is the 2004 recipient of the Itlinois
Bank Community Service Award and
was honored by Chicago Magazine in
its September 2004 issue as one of the
25 best places to work in Chicagoland,
the only bank to receive that distinction.,
First Midwest Bank, First Midwest
Bancorp's sole banking subsidiary, has
approximately $7 billion in assets, and
its Trust Investment Management
Division has $2.4 billion in assets under
management. Collectively, First
Midwest has more than 600,000
relationships serving nearly a quarter of
a million households and approximately
21,000 businesses. First Midwest is
rooted deeply in the local communities
it serves and its sales team is intensely
focused on providing value enhancing
and needs satisfying financial services

to its expanding client base.

Visit the Investor Relations section of
our website, www.firstmidwest.com,
for stock and dividend information,
quarterly eamnings and news releases,
on-line annual report, links to SEC
filings, and other Company

information.
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

( ($ in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003

j[ Net Income Per Common Share $ 99,136 $ 92,778
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.12 5 1.97
Dividends declared 0.90 0.79
Book value at year end 11.55 11.22
Market price at year end 36.29 32.43

Performance Ratios

Return on average equity 18.68% 18.28%
Return on average assets 1.45% 1.50%
Net interest margin 3.91% 3.99%
Efficiency ratio 50.11% 48.32%
December 31, 2004 2003

Balance Sheet Highlights

Total assets $ 6,863,381 $ 6,906,658
Loans 4,135,278 4,059,782
Deposits 4,905,378 4,815,108
Stockholders' equity . 532,038 522,540

Stock Performance and Dividend Information

2004 2003

Dividends Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Close Declared High Low Close Declared
March 31 $34.29 $31.13 $34.22 $0.22 $28.12 $24.89 $25.81 $0.19
June 30 36.03 32.33 3521 0.22 29.87 25.55 28.81 0.19
September 30 35.62 32.25 .34.56 0.22 31.45 28.53 29.71 0.19
December 31 38.30 33.70 36.29 0.24 32.80 29.61 3243 0.22
$0.90 $0.79




Dear Stockholders,

First Midwest Bancorp had another highly successful year in 2004, as we enjoyed
record profitability and a strong all around operating performance that further
established us as the premier relationship-based banking franchise in the thriving
Chicagoland marketplace. We have grown to almost $7 billion in assets, and we
offer the full range of financial products and services to satisfy the financial needs
of all of our retail, commercial, and trust clients.

By satisfying an increasing amount of our existing clients' needs and attracting new
clients with our unique relationship-based approach, we again achieved record
results in 2004, despite increasingly intense competitive pressures and a historically
unique and challenging interest rate environment.

2004 . . . 13th Year of Record Operating Resuits

First Midwest had another year of record performance in 2004. The Company's net
income for 2004 increased 7.6% on a per diluted share basis to a record $99.1
million, or $2.12 per diluted share, from net income of $92.8 million, or $1.97 per
diluted share in 2003. In 2004, First Midwest's return on average assets remained
strong at 1.45% and its return on average equity was a solid 18.7%, both of which
surpass peer averages. The Company's overall profitability continues to benefit
from strong earnings, solid credit quality, cost control, and efficient use of capital.

The Company's total loans of $4.1 billion at December 31, 2004 were 1.9% higher
than at December 31, 2003. The Company's loan growth in 2004 was influenced by
the Company's conversion of $74.2 million of certain 1-4 family residential
mortgages into an investment security and the Company's exit from its marginally
profitable indirect consumer lending business. Excluding both 1-4 family
residential loans and indirect consumer loans, First Midwest's total loans increased
6.0% as commercial, agricultural, commercial real estate, and home equity
consumer loan categories all grew. Commercial loan growth trends remain
favorable, and commercial loans outstanding as of December 31, 2004 increased by
8.9% compared to December 31, 2003. Consumer home equity loans increased
10.9% from December 31, 2003, reflecting continued sales success.

Total deposits at December 31, 2004 were $4.9 billion, an increase of 1.9% from
December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004, demand deposits were $922.5
million, an increase of 7.4% from December 31, 2003, and time deposit balances
outstanding were $1.8 billion, an increase of 3.5% over the same period, largely
due to targeted sales efforts and consumer preferences.

First Midwest's total noninterest income totaled $79.4 million, an increase of 7.0%
over 2003, driven by a 10.0% increase in trust revenues and an 11.0% increase in
card-based fees. Total noninterest expense was $163.3 million, an increase of 9.3%
over 2003. At the same time, increased revenue and continued cost controls
resulted in a solid efficiency ratio of 50.11% for 2004, and 49.91% if the one-time
expenses associated with the integration of CoVest acquisition are excluded.

First Midwest improved its already strong credit quality in 2004. Nonperforming
assets totaled $22.9 million as of December 31, 2004, down 20.6% from $28.9
million as of December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004, the ratio of
nonperforming assets to total loans plus foreclosed real estate was 0.55%,
improving 22.5% from 0.71% as of December 31, 2003.




Consistently Superior Financial Performance and
Stockholder Returns for 13 Years

First Midwest's superior financial performance in 2004 is nothing new. Indeed, this
performance is all the more impressive when viewed over the last 13 years.

Consistent Loan Growth with Lower Risk

To begin with, First Midwest's total loans have increased 54.1 % since 1994
(Figure 1). This loan growth has been achieved as a result of First Midwest's
longstanding presence in the markets it serves and the knowledge it has gained by
satisfying the financial needs of the clients in these markets. The number of
relationship bankers employed and the calling and sales activity they generate to
prospective clients far exceeds the productivity of competing banks. These efforts
embody true relationship-based service, focused on satisfying the financial needs
of our commercial, retail, and trust clients.

Simultaneously, I am proud to point out that First Midwest's loan quality has
greatly improved by all measures. Illustrating this, First Midwest's nonperforming
asset ratio has improved from 1.29% in 1994 to 0.55% in 2004 (Figure 2).
Extensive knowledge of our clients and their challenges and markets as well as
rigorous credit administration discipline have resulted in credit quality that
outstrips peer results.

Efficiently Producing Superior Returns

Over the last thirteen years, First Midwest's earnings per share have grown steadily,
from $0.61 in 1992 to $2.12 in 2004, a compound annual growth rate of 10.1%
(Figure 3). We believe that this growth is the result of six factors: (1) dedication to
our corporate mission; (2) our unique relationship management approach; (3) our
focused management process; (4) our control driven culture; (5) a strong treasury
management; and (6) the quality and depth of the markets we serve.

During this time period, First Midwest has rigorously applied cost controls. First
Midwest's efficiency ratio has declined from 63.04% in 1994 to 50.11% in 2004, an
improvement of 20.5%. This results in a 20% cost advantage over peer banks
(Figure 4).

Earnings and Dividends: Growing Side by Side

This efficient growth with superior controls has enabled First Midwest to return
cash to its stockholders in the form of increasing dividends. Since we became a
public company in 1983, we have paid dividends in 89 consecutive quarters, with
13 dividend increases in 12 years. And First Midwest's market capitalization since
1992 has grown 588% from $243 million to almost $1.7 billion (Figure 5).

Premium Performance . .. Withouit the Premium

Over the years, First Midwest's financial performance has surpassed that of its
peers. In 2004, First Midwest's return on average assets was 1.45% and its return
on average equity was 18.7%, exceeding peer bank performance in these metrics
by more than 40%.

Despite the consistency of its long-term financial performance, however, First
Midwest remained a relative bargain compared to its peers. As of December 31,
2004, First Midwest's price to earnings ratio was 17.1, compared to a ratio of 18.7
for its peers (Figure 6).
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2005 ... A Look Akead

First Midwest enters 2005 with a number of challenges that we must overcome to
continue to generate the performance our clients and stockholders have come to
expect from us. First, we continue to confront intensive competitive pressures in
the Chicagoland marketplace from both local and out-of-state financial institutions.
We believe that our understanding of these markets, obtained over decades of client
and community service, will enable us to continue to deliver high quality and
responsive service to our commercial, retail, and trust clients.

Second, we also continue to confront an interest rate environment that is-
historically unique. First Midwest's Treasury Department has been one of the
principal causes of our success over the last thirteen years. We believe that we have
talent and experience in that function to manage these risks to enhance First
Midwest's operating performance.

Third, we, like other banks and other publicly traded companies, continue to adapt
to a rapidly changing bank and securities regulatory environment, which requires
an increasing amount of our resources and attention. Most notably, in 2005 we are
hopeful that the Federal Reserve and the Illinois Office of Banks and Real Estate
will conclude that First Midwest is in compliance with the Federal and state laws
and regulations related to anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

First Midwest begins 2005 focused on the relationship-based sales approach that
has driven our long-term success. Our calling efforts in the geographic market
areas we serve, together with our comprehensive understanding of these areas,
should enable us to continue to achieve appreciable loan growth across all
categories, and our pipelines give every indication that we can expect this growth.

Improving the Quality of Life of Our Employees and Clients

In 2004, First Midwest received two prestigious honors. First, we received the 2004
1llinois Community Service Award from the Illinois Bankers Association. This
award is given to Illinois financial institutions that demonstrate the highest level of
commitment and service to their communities. First Midwest received this award
as a result of its work with many community organizations throughout the state,
particularly its commitment to providing special programs for Hispanics and
Seniors.

Second, First Midwest was named by Chicago Magazine as one of the 25 best
places to work in Chicagoland — the only bank to be included on that list. This
honor reflects First Midwest's commitment to all of its employees and our
understanding that our success depends on an appropriately rewarded and
motivated workforce.

Goodbyes .. . and a helio

This year, we said goodbye to two long-time Directors. Ralph Edwards served as a
Director of First Midwest since 1988. Ralph's highly personable style, his energy
and his meticulousness served First Midwest well over the last 17 years. We will
miss Ralph deeply.

First Midwest also said goodbye to Vern Brunner, who served on the First Midwest
Board since 1997. Vern's marketing experience and ability to quickly cut to the
heart of even the most complex issues was invaluable to all of us. We will also miss
Vern very much.



At the same time, we welcome Jack Rooney to our Board. Jack's banking,
financial, and marketing experience should be very useful to us as we confront the
challenges awaiting us in 2005 and beyond.

In conclusion, I am optimistic about First Midwest's prospects in 2005, and I have
confidence that the hard work, intelligence, and diligence of our directors and
employees will once again enable us to thrive in the coming years.

Yours very truly,

%&\(‘\QW

John O'Meara
President and
Chief Executive Officer
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StatementsiofiCondition)

To The Board of Directors
and Stockholders of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.

‘We have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountin,
Board (United States), the consolidated statements of @&ﬁon of First Midwest Baiihe
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the rclated consolidated statements of in

ungualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.
In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompan

statements is fairly stated in all material respects in rels
statements from which it has been derived.

St + Mur

Ernst & Young LLP
Chicago, Illinois
(% in thousands)
December 31, 2004 2003
Assets
Cash $ 119,880 $ 186,900
Investment securities and other short-term investments 2,248,595 2,312,505
Commercial loans 3,174,330 2,993,949
Consumer loans 960,948 1,065,833
Reserve for loan losses (56,718) (56,404)
Net loans 4,078,560 4,003,378
Premises, furniture and equipment 89,003 91,535
Investment in corporate owned life insurance 151,359 146,421
Other assets 175,984 165,919 |
Total Assets $6,863,381 $ 6,906,658
Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 922,540 $§ 859,080 |
Interest-bearing deposits 3,982,838 3,956,028
Borrowed funds 1,218,332 1,371,672
Subordinated debt-trust preferred securities 129,294 128,716
Other liabilities 78,339 68,622
Total liabilities 6,331,343 6,384,118 |
Stockholders' Equity 532,038 522,540
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $6,863,381 § 6,906,658




Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income .

($ in thousands, except per share data)
Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

o Interest Income

| i Loans $225,099 $200,013 $223,393
Investment securities 90,243 91,054 106,271
Total Interest Income 315342 291,067 329,664

Interest Expense

Deposits 57,432 56,272 81,616
Borrowed funds 20,980 23,962 29,294
Subordinated debt-trust preferred securities 8,066 1,079 -

Total Interest Expense _ 86,478 81,313 110,910
Net Interest Income 228,864 209,754 218,754
Provision for Loan Laosses 12,923 10,805 15,410

Net interest income after provision for
loan losses 215,941 198,949 203,344

Noninterest Income

Service charges and commissions 43,984 44,111 39,711
Trust and investment management fees 11,888 10,810 10,309
Card-based fees 9,252 8,336 7,895
Security gains, net 8,222 2,988 460
(Losses) on early extinguishment of debt (2,653) (6,025) -

Other 8,688 13,950 8,616
Total Noninterest Income 79,381 74,170 66,991

Noninterest Expense

Lo Salaries and employee benefits 92,171 84,284 80,626
: Occupancy and equipment 24,862 22,487 22,067
Other 46,305 42,681 45,359

. Total Noninterest Expense 163,338 149,452 148,052
B Income Before Income Tax Expense 131,984 123,667 122,283
Income tax expense 32,848 30,889 32,133

; Net Income § 99,136 § 92778 $ 90,150
Basic Earnings Per Share § 213 $§ 199 § 188

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 212 § 197 § 186

Dividends Declared Per Share $ 090 § 0.79 § 0.70
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Five Year Performance Summary

(§ in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Operating Results

Net interest income § 228,864 $ 209,754 $ 218,734 $ 204,380 § 189,611
Provision for loan losses 12,923 10,805 15,410 19,084 9,094
Noninterest income 79,381 74,170 66,991 68,866 63,198
Noninterest expense 163,338 149,452 148,052 145,356 144,416
Income tax expense 32,848 30,889 32,133 26,668 23,759
Net Income 99,136 92,778 90,150 82,138 75,540

Per Common Share

Diluted earnings per share § 2.12 $ 1.97 $ 1.86 $ 1.63 $ 1.46
Dividends declared 0.900 0.790 0.700 0.650 0.592
Book value at year end 11.55 11.22 10.42 9.18 8.75
Market price at year end 36.29 32.43 26.71 29.19 23.00

Performance Ratios

Return on average equity 18.68% 18.28% 18.82% 17.89% 19.17%
Return on average assets 1.45% 1.50% 1.53% 1.43% 1.30%
Net interest margin 3.91% 3.99% 4.28% 4.10% 3.76%
Efficiency ratio 50.11% 48.32% 48.20% 49.65% 53.09%
December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Balance Sheet Highlights

Total assets $ 6,863,381 $ 6,906,658 $ 5,980,533 $ 5,667,919 § 5,906,484
Loans 4,135,278 4,059,782 3,406,846 3,372,306 3,233,196
Deposits 4,905,378 4,815,108 4,172,954 4,193,921 4,252,205
Stockholders' equity 532,038 522,540 491,953 447,267 446,723
Average equity to average assets 7.74% 8.19% 8.12% 7.99% 6.79%
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Board of Birectors

Vernon A. Brunner
President and CEO
Brunner Marketing Solutions, LLC

(Consumer Products Marketing Consultant)

Bruce S. Chelberg .3

Former Chairman and CEO

Whitman Corporation

(Diversified, Multinational Holding Co.)

Joseph W. Engiand
Former Senior Vice President
Deere & Company

(Mobile Power Equipment Manufacturer)

Brother James Gaffney, FSC &
President
Lewis University

(Independent Private Institution of Higher

Education)

Thomas M. Garvin &9
Former Chairman and CEO
G.G. Products Company
(Food Business Acquirer)

Patrick J. McDonnell
President and CEO
McDonnell Company, LLC
(Business Consultants)

John M. O'Meara
President and CEO
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.

Robert P. O'Meara
Chairman of the Board
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.

John E. Rooney )

President and CEO

U.S. Cellular

(Cellular Communications Provider)

John L. Sterling @
President and Owner
Sterling Lumber Company
(Lumber Distributor)

J. Stephen Vanderwoude ¢-»
Chairman and CEO
Madison River Communications

(Operator of Rural Telephone Companies)

Executive
Management Group

First Midwest Bancorp, inc.

Robert P. O'Meara
Chairman of the Board

John M. O'Meara
President and CEO

Michael L. Scudder
Executive Vice President and CFO

Steven H. Shapiro
Executive Vice President and
Corporate Secretary

First Midwest Bank

John M. O'Meara
Chairman and CEO

Terry G. Beaudry

Group President, Trust Division

Kent S. Belasco
Executive Vice President
and Chief Information Officer

Mark M. Dietrich
Group Executive Vice President
and Chief Operations Officer

Michael J. Kozak
Executive Vice President
and Chief Commercial Credit Officer

Thomas J. Schwartz
Group President, Commercial Banking

Michael L. Scudder
Group Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Janet M. Viano
Group President, Retail Banking

Stephanie R. Wise
Executive Vice President, Business
and Institutional Services

Board Committees:

(1) Audit Committee

(2) Compensation Committee

(3) Nominating & Corporate
Governance Committee
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
X1 Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year-ended December 31, 2004
or
[] Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 // ™
For the transition period from to SN

Commission File Number 0-10967

FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 36-3161078 W
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification No.)

incorporation or organization)

300 Park Blvd., Saite 408, P.O. Box 459
Itasca, Illinois 60143-9768
(Address of principal executive offices) (zip code)
Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (630) 875-7450
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Title of each class:

Common Stock, $.01 Par Value
Preferred Share Purchase Rights

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X]
Nol[ |

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ 1.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes [X]
No[ ]

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s outstanding voting common stock held by non-affiliates on June 30,
2004, determined using a per share closing price on that date of $35.21, as quoted on The Nasdaq Stock Market,
was $1,521,111,189,

At March 3, 2005 there were 45,744,533 shares of common stock, $.01 par value, outstanding.
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PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.

First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”™) is a bank holding company incorporated in Delaware in 1982 for the purpose
of becoming a holding company registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “Act”). The
Company is one of Illinois’ largest publicly traded banking companies with assets of $6.9 billion at year-end 2004 and is
headquartered in the Chicago suburb of Itasca, Illinois.

The Company operates two wholly owned subsidiaries: First Midwest Bank (the “Bank”), employing 1,630 full-time
equivalent employees at December 31, 2004, and First Midwest Insurance Company, which is largely inactive.

The Company has responsibility for the overall conduct, direction, and performance of its subsidiaries. The Company
provides various services, establishes Company-wide policies and procedures, and provides other resources as needed,
including capital.

Subsidiaries

At December 31, 2004, the Bank had $6.8 billion in total assets, $5.0 billion in total deposits, and operated 67 banking
offices primarily in suburban metropolitan Chicago.

The Bank is engaged in commercial and retail banking and offers a broad range of lending, depository, and related financial
services, including accepting deposits; commercial and industrial, consumer, and real estate lending; collections; trust and
Investment management services; cash management services; safe deposit box operations; and other banking services tailored
for consumer, commercial and industrial, and public or governmental customers. The Bank also provides an electronic
banking center on the Internet at www.firstmidwest.com, which enables Bank customers to perform banking transactions and
provides information about Bank products and services to the general public.

The Bank is comprised of two divisions, a sales division and a support division. The sales division is structured along
commercial and retail product lines, and the support division provides corporate, administrative, and support services.

The Bank has one wholly-owned subsidiary, First Midwest Investment Corporation, which manages investment securities
and provides corporate management services to its wholly-owned subsidiary, First Midwest Investment Trust, which
manages real estate loans.

First Midwest Insurance Company operates as a reinsurer of credit life, accident, and health insurance sold through the Bank,
primarily in conjunction with its consumer lending operations, and is largely inactive.

Competition

Illinois and the metropolitan Chicago area are highly competitive markets for banking and related financial services.
Competition is based on a number of factors, including: interest rates charged on loans and paid on deposits; the ability to
attract new deposits; the scope and type of banking and financial services offered; the hours during which business can be
conducted; the location of bank branches and ATMs; the availability and range of banking services on the Internet; and a
variety of additional services such as investment management, fiduciary, and brokerage services. Within the geographic area
it serves, the Bank competes with other banking institutions and savings and loan associations, personal loan and finance
companies, and credit unions. In addition, the Bank competes for deposits with money market mutual funds and investment
brokers on the basis of interest rates offered and available products. Recently, the competition for banking customers
intensified as a number of local and out-of-state banking institutions announced plans for large-scale branch office expansion
in the suburban Chicago markets and certain local banks were acquired by larger local and national financial institutions.

In providing investment advisory services, the Bank also competes with retail and discount stockbrokers, investment
advisors, mutual funds, insurance companies, and, to a lesser extent, financial institutions for investment management clients.
Factors influencing this type of competition generally involve the variety of products and services that can be offered to
clients and the performance of funds under management. With the proliferation of investment management service
companies, such as mutual funds and discount brokerage services, competition for investment management services comes
from financial service providers both within and outside of the geographic areas in which the Bank maintains offices.




Offering a broad array of products and services at competitive prices is an important element in competing for customers.
The Company differentiates itself, however, by systematically assessing a customer's specific financial needs, selling
products and services identified in such assessment, and providing high quality services and products. The Company
believes this approach, as well as its knowledge and commitment to the communities in which the Bank is located, is the
most important aspect in retaining and expanding its customer base.

Supervision and Regulation

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to regulation and supervision by various governmental regulatory authorities
including the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), the Illinois Commissioner of
Banks and Real Estate Companies (the “Commissioner of Illinois”), and the Arizona Department of Insurance. Financial
institutions and their holding companies are extensively regulated under Federal and state law. The effect of such statutes,
regulations, and policies can be significant and cannot be predicted with a high degree of certainty.

Federal and state laws and regulations generally applicable to financial institutions, such as the Company and its subsidiaries,
regulate, among other things, the scope of business, investments, reserves against deposits, capital levels relative to
operations, the nature and amount of collateral for loans, the establishment of branches, mergers, consolidations, and
dividends. This supervision and regulation is intended primarily for the protection of the FDIC's bank (the “BIF”) and
savings association (the “SAIF”} insurance funds and the depositors, rather than the stockholders, of a financial institution.

The following references to material statutes and regulations affecting the Company and its subsidiaries are brief summaries
thereof and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations. Any change in applicable law or
regulations may have a material effect on the business or operations of the Company and its subsidiaries. The operations of
the Company and the Bank may also be affected by changes in the policies of various regulatory authorities. The Company
cannot accurately predict the nature or the extent of the effects that any such changes would have on its business and
earnings.

Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “Act”)

Generally, the Act governs the acquisition and control of banks and non-banking companies by bank holding companies. A
bank holding company is subject to regulation under the Act and is required to register with the Federal Reserve under the
Act. A bank holding company is required by the Act to file an annual report of its operations and such additional information
as the Federal Reserve may require and is subject, along with its subsidiaries, to examination by the Federal Reserve. The
Federal Reserve has jurisdiction to regulate the terms of certain debt issues of bank holding companies, including the
authority to impose reserve requirements.

The acquisition of 5% or more of the voting shares of any bank or bank holding company requires the prior approval of the
Federal Reserve and is subject to applicable Federal law, including the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching
Efficiency Act of 1994 (“Riegle Neal”), for interstate transactions, and possible state law limitations as well. The Federal
Reserve evaluates acquisition applications based upon, among other things, antitrust, safety and soundness, and community
service considerations.

The Act also prohibits, with certain exceptions, a bank holding company from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or
control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any “non banking” company unless the non-banking activities are found by
the Federal Reserve to be “so closely related to banking . . . as to be a proper incident thereto.” Under current regulations of
the Federal Reserve, a bank holding company and its nonbank subsidiaries are permitted, among other activities, to engage in
such banking-related business ventures as consumer finance, equipment leasing, data processing, mortgage banking, financial
and investment advice, and securities brokerage services. The Act does not place territorial restrictions on the activities of a
bank holding company or its nonbank subsidiaries.

Federal law prohibits acquisition of “control” of a bank or bank holding company without prior notice to certain Federal bank
regulators. “Control” is defined in certain cases as the acquisition of as little as 10% of the outstanding shares. Furthermore,
under certain circumstances, a bank holding company may not be able to purchase its own stock, where the gross
consideration will equal 10% or more of the company’s net worth, without obtaining approval of the Federal Reserve. Under
the Federal Reserve Act, banks and their subsidiaries (including bank holding companies) are subject to certain requirements
and restrictions when dealing with each other (subsidiary transactions). The Company is also subject to the provisions of the
Illinois Bank Holding Company Act.



Interstate Banking

Bank holding companies are permitted in any state to acquire banks and bank holding companies and be acquired subject to
the requirements of Riegle Neal, and in some cases, applicable state law.

Under Riegle Neal, adequately capitalized and managed bank holding companies may be permitted by the Federal Reserve to
acquire control of a bank in any state. States, however, may prohibit acquisitions of banks that have not been in existence for
at least five years. The Federal Reserve is prohibited from approving an application for acquisition if the applicant controls
more than 10% of the total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions nationwide. In addition, interstate
acquisitions may also be subject to statewide concentration limits.

The Federal Reserve would be prohibited from approving an application if, prior to consummation, the proposed acquirer
controls any insured depository institution or branch in the home state of the target bank, and the applicant, following
consummation of an acquisition, would control 30% or more of the total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions
in that state. This legislation also provides that the provisions on concentration limits do not affect the authority of any state
to limit or waive the percentage of the total amount of deposits in the state which would be held or controlled by any bank or
bank holding company to the extent the application of this limitation does not discriminate against out-of-state institutions.

Interstate branching under Riegle Neal permits banks to merge across state lines, thereby creating a bank headquartered in
one state with branches in other states. Approval of interstate bank mergers is subject to certain conditions, including:
adequate capitalization, adequate management, Community Reinvestment Act compliance, deposit concentration limits (as
set forth above), compliance with Federal and state antitrust laws, and compliance with applicable state consumer protection
laws. An interstate merger transaction may involve the acquisition of a branch without the acquisition of the bank only 1f the
law of the state in which the branch is located permits out-of-state banks to acquire a branch of a bank in that state without
acquiring the bank. Following the consummation of an interstate transaction, the resulting bank may establish additional
branches at any location where any bank involved in the transaction could have established a branch under applicable Federal
or state law, 1f such bank had not been a party to the merger transaction.

Riegle Neal became effective on June 1, 1997 and allowed each state, prior to the effective date, the opportunity to “opt out,”
thereby prohibiting interstate branching within that state. Of the two states in which the Bank is located (Illinois and Iowa),
neither has adopted legislation to “opt out” of the interstate merger provisions. Furthermore, pursuant to Riegle Neal, a bank
1s able to add new branches in a state in which it does not already have banking operations if such state enacts a law
permitting such de novo branching, or, if the state allows acquisition of branches, subject to applicable state requirements.

The effects on the Company of the changes in interstate banking and branching laws cannot be accurately predicted, but it is
likely that there will be increased competition from national and regional banking firms headquartered outside of Ilinois
which establish banks in [llinois.

Iilinois Banking Law

The Illinois Banking Act (“IBA”) governs the activities of the Company, an Illinois state banking corporation. The IBA
defines the powers and permissible activities of an Illinois state chartered bank, prescribes corporate governance standards,
imposes approval requirements on mergers of state banks, prescribes lending limits, and provides for the examination of state
banks by the Commissioner of Illinois. The Banking on Illinois Act (“'BIA”) became effective in mid-1999 and amended the
IBA to provide a potential wide range of new activities for Illinois state chartered banks, including the Bank. The provisions
of the BIA are to be construed liberally in order to create a favorable business climate for banks in Illinois. The main features
of the BIA are to expand bank powers through a new “wild card” provision authorizing Illinois chartered banks to offer
virtually any product or service that any bank or thrift may offer anywhere in the country, subject to certain safety and
soundness considerations and prior notification to the Commissioner of Illinois and the FDIC. Previously, in addition to
enumerated powers stated in the IBA, state banks could engage in any activity authorized or permitted to be conducted by a
national bank. Management of the Bank remains aware of the favorable environment created by the BIA and will consider
the opportunities that may become available to the Bank as a result of such legislation.

The Bank is subject to a variety of Federal and state laws and regulations governing its operations. For example, deposit
activities are subject, among other things, to the Federal Truth in Savings Act and the Illinois Consumer Deposit Account
Act. Federal and state laws also govern electronic banking transactions. Trust activities of the Bank are subject to the
Illinois Corporate Fiduciaries Act. Loans made by the Bank are subject to applicable provisions of the Illinois Interest Act,
the Federal Truth in Lending Act, and the Illinois Financial Services Development Act.




The Bank is subject to a variety of other laws and regulations concerning equal credit opportunity, fair lending, customer
privacy, fair credit reporting, and community reinvestment. The Bank currently holds an “outstanding” rating for community
reinvestment activity, the highest available.

The Commissioner of [llinois has adopted predatory lending regulations. These regulations apply to “high cost” mortgages
which are defined as mortgages which exceed a specified interest rate or are assessed points in excess of a specified
minimum. Once any of these thresholds is reached, the regulations impose certain restrictions on the lender, including:
obligating the lender to verify the borrower’s ability to repay the loan based on the borrower’s income and debt obligations;
prohibiting deceptive refinancing known as loan flipping where a lender refinances existing loans; charging additional points
and fees, without any financial benefit to the consumer; prohibiting the financing of a single premium credit insurance policy;
prohibiting the financing of points and fees in excess of 6% of the total loan amount; limiting the size and interval of balloon
payments; and limiting prepayment penalties that could be charged to consumers. These regulations also require the lender
to make certain disclosures to borrowers who are seeking high cost mortgages. The regulations apply to all state licensed
financial institutions making residential loans in Illinois. The regulations also require lenders to file with the Commissioner
of Illinois semi-annual reports on mortgage loans, including information relating to defaults and foreclosures.

The Illinois legislature has also considered the adoption of legislation aimed at curbing what some legislators and consumer-
oriented advocacy groups consider to be predatory lending practices by some mortgage brokers and other lenders active in
the State of Illinois. “Predatory” lending consists of fraudulent and deceptive sales practices that occur when borrowers are
pressured into taking out loans they do not need or cannot afford. Since neither the Company nor the Bank engages in such
practices, it is unlikely that any legislation adopted in Illinois to combat this perceived problem would have an impact on the
Company or the Bank, other than the creation of additional reporting requirements.

As an [llinois banking corporation controlled by a bank holding company, the Bank is subject to the rules regarding change
of control in the Act and the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder and is also subject to
the rules regarding change in control of Illinois banks contained in the IBA.

The Bank is subject to Sections 22(h), 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, which restrict or impose requirements on
financial transactions between federally insured depository institutions and subsidiary companies. The statute limits credit
transactions between a bank and its executive officers and its subsidiaries, prescribes terms and conditions for bank
subsidiary transactions deemed to be consistent with safe and sound banking practices, requires arms-length transactions
between subsidiaries, and restricts the types of collateral security permitted in connection with a bank’s extension of credit to
a subsidiary.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999

The enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (“GLB Act”) swept away large parts of a regulatory framework that
had its origins in the Depression Era of the 1930s. Effective March 11, 2000, new opportunities became available for banks,
other depository institutions, insurance companies, and securities firms to enter into combinations that permit a single
financial services organization to offer customers a more comprehensive array of financial products and services. To further
this goal, the GLB Act amends section 4 of the Act providing a new regulatory framework applicable to a financial holding
company (“FHC”), which has as its primary regulator the Federal Reserve. Functional regulation of the FHC’s subsidiaries
will be conducted by their primary functional regulators. Pursuant to the GLB Act, bank holding companies, subsidiary
depository institutions thereof, and foreign banks electing to qualify as a FHC must be “well managed,” “well capitalized,”
and rated at least satisfactory under the Community Reinvestment Act in order to engage in new financial activities.

An FHC may engage in securities and insurance activities and other activities that are deemed financial in nature or incidental
to a financial activity under the GLB Act. While aware of the flexibility of the FHC statute, the Company has, for the time
being, decided not to become a FHC, but will continue to follow the reception given FHCs in the marketplace. The activities
of bank holding companies that are not FHCs will continue to be regulated by and limited to activities permissible under the
Act.

The GLB Act also prohibits a financial institution from disclosing non-public personal information about a consumer to
nonaffiliated third parties, unless the institution satisfies various disclosure requirements and the consumer has not elected to
opt out of the disclosure. Under the GLB Act, a financial institution must provide its customers with a notice of its privacy
policies and practices. The Federal Reserve, the FDIC, and other financial regulatory agencies have issued regulations
implementing notice requirements and restrictions on a financial institution’s ability to disclose non-public personal
information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties.



The Company is also subject to certain state laws that limit the use and distribution of non-public personal information, both
to subsidiaries and unaffiliated entities.

The GLB Act is expected, in time, to alter the competitive landscape of the product markets presently served by the
Company. Companies that are presently engaged primarily in insurance activities or securities activities are now permitted to
acquire banks and bank holding companies, such as the Company. The Company may, in the future, face increased
competition from a broader range of larger, more diversified financial companies.

USA Patriot Act

On October 26, 2001, the President signed into law comprehensive anti-terrorism legislation known as the USA Patriot Act.
Title 1T of the USA Patriot Act requires financial institutions, including the Company and the Bank, to help prevent, detect,
and prosecute international money laundering and the financing of terrorism. The Department of the Treasury has adopted
additional requirements to further implement Title IIL

Under these regulations, a mechanism has been established for law enforcement officials to communicate names of suspected
terrorists and money launderers to financial institutions to enable financial institutions to promptly locate accounts and
transactions involving those suspects. Financial institutions receiving names of suspects must search their account and
transaction records for potential matches and report positive results to the U.S. Department of the Treasury Financial Crimes
Enforcement Network (“FinCEN™). Each financial institution must designate a point of contact to receive information
requests. These regulations outline how financial institutions can share information concerning suspected terrorist and
money laundering activity with other financial institutions under the protection of a statutory safe harbor if each financial
institution notifies FinCEN of its intent to share information.

The Department of the Treasury has also adopted regulations intended to prevent money laundering and terrorist financing
through correspondent accounts maintained by U.S. financial institutions on behalf of foreign banks. Financial institutions
are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that they are not providing banking services directly or indirectly to foreign
shell banks.

In addition, banks must have procedures in place to identify and verify the identity of the persons with whom they deal. The
Company and the Bank have augmented their systems and procedures to accomplish compliance with these requirements.
The Company and the Bank believe that the cost of compliance with Title IIT of the USA Patriot Act is not likely to be
material to them.

In July 2004, the Company and the Bank entered into an agreement with the Federal Reserve and the Illinois Office of Banks
and Real Estate to enhance its compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws, rules, and regulations relating to anti-
money laundering policies and procedures. To fully address all cited deficiencies, the Bank authored a written compliance
plan and completed a compliance review of certain customer transactions since the date of the last prior satisfactory
regulatory review. The Bank has conducted a comprehensive review of policy, procedure, systems, and manpower
addressing these important areas and expects that it will be deemed in compliance with this agreement. The Company
believes that this agreement will have no negative effect on its financial condition, liquidity, capital resources, or operations.

Capital Guidelines

The Federal Reserve and the other Federal functional bank regulators have established risk-based capital guidelines to
provide a framework for assessing the adequacy of the capital of national and state banks and their bank holding companies
(collectively, “banking institutions”). These guidelines apply to all banking institutions, regardless of size, and are used in
the examination and supervisory process as well as in the analysis of applications to be acted upon by the regulatory
authorities. These guidelines require banking institutions to maintain capital based on the credit risk of their operations, both
on and off-balance sheet.

The minimum capital ratios established by the guidelines are based on both Tier 1 and Total capital to total risk-based assets.
In addition to the risk-based capital requirements, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC require banking institutions to maintain
a minimum leveraged-capital ratio to supplement the risk-based capital guidelines.



Dividends

The Company’s primary source of liquidity is dividend payments from the Bank. In addition to capital guidelines, the Bank
is limited in the amount of dividends it can pay to the Company under the IBA. Under this law, the Bank is permitted to
declare and pay dividends in amounts up to the amount of its accumulated net profits, provided that it retains in its surplus at
least one-tenth of its net profits since the date of the declaration of its most recent dividend until those additions to surplus, in
the aggregate, equal the paid-in capital of the Bank. The Bank may not, while it continues its banking business, pay
dividends in excess of its net profits then on hand (after deductions for losses and bad debts). As of December 31, 2004, the
Bank could distribute dividends of approximately $19.7 million without approval from the Commissioner of Illinois. In
addition, the Bank is limited in the amount of dividends it can pay under the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation H. For
example, dividends cannot be paid that would constitute a withdrawal of capital, dividends cannot be declared or paid if they
exceed a bank’s undivided profits, and a bank may not declare or pay a dividend greater than current year net income plus
retained net income of the prior two years without Federal Reserve approval.

Since the Company is a legal entity, separate and distinct from the Bank, its dividends to stockholders are not subject to the
bank dividend guidelines discussed above. The Commissioner of Illinois is authorized to determine, under certain
circumstances relating to the financial condition of a bank or bank holding company, that the payment of dividends would be
an unsafe or unsound practice and to prohibit payment thereof. The Federal Reserve has taken the position that dividends
that would create pressure or undermine the safety and soundness of the subsidiary bank are inappropriate.

FDIC Insurance Premiums

The Bank's deposits are predominantly insured through the BIF, with certain deposits held by the Bank insured through the
SAIF, both of which are administered by the FDIC. As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance premiums and is
authorized to conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any
FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to
the BIF or SAIF.

The FDIC's deposit insurance premiums are assessed through a risk-based system under which all insured depository
institutions are placed into one of nine categories and assessed insurance premiums on deposits based upon their level of
capital and supervisory evaluation. For 2005, the Bank will pay premium assessments on both its BIF and SAIF insured
deposits in order to service the interest on the Financing Corporation (“FICO”) bond obligations which were used to finance
the cost of “thrift bailouts” in the 1980's. The FICO assessment rates for the first semi-annual period of 2005 were set at
$.0144 per $100 of insured deposits each for BIF and SAIF assessable deposits. These rates may be adjusted quarterly to
reflect changes in assessment basis for the BIF and SAIF.

Where You Can Find More Information About First Midwest

The Company makes available, free of charge, on its website, http:/www.firstmidwest.com, its annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are
electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The executive offices of the Company, the Bank and certain subsidiary operational facilities are located in a five-story office
building in Itasca, Illinois. The Company and the Bank currently occupy approximately 36,179 square feet on the fourth
floor of that building, which is leased through an unaffiliated third party.

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank operated through 67 bank branches and operational facilities. Of these, 12 are leased and
the remaining 55 are owned and not subject to any material liens. The banking offices are located in various communities
primarily throughout Northern Illinois, principally the Chicago metropolitan suburban area. At certain Bank locations,
excess space is leased to third parties. The Bank also owns 91 automated teller machines (ATMs), some of which are housed
at a banking location and some of which are independently located. In addition, the Company owns other real property that,
when considered in the aggregate, is not material to the Company’s financial position.

The Company believes its facilities in the aggregate are suitable and adequate to operate its banking business. Additional
information with respect to premises and equipment is presented in Note 7 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
commencing on page 58 of this Form 10-K.




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are certain legal proceedings pending against the Company and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business at
December 31, 2004. The Company believes that any liabilities arising from these proceedings would not have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition of the Company.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSIONS OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no items submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company's common stock 1s traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “FMBIL.” As of December 31, 2004,
there were 2,678 stockholders of record. The following table sets forth the closing common stock price, dividends per share,
and book value per share during each quarter of 2004 and 2003.

2004 2003
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Market price of common stock

High oot $ 3830 S 3562 % 36.03 § 3429 | 3 3280 § 3145 § 2987 S 28.12

LOW oo $ 3370 $ 3225 % 3233 % 3113 | § 2961 § 2853 § 2555 8§ 24.89

Quarter-end .................. ... § 3629 $ 3456 $ 3521 $ 3422 | $ 3243 % 2971 § 2881 § 25.81
Cash dividends per share .............. $ 024 $ 022 % 022 $ 022 | % 022 § 019 $ 0.19 $ 0.19
Dividend yield at quarter-end ... 2.65% 2.55% 2.50% 2.57% 2.71% 2.56% 2.64% 2.94%
Book value per share at

quarter-end ..o $ 1155 § 11.56 § 1087 § 11.26 | $ 11.22 §$ 1094 S 1092 § 10.58

' Ratios are presented on an annualized basis.

A discussion regarding the regulatory restrictions applicable to the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to the Company is
included in the “Dividends” section under Item 1 located on page 8 of this Form 10-K. A discussion of the Company's
history and philosophy regarding the payment of dividends is included in the “Management of Capital” section of
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” commencing on page 35 of this
Form 10-K.




Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information, as of December 31, 2004, relating to equity compensation plans of the Company
pursuant to which options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, or other rights to acquire shares may be granted from time
to time.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for future
to be issued upon Weighted-average issuance under equity
exercise of exercise prices of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, {(excluding securities
warrants, and rights warrants, and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders " ... 2,052,462 $ 26.82 2,174,504
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders @ .. ) 4,373 15.88 -
TOtAle e eseeeeeeennenrn 2,056,835 $ 26.80 2,174,504

M TIncludes all outstanding options and awards under the Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan and the Non-Employee Directors’ 1997
Stock Option Plan (the “Plans™). Additional information and details about the Plans are also disclosed in Notes 1 and 17 of “Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47 and 68, respectively, of this Form 10-K.

@ Represents shares underlying deferred stock units credited under the Company’s Nonqualified Retirement Plan, payable on a one-for-one
basis in shares of the Company’s common stock.

The Nonqualified Retirement Plan is a defined contribution deferred compensation plan under which participants are credited
with deferred compensation equal to contributions and benefits that would have accrued to the participant under the
Company’s tax-qualified plans, but for limitations under the Internal Revenue Code, and to amounts of salary and annual
bonus that the participant has elected to defer. Participant accounts are deemed to be invested in separate investment
accounts under the plan, which mirror the investment accounts available under the Company’s tax-qualified savings and
profit sharing plan, including an investment account deemed invested in shares of Company common stock. The accounts
are adjusted to reflect the investment return related to such deemed investments. Except for the 4,373 shares set forth in the
table above, all amounts credited under the Plan are paid in cash.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes shares repurchased by the Company during the quarter ended December 31, 2004.

Total Number Maximum
of Shares Number of
Purchased as Shares that
Partof a May Yet Be

Total Average Publicly Purchased
Number of Price Announced Under the
Shares Paid per Plan or Plans or
Purchased Share Program Programs

(Number of shares in thousands)

October 1 - October 31,2004 .....ccovvvvviiiiieiieeiee e 64 $ 34.55 60 1,052

November 1 - November 30, 2004.............ccoooeeeiviieivinicneens 273 36.64 148 904

December 1 - December 31,2004 ......cocoooviviiiiiiiiniece 290 36.56 243 661
TOtAL ..ot 627 $ 36.39 451

" Includes 176,569 shares acquired pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans. Under the terms of these plans, the Company accepts

shares of common stock from employees if they decide to transfer to the Company previously owned shares as payment for the exercise
price of the stock options. All other shares purchased by the Company were executed in the open market.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Consolidated financial information reflecting a summary of the operating results and financial condition of the Company for
each of the five years ended December 31, 2004 is presented in the following table. This summary should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. A
more detailed discussion and analysis of the factors affecting the Company's financial condition and operating results is
presented in Item 7, “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
commencing on page 12 of this Form 10-K.

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Operating Resuits (Amounts in thousands)
INTEFESt INCOME .vvvvieiiieereeiiie et aes $ 315342 § 291,067 $§ 329,664 $ 385218 $ 421,517
Interest XPense .....oecvevecreriveviicere e 86,478 81,313 110,910 180,838 231,906
Net interest iNCOME .....eecvrerreerieecreeierieeereeraaans 228,864 209,754 218,754 204,380 189,611
Provision for loan 10SS€s ..........cccoooveeeeeiceieeicr e 12,923 10,805 15,410 19,084 9,094
NONINtErest iNCOME ...vveveirirriirircecerieieiesee e 73,812 77,207 66,531 68,076 61,960
Security gains, Net.......ccovvevereronernie e 8,222 2,988 460 790 1,238
(Losses) on early extinguishment of debt............... (2,653) (6,025) - - -
NONINEIESt EXPENSE ..vveevviririenieerieereeieaeriasieeevanes 163,338 149,452 148,052 145,356 144,416
Income tax expense.......cccoerveieieininieccinr e 32,848 30,889 32,133 26,668 23,759
NEE IHCOME ..ot $ 99,136 $§ 92,778 $ 90,150 § 82,138 §$ 75,540
Weighted-average shares outstanding.................... 46,469 46,671 48,074 50,057 51,314
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding ........ 46,860 46,982 48,415 50,401 51,604
Per Share Data
Basic earnings per share...........ccoooeniivecnivncncennnn $ 213§ 1.99 % 188 % 1.64 % 1.47
Diluted earnings per share.........cc.ccooeeivieriivcnninnn 2.12 - 1.97 1.86 1.63 1.46
Cash dividends declared..........ccoecvieeiiiiiniiiniin. 0.900 0.790 0.700 0.650 0.592
Book value at period end.........cooviin 11.55 11.22 10.42 9.18 8.75
Market value at period end.........ccovvvvrecrnrnennnnne. 36.29 32.43 26.71 29.19 23.00
Performance Ratios
Return on average equity .......ccooovevevreiieneer e, 18.68% 18.28% 18.82% 17.89% 19.17%
Return on average assets .......cocoveeviveeiceivenninnnns 1.45% 1.50% 1.53% 1.43% 1.30%
Net interest margin — tax equivalent....................... 3.91% 3.99% 4.28% 4.10% 3.76%
Dividend payout ratio.......c.coccovvereniinnincncneenen 42.45% 40.10% 37.63% 39.88% 40.55%
Average equity to average asset ratio..................... 7.74% 8.19% 8.12% 7.99% 6.79%
Consolidated Statements of Condition Highlights
(Dollar amounts in thousands) As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Total @SSEIS..cveeiiiririercee e $ 6,863,381 $ 6,906,658 § 5,980,533 $ 35,667,919 § 5,906,484
LOBIS oo ettt bttt b 4,135,278 4,059,782 3,406,846 3,372,306 3,233,196
DePOSItS .. iiiiiiiicrie e 4,905,378 4,815,108 4,172,954 4,193,921 4,252,205
Subordinated debt — trust preferred securities........ 129,294 128,716 - - -
Long-term portion of Federal Home Loan Bank

AAVAIICES ..1veevieieciee ettt " 36,743 474,111 425,000 150,000 30,000
Stockholders' equity .......ccccvevvvvcevciiniiriiine 532,038 522,540 491,953 447,267 446,723
Financial Ratios
Reserve for loan losses as a percent of loans ......... 1.37% 1.39% 1.41% 1.42% 1.39%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets......c..ccocovn.ne. 10.45% 10.29% 9.93% 9.96% 10.51%
Total capital to risk-weighted assets ........c.......c..... 11.52% 11.41% 11.03% 11.08% 11.61%
Tier 1 leverage to average assetS......ocovveveeererinenne 8.16% 8.49% 7.32% 7.43% 7.36%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTIORN

The following discussion and analysis is intended to address the significant factors affecting the Company's Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years 2002 through 2004 and Consolidated Statements of Condition as of December 31, 2003
and 2004. The discussion is designed to provide stockholders with a comprehensive review of the operating results and
financial condition and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, accompanying notes thereto,
and other financial information presented in this Form 10-K.

A condensed review of operations for the fourth quarter of 2004 is included herein, commencing on page 37 of this Form 10-
K. The review provides an analysis of the quarterly earnings performance for the fourth quarter of 2004 as compared to the
same period in 2003.

Unless otherwise stated, all earnings per share data included in this section and through the remainder of this discussion are
presented on a diluted basis.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statement under the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: The Company and its
representatives may, from time to time, make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking” and provide information
other than historical information, including statements contained in the Form 10-K, the Company’s other filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or in communications to its stockholders. These statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to be materially different from any results,
levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement. These factors
include, among other things, the factors listed below.

In some cases, the Company has identified forward-looking statements by such words or phrases as “will likely result,” “is
confident that,” “expects,” “should,” “could,” “seeks,” “may,” “will continue to,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “predicts,”
“forecasts,” “estimates,” “projects,” “potential,” “intends,” or similar expressions identifying “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including the negative of those words and
phrases. These forward-looking statements are based on management’s current views and assumptions regarding future
events, future business conditions, and the outlook for the Company based on currently available information. The Company
wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the
date made.

EEINY] LIS

EERNTY RLINT

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Company is hereby
identifying important factors that could affect the Company’s financial performance and could cause the Company’s actual
results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods in any
forward-looking statements.

Among the factors that could have an impact on the Company’s ability to achieve operating results, growth plan goals, and
the beliefs expressed or implied in forward-looking statements are:

e Management’s ability to reduce and effectively manage interest rate risk and the impact of interest rates in general
on the volatility of the Company’s net interest income;

¢  Fluctuations in the value of the Company’s investment securities;

¢ The ability to attract and retain senior management experienced in banking and financial services;

o The sufficiency of the reserve for loan losses to absorb the amount of actual losses inherent in the existing portfolio
of loans;

¢ The Company’s ability to adapt successfully to technological changes to compete effectively in the marketplace;

¢  Credit risks and risks from concentrations (by geographic area and by industry) within the Bank’s loan portfolio;

e The effects of competition from other commercial banks, thrifts, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance
companies, credit unions, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market and other mutual funds,
and other financial institutions operating in the Company’s market or elsewhere or providing similar services;




e The failure of assumptions underlying the establishment of allowances for loan losses and estimation of values of

collateral and various financial assets and liabilities;

Volatility of rate sensitive deposits;

Operational risks, including data processing system failures or fraud;

Asset/liability matching risks and liquidity risks;

Changes in the economic environment, competition, or other factors that may influence the anticipated growth rate

of loans and deposits, the quality of the loan portfolio and loan and deposit pricing, and the Company’s ability to

successfully pursue acquisition and expansion strategies and integrate any acquired companies;

e The impact from liabilities arising from legal or administrative proceedings, enforcement of bank regulations, and
enactment or application of securities regulations on the financial condition of the Company;

¢ Governmental monetary and fiscal policies, as well as legislative and regulatory changes, that may result in the
imposition of costs and constraints on the Company through higher FDIC insurance premiums, significant
fluctuations in market interest rates, increases in capital requirements, and operational limitations;

e Changes in Federal and state tax laws, including changes in tax laws affecting tax rates, income not subject to tax
under current law, income sourcing, and consolidation/combination rules;

e Changes in general economic or industry conditions, nationally or in the communities in which the Company
conducts business;

e Changes in accounting principles, policies, or guidelines affecting the businesses conducted by the Company;

e  Acts of war or terrorism; and

s  Other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, and technical factors affecting the Company’s operations,
products, services, and prices.

The foregoing list of important factors may not be all-inclusive, and the Company specifically declines to undertake any
obligation to publicly revise any forward-looking statements that have been made to reflect events or circumstances after the
date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

With respect to forward-looking statements set forth in the notes to consolidated financial statements, including those relating
to contingent liabilities and legal proceedings, some of the factors that could affect the ultimate disposition of those
contingencies are changes in applicable laws, the development of facts in individual cases, settlement opportunities, and the
actions of plaintiffs, judges, and juries.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States and are consistent with predominant practices in the financial services industry. Application of critical
accounting policies, those policies that management believes are the most important to the Company’s financial position and
results of operations, requires management to make estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes and are based on information available as of the date of the financial
statements. Future changes in information may affect these estimates, assumptions, and judgments, which, in turn, may
affect amounts reported in the financial statements.

The Company has numerous accounting policies, of which the most significant are presented in Note 1 of “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K. These policies, along with the disclosures
presented in the other financial statement notes and in this discussion, provide information on how significant assets and
liabilities are valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined. Based on the valuation techniques used
and the sensitivity of financial statement amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimates underlying those amounts,
management has determined that its accounting policies with respect to the reserve for loan losses and income taxes are the
accounting areas requiring subjective or complex judgments that are most important to the Company’s financial position and
results of operations, and, as such, are considered to be critical accounting policies as discussed below.

Reserve for Loan Losses

Arriving at an appropriate level of reserve for loan losses involves a high degree of judgment. The Company's reserve for
loan losses provides for probable losses based upon evaluations of known, and inherent risks in the loan portfolio.
Management uses historical information to assess the adequacy of the reserve for loan losses as well as its assessment of the
prevailing business environment, as it is affected by changing economic conditions and various external factors, which may
impact the portfolio in ways currently unforeseen. The reserve is increased by provisions for loan losses and by recoveries of
loans previously charged-off and reduced by loans charged-off. For a full discussion of the Company's methodology of
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assessing the adequacy of the reserve for loan losses, see Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income tax expense by applying an estimated effective tax rate to its pre-tax income. The
effective tax rate is based on management’s judgments and estimates regarding permanent differences in the treatment of
specific items of income and expense for financial statement and income tax purposes. In addition, the Company recognizes
deferred tax assets and liabilities, recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Condition, based on management’s judgments
and estimates regarding temporary differences in the recognition of income and expenses for financial statement and income
tax purposes.

The Company must also assess the likelihood that any deferred tax assets will be realized through the reduction or refund of
taxes in future periods and establish a valuation allowance for those assets for which recovery is unlikely. In making this
assessment, management must make judgments and estimates regarding the ability to realize the asset through carry back to
taxable income in prior years, the future reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, future taxable income, and the
possible application of future tax planning strategies. Although the Company has determined a valuation allowance is not
required for any deferred tax assets, there is no guarantee that these assets are recognizable. For additional discussion of
income taxes, see Notes 1 and 15 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47 and 65,
respectively, of this Form 10-K.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
General Overview

The Company, through its banking network, provides the full range of both business and retail banking and trust and
investment management services through 67 banking offices, primarily in suburban metropolitan Chicago. The Company
believes that its continued profitable growth is the result of its consistent focus on relationship management and fulfilling
customer needs, a strong culture of credit and operational control, and the quality and depth of the market it serves. The
primary source of the Company’s revenue is net interest income from loans and deposits and fees from financial services
provided to customers. Business volumes tend to be influenced by overall economic factors including market interest rates,
business spending, and consumer confidence, as well as competitive conditions within the marketplace.

The Company had another year of record performance in 2004. The Company’s net income for 2004 increased 7.6% on a per
diluted share basis to a record $99.1 million, or $2.12 per diluted share, from net income of $92.8 million, or $1.97 per
diluted share, in 2003.

In 2004, the Company’s return on average assets was 1.45% as compared to 1.50% in 2003 and its return on average equity
was 18.7% as compared to 18.3% in 2003. In comparison to 2003, the Company’s net income benefited from $612.8 million
higher earning-asset levels, which generated higher tax-equivalent net interest income of $18.9 million, $5.2 million higher
net realized security gains, $3.4 million lower losses resulting from extinguishment of debt, and improved fee revenue. -
Partially offsetting these benefits were $2.1 million in higher provisions for loan losses, $13.9 million in higher noninterest
expense, lower income generated from the disposition of assets, and a higher effective tax rate. The Company’s overall
profitability continues to benefit from strong earnings, solid credit quality, cost control, and efficient use of capital.

The Company’s total loans of $4.1 billion at December 31, 2004 increased 1.9% from December 31, 2003. During the fourth
quarter 2004, the Company converted $74.2 million of its 1-4 family residential mortgages into an investment security. Also
in fourth quarter 2004, the Company exited its marginally profitable indirect consumer lending business, resulting in a $60.7
million decline in outstanding loans from year-end 2003 to 2004. Excluding both 1-4 family residential loans and indirect
consumer loans, the Company’s total loans increased 6.0% as commercial, agricultural, commercial real estate, and home
equity consumer loan categories all grew. Commercial loan growth trends remain favorable, and commercial loans
outstanding as of December 31, 2004 increased by 8.9% compared to December 31, 2003. Consumer home equity loans
increased 10.9% from December 31, 2003, reflecting continued sales success.

Total deposits as of December 31, 2004 totaled $4.9 billion, up 1.9% from December 31, 2003. Demand and time deposit

balances outstanding as of December 31, 2004 increased 7.4% and 3.5%, respectively, in comparison to 2003, largely due to
targeted sales efforts and consumer preferences.
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The Company’s credit quality improved during 2004. Nonperforming assets totaled $22.9 million as of December 31, 2004,
down 20.6% from $28.9 million as of December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004, the ratio of nonperforming assets plus
90 days past due loans to total loans plus foreclosed real estate was 0.62%, improving 21.5% from 0.79% as of December 31,
2003.

During 2004, the Company completed the successful integration of CoVest Bancshares, Inc., a bank holding company in
northwestern suburban Cook County that the Company acquired on December 31, 2003 (“the CoVest Acquisition”). As a
result, the Company’s average assets increased in 2004 by $645.6 million over 2003, while requiring only a minimal increase
in back-office support.

Business Outlook

The Company feels that it is well positioned for continued performance improvement because it operates in strong markets
with favorable business fundamentals. As a result of improving economic conditions, the Company expects continued
expansion in the markets it serves, which should generate a greater demand for the Company’s products and services. The
competition for bank products and services continues to intensify in the Chicago metropolitan area as banks headquartered
both within and outside of Chicago have announced aggressive expansion plans. The Company continues to believe it can
compete successfully because of the high quality of its products and services, its unique relationship-based approach to
banking, and its knowledge of and connections to its communities.

Overall 2005 performance is expected to benefit from increased net interest income due to higher interest-earning asset
levels, deposit acquisition, and fee growth. Interest-earning asset improvement should result from improved loan demand
due to favorable trends in corporate and home equity lending. These benefits are likely to be offset by the expectation of a
higher loan loss provision due to anticipated loan growth, increased noninterest expense, and an increased effective tax rate.

The Company’s optimism for 2005 is tempered by its expectation for higher interest rates and the inherent uncertainties that
arise as the economy transitions from a period of 40-year lows in interest rates. Overall, the Company expects net interest
margin performance to benefit more from rising than falling or stable interest rates and expects assets to reprice more quickly
than liabilities. Although net interest margin in 2005 may benefit from rising rates, it is likely to stabilize or contract if short-
term interest rates increase at the same or a faster pace than intermediate and long-term rates. The Company’s 2005 earnings
could be negatively impacted, however, if interest rates remain stable or unexpectedly decrease. Further, if the relationship
between short and long-term rates narrows, the expected benefit from rising short-term interest rates could be offset to some
degree.

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE
Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference between interest income and fees earned on interest-earning assets and interest
expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in net interest income generally occur due to fluctuations in the
volume of earning assets and paying liabilities and the rates earned and paid, on these assets and liabilities. Net interest
margin represents net interest income as a percentage of total interest-earning assets. For purposes of this discussion, both
net interest income and margin have been adjusted to a fully tax equivalent basis to more appropriately compare the returns
on certain tax-exempt loans and securities to those on taxable eaming assets. The accounting policies underlying the
recognition of interest income on loans, securities, and other earning assets are presented in Notes 1, 6, and 12 of “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47, 57, and 62, respectively, of this Form 10-K.

Table 1
Effect of Tax Equivalent Adjustment
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

% Change
2004 2003 2002 2004-2003  2003-2002
Net INErest iNCOIME ...ivviiveeiiiie e ieerr et ereereeeneas $ 228,864 $ 209,754 $ 218,754 9.1 (4.1)
Tax equivalent adjustment ... 17,440 17,642 14,014 (1.1) 25.9
Tax equivalent net interest income ...................... § 246304 $ 227396 § 232,768 8.3 (2.3)
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Tax equivalent net interest income in 2004 increased 8.3% in comparison to 2003 primarily due to growth in interest-earning
assets acquired in the CoVest Acquisition, which was partially offset by lower net interest margins. Tax equivalent net
interest income in 2003 decreased in comparison to 2002 primarily due to a decline in net interest margin, which was
partially offset by the benefits of higher earning asset levels. Margin contraction in 2004 resulted primarily from the
repricing of earning assets in the low interest rate environment and the acceleration of cash flows due to refinance related
prepayments on mortgage-backed securities.

Table 2 summarizes the Company’s average interest-earning assets and funding sources over the last three years, as well as
interest income and interest expense related to each category of assets and funding sources and the yield earned and rates paid
on each. The table also shows the trend in net interest margin on a quarterly basis for 2004 and 2003, including the tax
equivalent yields on earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Table 3 analyzes the changes in interest
income, interest expense, and net interest income that result from changes in the volumes of earning assets and funding
sources, as well as fluctuations in interest rates.
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Table 2

Net Interest Income and Margin Analysis
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2004 2003 2002
Yield/ Yield/ Yield/
Average Rate Average Rate Average Rate
Balance Interest (%) Balance Interest (%) Balance Interest (%)
Assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks....... $ 6,090 § 96 158 | $ 3,925 § 36 092 $ 5474 % 106 1.94
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell .. 18,413 237 1.29 9,515 114 1.20 3,587 69 1.92
Mortgages held forsale........ccococonvcnen 5,841 300 5.14 16,932 932 5.50 10,404 642 6.17
Securities:
Available for sale - taxable...... 1,412,866 57,163 4.05 1,466,925 56,077 3.82 1,493,194 78,301 5.24
Available for sale - nontaxable 658,998 45,795 6.95 656,624 46,307 7.05 476,946 35,786 7.50
Held to maturity - taxable......... . 11,826 439 3.71 13,378 831 6.21 13,759 952 6.92
Held to maturity - nontaxable "*........... 50,079 3280 655 61,157 4,010 656 54,900 4,003 7.29
Total securities.......ccoovvovivicoriicnennnn. 2,133,769 106,677 5.00 2,198,084 107,225 4,88 2,038,799 119,042 5.84
Loans "®;
Commercial and industrial.................... 1,108,816 57,254 5.16 962,957 51,724 5.37 881,848 53,597 6.08
Agricultural ..o 100,232 4,494 448 85,869 4,036 4.70 86,049 4,667 5.42
Real estate - commercial....................... 1,446,441 82,017 5.67 1,022,405 62,307 6.09 994,627 68,783 6.92
Real estate - CONSrUCtion............c.o...... 438,158 22,368 5.11 378,730 19,061 5.03 319,955 17,508 5.47
COnSUMET .....oovveeceeren . 894,362 50,097 5.60 890,872 55,547 6.24 933,084 67,403 7.22
Real estate - 1-4 family 155,058 9,242 5.96 125,044 7,727 6.18 166,945 11,861 7.10
Total 10anS. ..o ieveerrcerieierecnr e 4,143,067 225,472 5.44 3,465,877 200,402 5.78 3,382,508 223,819 6.62
Total interest-earning assets @ . 6,307,180 332,782 5.28 5,694,333 308,709 5.42 5,440,772 343,678 6.32
Cash and due from banks.......ccococooeinne 176,216 176,235 165,847
Reserve for loan l0Sses......c.ocvvrimirinnnn.. (57,243) (49,182) (48,312)
Other asSets......ccoivivieeeireieeee e crecer e 434,092 378,277 343,591
Total aSSELs ..ovvvvvrevrrecneer e 3 6,860,245 $ 6,199,663 $ 5,901,898
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Savings deposits ......cocoeieeiniininie e $ 646,214 4,305 067 | § 498,798 2,489 050 | $ 454,588 4,191 0.92
NOW acCOunts ......ccovvvioreinrecnrinsierevnnens 921,635 7,549 0.82 813,993 7,089 0.87 723,634 10,291 1.42
Money market deposits ....co..covvirienenn. 732,456 9,083 1.24 616,868 7,850 1.27 552,440 10,993 1.99
Time deposits ...covoereorrcncreseenean, 1,696,358 36,495 2.15 1,599,761 38,844 243 1,739,017 56,141 3.23
Borrowed funds ..., 1,253,419 20,980 1.67 1,276,616 23,962 1.88 1,150,028 29,294 2.55
Subordinated debt - trust preferred
SECULTIES 11vvvvsieesereeesseeereeeeeeere e 128,454 8,066 6.28 15,515 1,079 6.95 - - -
Total interest-bearing liabilities ......... 5,378,536 86,478 1.61 4,821,551 81,313 1.69 4,619,707 110,910 2.40
Demand deposits .....c.ccvcervercorcrerrinnnnns 894,093 806,777 744,295
Other liabilities ....coccceivrccrvncrcnier e 56,895 63,755 58,791
Stockholders' equity .......ccccoveerinrieei 530,721 507,580 479,105
Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity ...cocooeiuiiinnne. $ 6,860,245 $ 6,199,663 $ 5,901,898
Net interest income/margin D $ 246,304 391 § 227,396 3.99 $ 232,768 4.28
Quarterly Net Interest Margin Trend
2004 N 2003
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Yield on interest-eamning assets ................... 5.42% 5.30% 5.10% 5.29% 5.31% 5.23% 5.47% 5.69%
Rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities....... 1.76% 1.64% 1.50% 1.54% 1.54% 1.56% 1.73% 1.92%
Net interest margin V..., 3.94% 3.90% 3.81% 3.97% 4.01% 3.90% 4.01% 4.06%

M Interest income and yields are presented on a tax equivalent basis, assuming a Federal tax rate of 35%.

@ Loans on a nonaccrual basis for the recognition of interest income totaled $19.2 million, $23.1 miltion, and $12.5 million, as of December 31,

2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively, and are included in loans, for purposes of this analysis.
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Table 3
Changes in Net Interest Income Applicable to Volumes and Interest Rates "
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2004 as compared to 2003 2003 compared to 2002
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest-bearing deposits with banks......... S 26§ 34§ 60 | $ 24) $ 46) $ (70)
Securities:
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to resell..... 114 9 123 58 (13) 45
Mortgages held for sale..........ccc.ccccerene (574) (58) (632) 350 (60) 290
Available for sale - taxable .................... (1,861) 2,947 1,086 (1,353) (20,871) (22,224)
Available for sale - nontaxable @ .......... 168 (680) (512) 12,517 (1,996) 10,521
Held to maturity - taxable ..................... (88) (304) (392) (26) (95) (121)
Held to maturity - nontaxable  ........... (726) (4) (730) 60 (53) 7
Total Securities .......cccooevveereercrecreennnns (2,507) 1,959 (548) 11,198 (23,015) (11,817)
Loans @
Commercial and industrial..................... 7,427 (1,897) 5,530 7,103 (8,976) (1,873)
Agricultural........cccoooeiiieiiiieeeen 632 (174) 458 (10) (621) (631)
Real estate - commercial.............ccooe...n. 23,682 (3,972) 19,710 1,991 (8,467) (6,476)
Real estate - construction................cee.. 3,030 277 3,307 2,758 (1,205) 1,553
CONSUMET ....veeivieireiieie e 219 (5,669) (5,450) (2,945) (8,911) (11,856)
Real estate - 1-4 family.........cccoeevie 1,778 (263) 1,515 (2,722) (1,412) (4,134)
Total 10ans.......ccocevivereiiirereerreen s 36,768 (11,698) 25,070 6,175 (29,592) (23,417)
Total interest income @.......ccccovevene.. 33,827 (9,754) 24,073 17,757 (52,726) (34,969)
Savings deposits.....ccoevivviiiiviiiriviiieiiieinans 851 965 1,816 458 (2,160) (1,702)
NOW aCCOUNLS it 837 (377) 460 1,522 (4,724) (3,202)
Money market deposits ......ccovvveerirereenine 1,427 (194) 1,233 1,503 (4,646) (3,143)
Time deposits .ccoovvvvvveeieviieieeicie e 2,646 (4,995) (2,349) (4,224) (13,073) (17,297)
Borrowed funds........c..ccooivivivniiiieenenn (428) (2,554) (2,982) 3,836 (9,168) (5,332)
Subordinated debt - trust preferred
SCCULIICS. 1 vveireerreriee e e 7,082 (95) 6,987 1,079 - 1,079
Total interest eXpense........ecverevcrerenn, 12,415 (7,250) 5,165 4,174 (33,771) {29,597)
Net interest income ¥........ccc.coovveenn. $ 21412 $ (2,504) S 18,908 | $ 13,583 $ (18,995) $ (5372

" For purposes of this table, changes which are not due solely to volume changes or rate changes are allocated to such categories on
the basis of the percentage relationship of each to the sum of the two.

@ TInterest income is presented on a tax equivalent basis, assuming a Federal tax rate of 35%.

Tax equivalent interest income was $332.8 million in 2004 as compared to $308.7 million in 2003 and $343.7 million in
2002. The Company’s improved interest income in 2004 primarily resulted from higher average loans outstanding due to the
CoVest Acquisition and improved sales activity. The decrease in the Company’s tax equivalent interest income in 2003 from
2002 resulted primarily from lower yields on interest-earning assets as loans repriced more quickly than interest-bearing
liabilities in 2003’s low interest rate environment.

Average interest-earning assets for 2004 increased $612.8 million, or 10.8%, to $6.3 billion as compared to $5.7 billion in
2003, largely as a result of assets acquired in the CoVest Acquisition. The growth in volume increased 2004’s interest
income by $33.8 million. This increase was partially offset by a reduction in rates received that reduced interest income by
$9.8 million. In 2003, average interest-earning assets increased by $253.6 million, or 4.7%, as compared to 2002, primarily
due to growth in the Company’s loan and security portfolios.

Interest expense increased by $5.2 million to $86.5 million in 2004 as compared to $81.3 million in 2003, following a $29.6

million decrease from $110.9 million in 2002. Average interest-bearing liabilities for 2004 increased by $557.0 million, or
11.6%, to $5.4 billion, due in large part to the CoVest Acquisition, including the $125 million issuance of trust preferred
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securities to fund the acquisition. In 2003, average interest-bearing liabilities increased by $201.8 million, or 4.4%, due to an
increase in borrowed funds. Interest-bearing liabilities repricing in the lower interest rate environment caused the rate paid
on average interest-bearing deposits to fall by 8§ basis points to 1.61% in 2004 and 71 basis points to 1.69% in 2003. As
discussed in the subsequent section entitled “Funding and Liquidity Management” commencing on page 32 of this Form 10-
K, the repositioning of deposit balances was influenced by pricing and promotional strategies as well as customer liquidity
preferences given the prevailing interest rate and economic climate.

The Company’s tax equivalent net interest margin was 3.91% in 2004 as compared to 3.99% in 2003 and 4.28% in 2002. Net
interest margin in 2004 decreased as interest-earning assets repriced more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities during the
continued low interest rate environment. The average yield earned on interest-earning assets decreased by 14 basis points in
2004, while the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased by only 8 basis points. Net interest margin for the
fourth quarter of 2004 was 3.94%, an improvement from third quarter 2004’s 3.90% and second quarter 2004°s 3.81%. This
linked-quarter margin improvement reflects the benefit of rising short-term interest rates, which increased 125 basis points
since June 30, 2004. In addition, linked-quarter performance benefited from higher security yields as mortgage-related
prepayment speeds slowed. Net interest margin declined during the first half of 2004 as a greater volume of interest-earning
assets began to reprice during that period of continued low interest rates. In part, the speed of this decline was accelerated as
a result of the impact of refinance related prepayments on mortgage-backed securities and certain measures taken by
management to better insulate net interest income and margin from the potential of future rising interest rates. The section
entitled “Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” commencing on page 38, describes the measures
taken during the year and discusses the techniques used to manage the volatility and other factors that affect net interest
margin and net interest income.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income increased $5.2 million to $79.4 million in 2004 from $74.2 million in 2003, largely the result of higher
realized security gains and lower debt extinguishment losses. These increases were offset by the absence in 2004 of gains
realized from the Company’s 2003 divesture of its two branches in Streator, Illinois. Excluding these transactions, the
Company’s noninterest income improved slightly to-$73.8 million in 2004 from $72.6 million in 2003.

As compared to 2003, increases in service charges on deposit accounts, card-based fees, and trust and investment
management fees were offset by a decline in other service charges, commissions, and fees, and other income. In 2004,
service charges on deposit accounts increased $913,000, primarily benefiting from higher fees received on items drawn on
customer accounts with insufficient funds. Card-based revenues improved $916,000 in 2004, reflecting the continuing
acceptance of debit card payment as an alternative to cash or check. Compared to 2003, trust and investment management
fees improved $1.1 million, or 10%, in 2004, as an 8.1% year over year increase in assets under management combined with
strong sales growth and improving equity markets to generate greater fee revenue. The $1.0 million decline in other service
charges, commissions, and fees reflects the impact of lower mortgage-related commissions, as refinancing activity slowed in
2004,

Excluding security gains, losses on the early extinguishment of debt, and gains realized from branch divestitures, noninterest
income increased by 9.1% in 2003 from 2002. All major categories of noninterest income increased in 2003, except for
corporate owned life insurance income. Service charges on deposit accounts increased by $2.6 million in 2003 as compared
to 2002, primarily due to higher revenue resulting from an increase in items drawn on customer accounts with insufficient
funds. In 2003, other service charges, commissions, and fees increased by $1.8 million in comparison to 2002, primarily due
to higher mortgage loan origination commissions resulting from a comparatively higher volume of originations in 2003’s
favorable interest rate environment. In addition, the increase in 2003 also reflects higher commissions received from the sale
of annuity, insurance, and investment products, reflecting the benefit of improved equity markets and targeted sales forces.

For a discussion on net security gains, refer to the section titled “Investment Portfolio Management” commencing on page 22
of this Form 10-K. For a discussion on losses on early extinguishment of debt, refer to the section titled “Funding and
Liquidity Management” commencing on page 32 of this Form 10-K. In 2003, the Company recognized a $4.6 million gain
on the divestiture of two branches in rural, Streator, Illinois. The transactions together increased noninterest income in 2004
and 2003 by $5.6 million and $1.6 million, respectively.
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Table 4
Noninterest Income Analysis
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

% Change

2004 2003 2002 2004-2003  2003-2002

Service charges on deposit accounts .................... $ 28837 § 27924 § 25362 33 10.1
Trust and investment management fees ............... 11,888 10,810 10,309 10.0 49
Other service charges, commissions, and fees ...... 15,147 16,187 14,349 (6.4) 12.8
Card-based fees V..., 9,252 8,336 7,895 11.0 5.6
Corporate owned life insurance (“COLI")®......... 4,939 5,059 6,728 (2.4) (24.8)
Other inCOME.......ooeviiiiiiiieeeee e 3,749 4,256 1,888 (11.9) 125.4
Subtotal.......ooveviiieic 73,812 72,572 66,531 1.7 9.1
Security gains, Net.......ocooerriiiinreieeeeeescenieens 8,222 2,988 460 N/M N/M
Net (losses) on early extinguishment of debt ........ (2,653) (6,025) - N/M N/M
Net gain from branch divestiture............cccocvrnnenn - 4,635 - N/M N/M
Total noninterest INCOME .......c..coveevveeeveenreann. $ 79381 § 74,170 § 66,991 7.0 10.7

N/M - Not meaningful.

" Card-based fees consist of debit and credit card interchange fees charged for processing signature-based transactions as well as various fees
charged on both customer and non-customer automated teller machine (“ATM”) and point-of-sale transactions processed through the ATM
and point of sale networks.

@ COLI income represents the increase in cash surrender value (“CSV”) of the policies, net of any premiums paid. The increase in CSV is

attributable to earnings credited to the policies, based upon investments made by the insurer. The tax equivalent yield on the COLI was

5.2%, 6.1% and 6.8% at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2003, respectively. For a further discussion on the Company’s investment in COLIL,

see Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense for 2004 rose $13.9 million to $163.3 million, an increase of 9.3% from 2003. This increase
reflects additional expenses associated with operating the CoVest franchise, including increases of $2.9 million in direct
salaries, $1.1 million in net occupancy expense, and $2.1 million in core deposit intangible amortization. The increase in
salaries and wages also reflects general merit increases as well as $981,000 higher expenses for incentive-related
compensation programs, which are based on Company performance. Retirement and other employee benefits increased as
the number of full-time equivalent employees grew due to the CoVest acquisition. In addition, pension costs rose by $1.3
million, driven by a decrease in the actuarial assumption for the expected return on plan assets, and employee health care
costs increased $1.7 million due to higher claims. Professional service fees rose as a result of higher fees for professional and
audit-related services, primarily related to compliance with new SEC requirements regarding internal controls. Advertising
and promotion costs also increased in 2004 from 2003 due to an increase in newspaper and print advertising, and merchant
card expense increased due to higher volumes. These increases in expenses were partially offset by a decrease in technology
and related costs in 2004, principally due to more favorable contract terms negotiated with the Company’s external data
service provider.

Noninterest expense totaled $149.5 million in 2003 as compared to $148.1 million in 2002 as increases in compensation
expense and advertising and promotions were offset by declines in technology and related costs, amortization expense, and
other expenses. The year over year increase in salaries and wages in 2003 from 2002 resulted from a combination of annual
merit increases and higher commissions paid for increased mortgage origination volumes. In 2003, the decline in technology
and related costs as compared to 2002 reflected the cost savings achieved from bringing “in-house” the backroom operation
of the items processing function.
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Table 5

Noninterest Expense Analysis
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

% Change
2004 2003 2002 2004-2003  2003-2002
Compensation EXPense:.....ccuereiveareeerenernrenes
Salaries and Wages.....c.cocovveenrrenininenne $ 68,907 § 64,736 § 61,834 6.4 4.7
Retirement and other employee benefits........ 23,264 19,548 18,792 19.0 4.0
Total compensation eXpense.......ccc.ocvvveverenne 92,171 84,284 80,626 9.4 4.5
Net OCCUPANCY EXPENSE .ovvrviirieeeierenierieneninerias 16,015 14,508 14,298 104 1.5
Equipment EXPense ........coovererinvceienienncnerne e 8,847 7,979 7,769 10.9 27
Technology and related costs .......cccccovrveeninee 6,681 8,913 9,796 (25.0) (9.0)
Professional SEIVICes ........occoeveeivenrrireceiinacnae 7,998 6,623 6,627 20.8 0.1
Advertising and promotions............cceccecererenenne. 5,043 4,563 4,195 10.5 8.8
Merchant card eXpense........cooccevvviverecineerniianens 4,012 3,595 3,540 11.6 1.6
AMOTtIZAtION EXPENSE....vrerrieeeerieirerreaerareenreenes 2,131 38 1,313 N/M (97.1)
Other EXPENSES ....evveerevereiriireriie e 20,440 18,949 19,888 7.9 4.7)
Total noninterest eXpense ......cocoevvveeeeeeerr e $ 163338 $ 149452 § 148,052 9.3 0.9
Average full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 1,641 1,540 1,525
Efficiency ratio .......cccccvveceeenninnnccnne e 50.1% 48.3% 48.2%

N/M - Not meaningful.
Income Taxes

The Company's provision for income taxes includes both Federal and state income tax expense. An analysis of the provision
for income taxes and the effective income tax rates for the periods 2002 through 2004 are detailed in Table 6.

Table 6
Income Tax Expense Analysis
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2004 2003 2002
Income before INCOME taX EXPENSE ..c.vevrrvvrrierireeeeisiieeeieee e sreseeee e $ 131,984 $ 123,667 $ 122,283
INCOIMIE LAX EXPEMSE 1ovvuviervirieerieerrarereeteseeseisessatsireseesessasaereeeesaseeseenaseeres $ 32,848 S 30,889 $ 32,133
Effective INCOME taX TALC.....covviiieiiiee ettt e, 24.9% 25.0% 26.3%

The Company’s accounting policies underlying the recognition of income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Condition
and Income are included in Notes | and 15 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47 and
63, respectively, of this Form 10-K. In accordance with such policies, the Company records income tax expense (benefits) in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Pursuant to SFAS No. 109, the Company recognizes
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Net deferred tax assets totaling $2.6 million at December 31, 2004 are recorded in
other assets in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Condition.

Under SFAS No. 109, a valuation allowance must be established for any deferred tax asset for which recovery or settlement
is unlikely. In assessing whether a valuation allowance is required, the Company considers the ability to realize the asset
through carry back to taxable income in prior years, the future reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, future
taxable income, and the possible application of future tax planning strategies. Based on this assessment, the Company has
determined that a valuation allowance is not required for any of the deferred tax assets it has recorded.
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The 2004 effective income tax rate reflected in the table is comprised of a Federal effective tax rate of 25.1% in 2004, 24.9%
in 2003, and 25.9% in 2002 and a state effective tax rate of (0.2%) in 2004, 0.1% in 2003, and 0.4% in 2002.

The Federal effective tax rate, and change in that rate, is primarily attributable to the amounts of tax-exempt income derived
from investment securities and COLL The state effective tax rate, and changes in that rate, is dependent on Illinois and lowa
income tax rules relating to consolidated/combined reporting, sourcing of income and expense, and the amount of tax-exempt
income derived from loans, investment securities, and COLIL

For further details regarding the Company’s effective tax rate, refer to Note 15 in “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” commencing on page 65 of this Form 10-K.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

The investment portfolio is managed to maximize the return on invested funds within acceptable risk guidelines, to meet
pledging and liquidity requirements, and to adjust balance sheet interest rate sensitivity to insulate net interest income against
the impact of changes in interest rates. The following provides a valuation summary of the Company’s investment portfolio
as of December 31.

Table 7
Investment Portfolio Valuation Summary
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

As of December 31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003 As of December 31, 2002
Market Amortized % of Market Amortized % of Market Amortized % of
Value Cost Total Value Cost Total Value Cost Total
Available for Sale
U.S. Agency securities... $ 142,022 § 141,928 64 § 219,404 3 219,406 9.8 S 201,757 $ 200,527 9.9
Collateralized mortgage
obligations .......coeceeee. 892,766 898,565 40.3 902,221 901,998 402 867,080 854,251 422
Other mortgage-backed
SECUTHES .oeovrivvererennnen, 396,717 393,353 17.7 261,462 255,586 114 282,660 272,546 13.5
State and Municipal
SECULIHIES .c.ovviveicries 585,000 566,425 254 759,780 706,741 31.5 573,528 529,608 26.1
Other securities............... 162,933 163,057 7.3 86,783 91,848 4.1 96,742 99,241 4.9
Total available for sale. 2,179,438 2,163,328 97.1 2,229,650 2,175,579 97.0 2,021,767 1,956,173 96.6
Held to Maturity
U.S. Treasury securities. 1,021 1,025 0.1 1,377 1,376 0.1 1,714 1,705 0.1
U.S. Agency securities... 448 449 - 176 176 - 127 126 -
State and Municipal
SECUTIHES ovvveviersiene 63,149 63,102 2.8 65,961 65,894 2.9 68,146 68,001 3.3
Total held to maturity... 64,618 64,576 2.9 67,514 67,446 3.0 69,987 69,832 3.4
Total securities ............. $ 2,244,056 § 2,227,904 1000 $ 2,297,164 § 2,243,025 1000 § 2,091,754 § 2026,005 100.0
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As of December 31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003

Effective Average Yield to Effective Average Yield to
Duration " Life ) Maturity Duration " Life ) Maturity
Available for Sale
U.S. Agency securities...........cooccu.... 0.56% 0.86 3.32% 0.29% 0.04 1.82%
Collateralized mortgage
obligations........cocvevienncriericerenen 1.33% 2.02 3.82% 1.55% 2.11 3.97%
Other mortgage-backed securities..... 3.15% 4.27 511% 2.81% 3.84 5.77%
State and Municipal securities .......... 5.15% 6.66 6.80% 5.70% 7.09 6.97%
Other securities ......ooceevrievienee e 0.39% 3.70 4.62% 2.11% 1.16 4.98%
Total available for sale................... 2.54% 3.69 4.86% 2.94% 3.68 4.98%
Held to Maturity
U.S. Treasury SE€CUTItES......ccocvvrenenee 0.34% 0.34 1.47% 0.34% 0.34 1.29%
U.S. Agency Securities ........c.cccuvene.. 0.34% 0.34 1.23% 0.34% 0.34 1.36%
State and Municipal securities.......... 0.81% 2.30 6.02% 1.42% 2.30 5.76%
Total held to maturity......c..ccoocenee. 0.80% 2.26 5.91% 1.39% 2.25 5.66%
Total securities ........cooevvceeerncnncnnenn 2.49% 3.65 4.89% 2.90% 3.64 5.00%

1 The effective duration on the portfolio represents the estimated percentage change in the market value of the securities portfolio given a
100 basis point change up or down in the level of interest rates. This measure is used as a gauge of the portfolio’s price volatility at a
single point in time and is not intended to be a precise predictor of future market values, as such values will be influenced by a number
of factors.

@ Average life is presented in years and represents the weighted-average time to receipt of all future cash flows, using as the
weighting factor the dollar amount of principal pay downs.

Securities that the Company believes could be sold prior to maturity in order to manage interest rate, prepayment, or liquidity
risk are classified as securities available for sale and are carried at fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses on this
portfolio segment are reported on an after-tax basis as a separate component of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Securities that the Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity are classified as
securities held to maturity and are accounted for using historical cost, adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of
discount.

At December 31, 2004, the available for sale securities portfolio totaled $2.18 billion as compared with $2.23 billion at
December 31, 2003. The $50.2 million decrease in the portfolio from year-end 2003 is primarily as a result of a $38.0
million decrease in the unrealized gain on available for sale securities,

The size and composition of the securities portfolio is influenced by a number of factors, including expected loan growth,
anticipated growth in collateralized public funds on account, and management’s decisions regarding the level of 1-4 family-
related asset exposure held on the balance sheet. This exposure represents both direct loans to customers and mortgage-
backed securities. In 2004, the Company held total 1-4 family residential loan exposure of $1.4 billion on its balance sheet,
$1.3 billion of which was concentrated in the Company’s security portfolio. Approximately 59% of the portfolio as of
December 31, 2004 was comprised of mortgage-backed securities as compared to 52% and 58%, respectively, at year-end
2003 and 2002. The concentration of this exposure in the securities portfolio offers the benefits of minimal credit risk,
improved liquidity, better monitoring of prepayment characteristics, and greater balance sheet flexibility for the cost of
accepting lower yields. As of December 31, 2004, the combination of the Company’s security portfolio and 1-4 family
residential loan portfolio represented 34.0% of total assets, down from 35.7% at the end of 2003 and 37.3% at the end of
2002.

The unrealized gain on the securities available for sale portfolio (representing the difference between the aggregate cost and
market value of the portfolio) totaled $16.1 million at December 31, 2004 as compared to $54.1 million at December 31,
2003. This balance sheet component will fluctuate as current market interest rates and conditions change, thereby affecting
the aggregate market value of the portfolio. The unrealized gain decreased due to a slightly higher level of interest rates at
the end of 2004 as compared with 2003. The decline in net unrealized portfolio appreciation and the decrease in duration
from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004 reflect the combined impact of the increase in interest rates and changes in
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portfolio composition. The level of unrealized gains affords the Company the flexibility to either extend portfolio duration
and receive higher yields or shorten duration and realize security gains as market opportunities present themselves in 2005.

Net gains realized from the Company’s securities portfolio totaled $8.2 million in 2004. During 2004, the Company
responded to changing market conditions and its continued expectation for higher interest rates, by selling $141.7 million in
higher-yielding, longer-term municipal securities, which resulted in the recognition of security gains totaling $9.5 million.
Security proceeds were reinvested in collateralized mortgage obligations with a comparatively lower duration. Realized
gains during 2004 were partially offset by a $5.4 million other-than-temporary impairment recognized on a single, Federal
National Mortgage Association preferred stock issuance during third quarter 2004.

Net gains on sales of securities increased in 2003 to $3.0 million from $0.5 million in 2002. The gains in 2003 occurred
primarily as part of certain balance sheet restructuring initiatives, designed to better position the Company for the possibility
of rising rates.

The repricing distribution and average yields, on a tax equivalent basis, of the securities portfolio at December 31, 2004 are
presented in Table 8.

Table 8

Repricing Distribution ard Portfolio Yields
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

As of December 31, 2004
One Year or Less One Year to Five Years Five Years to Ten Years After 10 years
Amortized Yieldto  Amortized Yield to Amortized Yield to Amortized Yield to
Cost Maturity Cost Maturity Cost Maturity Cost Maturity
Available for Sale
U.S. Agency securities ' ............ $ 85,041 3.63% $ 56,887 2.88% 8 . - 3 - -
Collateralized mortgage
obligations @ ..o, 162,133 4.10% 620,436 3.92% 86,519 4.04% 29,477 0.16%
Other mortgage-backed
securities @, 74,397 5.31% 169,390 5.13% 98,533 4.77% 51,033 5.10%
State and Municipal securities . 22,310 7.26% 235,127 7.18% 165,836 6.29% 143,152 6.51%
Other securities™ ........c......cc..... 126,246 4.67% 26,809 4.19% 9,918 5.99% 84
Total available for sale 470,127 4.51% 1,108,649 4.75% 360,806 5.33% 223,746 5.35%
Held to Maturity
U.S. Treasury securities............... 1,025 1.47% - - - - - -
U.S. Agency securities ................ 449 1.23% - - - - - -
State and municipal securities © . 22,302 5.30% 25,229 7.24% 1,470 5.90% 14,101 4.80%
Total held to maturity 23,776 5.06% 25,229 7.24% 1,470 5.90% 14,101 4.80%
Total securities............ccocoevrnnnnn. S 493,903 4.53% § 1,133,878 4.80% § 362276 533% § 237,847 5.32%

Y Yields on U.S. Agency securities are reflected on a tax equivalent basis, assuming a state tax rate of 5.1%.

@ The repricing distributions and yields to maturity of mortgage-backed securities are based upon estimated future cash flows and prepayments.
Actual repricings and yields of the securities may differ from that reflected in the table depending upon actual interest rates and prepayment
speeds.

®  Yields on state and municipal securities are reflected on a tax equivalent basis, assuming a Federal tax rate of 35%. The maturity date of state
and municipal bonds is based on contractual maturity, unless the bond, based on current market prices, is deemed to have a high probability that
the call will be exercised, in which case the call date is used as the maturity date.

@ Yields on other securities are reflected on a tax equivalent basis, assuming a Federal tax rate of 35%. The maturity of government agency

stocks is based on management’s judgment of repricing characteristics or final maturity. The maturity date of other securities is based on
contractual maturity or repricing characteristics.
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LOAN PORTFOLIO AND CREDIT QUALITY

Loans are the Company’s principal source of revenue. The Company’s revenue from lending activities is primarily
represented by interest income, but it also includes loan origination and commitment fees (net of related costs). The
accounting policies underlying the recording of loans in the Consolidated Statements of Condition and the recognition and/or
deferral of interest income and fees (net of costs) arising from lending activities are included in Notes 1 and 5 of “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47 and 56, respectively, of this Form 10-K.

Portfolio Management and Composition

The Company looks to balance its portfolio among the categories of commercial and industrial loans (including agricultural
loans), real estate loans (both commercial and construction loans), and consumer loans (including real estate 1-4 family
loans), according to internal policy and as dictated by market and economic conditions. By policy, the Company limits its
exposure to real estate and commercial and construction lending to 50% of total loans, commercial and industrial lending to
38% of total loans and consumer lending to 35% of total loans.

The Company concentrates its lending activities in the geographic areas it serves. Consistent with the Company’s emphasis
on relationship banking, most of these credits represent core, multi-relationship customers of the Company. The customers
usually maintain deposit relationships and use other Company banking services, such as cash management.

The Company also reduces its credit risk by limiting its exposure to any one borrower. Although the Company's legal lending
limit approximates $146.3 million, the largest loan balance to one borrower at year-end 2004 was $22.3 million, and only 27
borrowers had aggregate loan balances outstanding in excess of $10 million. In terms of commitments to extend credit, the
Company’s largest exposure to a single borrower is $30.0 million and to a group of related companies comprising a single
relationship is $37.8 million. The Company had only 20 credits in the portfolio where total commitments to extend credit to
a single borrower relationship exceeded $20 million.
Table 9
Loan Portfolio
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

As of December 31,

% of % of % of % of % of
2004 Total 2003 Total 2002 Total 2001 Total 2000 Total
Commercial and industrial . $ 1,146,168 27.7 S 1,052,117 259 §  897.845 264 $ 827281 245 § 817,208 253
Agricultural......coccerennnann. 107,059 2.6 94,983 2.3 91,381 2.7 87,188 2.6 67,736 2.1
Real estate - commercial ..... 1,493,855 36.1 1,393,420 343 1,019,989 29.9 998,857 29.6 900,781 279
Real estate - construction.... 427,248 10.4 453,429 11.2 344,509 10.1 314,993 9.4 272,647 3.4
Subtotal — corporate loans 3,174,330 76.8 2,993,949 73.7 2,353,724  69.1 2,228,319 66.1 2,058,372 63.7
Direct instaliment, net ......... 71,986 1.7 88,147 22 96,807 2.8 110,365 33 107,692 33
Home equity .o 504,705 12.2 455,014 11.2 407,241 11.9 385,576 11.4 372,044 11.5
Indirect installment, net...... 291,745 7.1 352,427 8.7 410,772 12.1 451,305 13.4 444 453 13.8
Subtotal — consumer loans 868,436  21.0 895,588 22.1 914,820  26.8 947,246 28.1 924,189 28.6
Real estate — 1-4 family....... 92,512 2.2 170,245 4.2 138,302 4.1 196,741 5.8 250,635 7.7
Total \ooviveeee e, S 4,135278 100.0 § 4,059,782 100.0 § 3406846 100.0 § 3372306 1000 S 3,233,196 100.0

Growth vs. prior year-end... 1.9% 19.2% 1.0% 43% 9.1%

The Company’s total loans at December 31, 2004 increased 1.9% from December 31, 2003, as increases in corporate lending
offset decreases in consumer loans and 1-4 family real estate lending. Corporate loan balances as of December 31, 2004
increased by 6.0% from year-end 2003, primarily due to continued increases in commercial, agricultural, and commercial real
estate lending. The increase in commercial and commercial real estate loans reflects the impact of continuing sales efforts

and customers drawing upon existing lines of credit, while real estate construction loans declined by 5.8% as certain loans
matured.

Total loans at December 31, 2003 were 19.2% higher than at December 31, 2002, primarily due to loans acquired as part of
the CoVest Acquisition. Excluding the $530.8 million in loans the Company acquired from CoVest, total loans increased
approximately 3.6% over 2002 as all loan categories experienced growth except for 1-4 family real estate and indirect
consumer lending.
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As of December 31, 2004, corporate loans (defined as commercial and industrial, agricultural, commercial real estate and real
estate construction loans) represented 76.8% of total loans outstanding as compared to 73.7% in 2003 and 69.1% in 2002. In
2004, the percentage of corporate loans grew as a result of strong sales activity, management’s decision to exit its marginally
profitable indirect lending business, and the shift of the Company’s exposure to 1-4 family mortgages to its security portfolio.
The Company seeks to maintain a diversified portfolio of corporate loans to minimize its exposure to any particular industry
or any segment of the economy.

Real estate commercial and construction lending has always been an area of specialty for the Company. Because of the
strength of the suburban Chicago real estate market over the past several years, real estate commercial and construction
lending grew to approximately 47% of the Company’s total loans as of December 31, 2004. The combination of seasoned,
long-time borrowers, experienced senior lending officers, management’s focus on market fundamentals, and a stringent
underwriting process gives the Company a competitive market advantage. These factors and a balanced exposure to any
particular industry segment have reduced the Company’s exposure to loss.

Real estate commercial loans consist of income-producing commercial property loans, multi-unit residential mortgages, and
commercial real estate mortgages. Approximately 20% of the Company’s real estate commercial loans represent multi-
family loans made to real estate companies and to individual investors to finance or refinance apartment buildings. These
apartment buildings are primarily concentrated in the metropolitan Chicago area and typically range in size from five units up
to twenty-four units, although larger projects may range up to 100 units or more. The Company believes that this type of
lending helps diversify its already strong commercial and multifamily development real estate platform and represents an
opportunity for growth.

Real estate construction loans are primarily single-family and multi-family residential and non-residential projects located in
the Company’s primary markets. Real estate construction loans are a profitable line of lending for the Company due to the
higher level of interest rates and fees earned on such loans as compared to other loan categories and the favorable loss
experience on these loans.

Table 10 on page 27 of this Form 10-K specifies the Company’s corporate loan portfolio, including commercial and
industrial loans, by industry segment and illustrates the diversity of its loan portfolio. Table 11 on page 27 of this Form 10-K
summarizes the loan portfolio’s maturities and interest rate sensitivity.

As of December 31, 2004, consumer loans (including real estate 1-4 family loans) represented 23.2% of total loans
outstanding as compared to 26.3% in 2003 and 30.9% in 2002. The decrease reflects lower indirect consumer loan and real
estate 1-4 family loans. Indirect consumer lending has declined as the Company slowed new volumes by tightening
underwriting stancdards in 2002 and decided to exit this marginally profitable business in 2004. The home equity category
represents the single largest and fastest growing portion of the consumer portfolio, consisting mainly of revolving lines of
credit secured by junior liens on owner occupied real estate. As a general rule, loan to value ratios for these credits range
from 70% to 90%.

Consumer loan balances as of December 31, 2004 decreased 3.0% from December 31, 2003 reflecting two asset
redeployment decisions elected by management. First, the Company converted $74.2 million of certain 1-4 family residential
mortgages into an investment security during the fourth quarter of 2004, Second, the Company exited its marginally
profitable indirect consumer lending business, resulting in a year-over-year $60.7 million reduction of loan outstandings from
December 31, 2003. This decline was partially offset in 2004 by increased home equity line sales activity, resulting from
pricing and promotional activities.

Real estate 1-4 family loans further declined in 2004 as customers continued to refinance loans in the low interest rate
environment. The Company retains originated variable rate and certain other qualifying mortgages, while selling all other
originations through a third party provider. As previously discussed in the section titled “Investment Portfolio Management™
commencing on page 22 of this Form 10-K, the Company’s portfolio exposure to 1-4 family real estate is balanced with that
embedded in its securities portfolio, as these assets tend to be longer in duration and have similar risk characteristics.

Distribution of Corporate Loans By Industry
Table 10 summarizes the Company’s ten largest industry segments for the corporate loan portfolio as of December 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002. The effectiveness of such analysis, however, is limited to the extent that classification by segment requires

that allocation of a customer’s aggregate loans outstanding be based upon the nature of the borrower’s ongoing business
activity as opposed to the purpose of the collateral underlying an individual loan. To the extent that a borrower’s underlying
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business activity changes, classification differences will arise. As a result, the Company periodically reassesses and adjusts
industry classifications.
Table 1¢
Corporate Loan Portfolic by Industry Segment "
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002

% of % of % of

Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

Lessors of commercial real estate ................ $ 503,383 158 § 458,668 153 § 431,844 18.4
Lessors of multifamily residential................ 297,567 9.4 325,798 10.9 61,664 2.6
Manufacturing trade ........c.oc..ocvveerierieicncnn 237,933 7.5 213,627 7.1 179,634 7.6
Residential building construction................. 228,364 7.2 190,915 6.4 115,995 4.9
Retailer trade .....cccooovvieei i 184,167 58 163,950 5.5 145,157 6.2
Wholesaler trade.........c.cocooveeviriieiciecirean, 172,784 5.4 163,499 54 149,046 6.3
Land subdivision and land development...... 184,529 5.8 140,407 4.7 147,824 6.3
Heavy construction and trade contractors .... 132,430 42 138,410 4.6 131,517 5.6
Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and hunting.... 150,056 4.7 137,239 4.6 143,517 6.1
Nonresidential building construction ........... 83,585 2.6 115,622 39 118,750 5.0
Subtotal oo 2,174,798 68.4 2,048,135 68.4 1,624,948 69.0
All other segments..........cccoooveceieiiniencnnen 999,532 31.6 945,814 31.6 728,776 31.0
Total oo $ 3,174,330 1000 § 2,993,949 1000 $ 2,353,724 100.0

() Classified pursuant to the North American Industrial Classification System standard industry descriptions.

The Company believes its loan portfolio is diversified across industries and market segments. The increase in loans made to
Lessors of multi-family residential real estate from 2002 to 2003 was primarily due to the CoVest Acquisition.

Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity of Corporate Loans

Table 11 summarizes the maturity distribution of the Company's corporate loan portfolio as of December 31, 2004 as well as
the interest rate sensitivity of loans in these categories that have maturities in excess of one year.

Table 11
Maturities and Sensitivities of Corporate Loans to Changes in Interest Rates
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Due in Due after 1
1 year year through Due after
or less S years 5 years Total
Commercial, industrial, and agricultural........ $ 776,109 $ 444581 § 32,537 % 1,253,227
Real estate - commercial .......cccoovvveeevirncinn, 309,242 984,781 199,832 1,493,855
Real estate - construction.........coeeeeviveveienncns 299,426 127,822 - 427,248
TOtal. vt S 1,384,777 $ 1,557,184 § 232,369 S§ 3,174,330
Loans maturing after one year:
Predetermined (fixed) interest rates ............ $ 839,460 § 86,462
Floating interest rates............cocoevrvceneennen 717,724 145,907
Total. o $ 1,557,184  § 232,369
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Credit Quality Management and Reserve for Loan Losses

In addition to the portfolio diversification previously discussed, the Company has established a thorough system of internal
controls to mitigate credit risk, including standard lending and credit policies, underwriting criteria and collateral safeguards.
The Company monitors and implements its formal credit policies and procedures and continues to evaluate the quality,
trends, collectibility, and collateral protection within the loan portfolio. The Company’s policy and procedures are regularly
reviewed and modified in order to manage risk as conditions change and new credit products are offered.

The Company’s credit administration policies include a comprehensive loan rating system. The internal loan review staff
annually reviews at least 70% of all corporate loans and commitments and all new loans and commitments in excess of $1
million. Account officers are vested with the responsibility of monitoring their customer relationships and act as the first line
of defense in determining changes in the loan ratings on credits for which they are responsible. The Company believes that
any significant change in the overall quality of the loan portfolio will be reflected by these loan ratings within this monitoring
system.

The Company’s senior managers actively review those loans that require some form of remediation. Those loans are
reviewed at regular quarterly meetings between the credit administration staff and the account officers, and action plans are
developed to either remedy any emerging problem loans or develop a specific plan for removing such loans from the
portfolio. Such periodic reviews are then escalated for review by senior executive officers, including the Chief Executive
Officer. During times of economic duress, the Company has increased the frequency of these meetings.

The Company maintains a reserve for loan losses to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The reserve for
loan losses consists of three components: (i) specific reserves established for expected losses resulting from analysis
developed through specific credit allocations on individual loans for which the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the
measured value of the loan; (ii) reserves based on historical loan loss experience for each loan category; and (iii) reserves
based on general, current economic conditions as well as specific economic factors believed to be relevant to the markets in
which the Company operates. Management evaluates the sufficiency of the reserve for loan losses based upon the combined
total of the specific, historical loss and general components.

The accounting policies underlying the establishment and maintenance of the reserve for loan losses through provisions
charged to operating expense are discussed in Notes 1 and 6 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing
on pages 47 and 57, respectively, of this Form 10-K.

Table 12 shows the allocation of the reserve for loan losses by loan category, as well as charge-off and recovery information
for the last 5 years. During 2003, the Company expanded its reserve assessment to fully allocate its general reserve
component to specific pools or groups of loans, thereby better linking its assessment of the underlying risks attributed to each
loan category. To facilitate comparison, 2002’s allocation by category has been restated to reflect this change in
methodology. Data presented for periods prior to 2002 was not restated due to the absence of sufficient, comparable data.
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Table 12
Reserve for Loan Losses and
Summary of Loan Loss Experience
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Change in reserve for loan losses:

Balance at beginning of year.........cccocoeviveneriienns $ 56,404 § 47,929 § 47,745 § 45,093 § 42,645
Loans charged-off.......c..coooiiiveeiii e (15,081) (12,105) (18,177) (19,330) (9,149)
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off.......... 2,472 2,555 2,951 2,898 2,503
Net loans charged-off ..o, (12,609) (9,550) (15,226) (16,432) (6,646)
Provisions charged to operating expense............... 12,923 10,805 15,410 19,084 9,094
Reserve of acquired bank...........ocooooiiiiinniiinnn, - 7,220 - - -

Balance atend of year.........ocooooivviiiiiniiiieie $ 56,718 § 56,404 $ 47929 $§ 47745 § 45,093

Allocation of reserve for loan losses by loan category

at December 31¢;

Commercial and industrial ..........cccooeeviiiiiniiinicee, § 22,065 § 18,526 $ 14012 § 10,886 §$ 10,193

AGLICULTUTAL ..o 1,353 1,297 1,503 1,674 2,338

Real estate - commercial ........oooocoveeeiiiieciiiec e, 17,343 15,704 12,390 2,600 4,957

Real estate - construction ............ccooeoeeeeeiee e, 5,924 6,286 4,722 1,459 1,472

CONSUIMET ..ottt e ere e eeeas 9,653 13,959 14,896 13,399 10,238

Real estate - 1-4 family ..o 380 632 406 155 1,204

Other unallocated..........ocoeveveiiiiiiieec e - - - 17,572 14,691
TOtAL e $ 56,718 3§ 56,404 47929 § 47,745 § 45,093

Reserve as a percent of loans at year-end.................... 1.37% 1.39% 1.41% 1.42% 1.39%
Loans charged-off:

Commercial and industrial ...........ccooooeiiiinccieninn, $ (7,741 § (3,941) $§ (4967) § (4,620) § (2,560)

Agricultural ... (18) (5) (1,283) (104) -

Real estate - commercial c.......coooveeeiniiiiiriieceeeecn (1,543) (317) (591) (3,119) (159)

Real estate - construction .........cccevvveerevrecneeinenene, (355) (750) (1,123) - -

CONSUMET ...t (5,311) (6,954) (10,126) (11,363) (6,253)

Real estate - 1-4 family ........cccooovviiecininin e (113) (138) (87) (124) (177)
TOAL et $ (15,081) § (12,105 § (18,177 § (19,330) § (9,149

Recoveries on loars previously charged-off:

Commercial and industrial ..o % 699 § 547 § 339§ 363§ 531

Agricultural ........coooiiiiiii e 2 1 22 1 -

Real estate - commercial...........ocecveeniiininccenriiaeenn 173 93 21 - 15

Real estate - CONSIUCHON ..ceieiiiierinenc e - 506 - - -

CONSUMET ..c.iviveeee vttt sea v 1,593 1,408 2,569 2,534 1,957

Real estate - 1-4 family ..........ocooveeiiecce e, 5 - - - -
TOtal. oot $ 2472 § 2,555 § 2951 § 2898 $§ 2,503

Net loans charged-off:

Commercial and industrial .........c..ooceeiiviviiee e, $ (7,042) S (3,394) § (4628) $ (4257) $ (2,029)

Agricultural ..o (16) 4) (1,261) (103) -

Real estate - commercial.........cccovveirineineiniinene, (1,370) (224) (570) (3,119) (144)

Real estate - COnStrUCHON ..o.coeveieiiiicve e, (355) (244) (1,123) - -

COMNSUMET . ittt a e (3,718) (5,546) (7,557) (8,829) (4,296)

Real estate - 1-4 family .....ccccovoveerevniiniiineie e (108) (138) (&87) (124) (177)
TOtal..ovii e $ (12,609) $ 9,550) § (15226) § (16,432) $ (6,646)

Ratio of net loans charged-off to average loans
outstanding for the period ... 0.30% 0.28% 0.45% 0.49% 0.21%

M In 2003, the reserve assignment methodology was altered to fully allocate all components of the loan loss reserve by category with 2002 data being
restated to reflect this change. For the years 2000 and 2001, the “other” component of the reserve represented that portion of the reserve based
upon general factors, including recent net charge-off experience as well as economic and business conditions, but not allocated by category.
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As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s reserve for loan losses totaled $56.7 million as compared to $56.4 million as of
December 31, 2003 and $47.9 million as of December 31, 2002, The ratio of reserve for loan losses to total loans at year-end
2004 was 1.37%, down from 1.39% at year-end 2003 and 1.41% at the end of 2002. The 2004 reserve for loan losses
increased by $314,000 or 0.6%, from 2003. The 2003 increase in overall reserve was due to the purchase of $7.2 million of
loan loss reserves and $530.8 million in loans as part of the CoVest Acquisition. The acquired loan loss reserves represented
1.36% of the loans purchased.

The provision for loan losses increased in 2004 to $12.9 million compared to $10.8 million in 2003, following a decrease
from $15.4 million in 2002, The 2004 provision for loan losses exceeded the year's net charge-offs by $314,000. Total loans
charged off, net of recoveries, were $12.6 million, or 0.30% of average loans, in 2004 and $9.6 million, or 0.28% of average
loans, in 2003.

Gross charge-offs increased in 2004 to $15.1 million from $12.1 million in 2003 and $18.2 million in 2002, with increases in
commercial and industrial and commercial real estate charge-offs, partially offset by a decline in consumer charge-offs. The
lower level of charge-offs in 2003 primarily benefited from a tightening of the underwriting standards for the indirect lending
portfolio initiated in 2002 as the economy weakened. In addition, the level of corporate charge-offs in 2002 and 2001 were
elevated as the Company recognized the weakening economy and adopted an aggressive problem loan identification and
charge-off strategy.

The Company increased the reserve for loan losses allocated to the commercial and industrial and commercial real estate
categories in 2004 from 2003 due to loan growth, as well as elevated losses attributed to loans acquired from and originated
by CoVest. Reserve allocations to the consumer loan portfolio decreased in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of improved
delinquency and charge-off trends as the portfolio mix shifted from higher-risk, indirect lending to lower-risk home equity
lending.

In 2003, allocation of the Company’s reserve to the commercial and industrial, real estate commercial, and real estate
construction categories increased as compared to 2002, due in large part to comparatively higher exposures to single
borrowers and portfolio growth amid concerns relative to the continuing level of economic weakness. The growth in the
commercial reserve allocation was also caused by an increase in specific reserves relating to the higher level of impaired
loans. These category increases were partly offset by improved delinquency and charge-off trends in all corporate lending
areas. Reserve allocations to the consumer loan portfolio decreased in relation to 2002 due to improved delinquency and
charge-off trends.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include: loans for which the accrual of interest has been discontinued; loans for which the terms have
been renegotiated to provide for a reduction or deferral of interest and principal due to a weakening of the borrower’s
financial condition; and real estate that has been acquired primarily through foreclosure and is awaiting disposition. For a
detailed discussion on the Company’s policy on accrual of interest on loans see Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K.

Loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest are not included in nonperforming assets and continue to accrue interest

because they are adequately secured by collateral and/or are in the process of collection and are reasonably expected to result
in repayment or restoration to current status.
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The following table summarizes nonperforming assets and past due loans for the past five years as well as certain information
relating to interest income on nonaccrual loans outstanding during 2004.

Table 13
Nonperforming Assets and Past Due Loans
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial and industrial..........ccooevieviiiiierieiienen, $§ 11267 § 5817 § 398 $ 8,181 S 6,407
Agricultural. ..o - 169 241 1,420 33
Real estate - commercial...........ccoccooiiiiieivceicciinn 1,774 1,823 4,096 1,737 7,694
Real estate - construction........cc.ooveeeiriiiivieeceiveeeneeenn 4,159 4,331 1,000 1,903 397
CONSUMET ..ottt e 1,416 1,516 1,803 1,796 2,043
Real estate - 1-4 family..........cccoooiiiiii e, 581 2,274 1,399 1,810 3,275
Total nonaccrual 10ans ........cc.cooovvoii 19,197 15,930 12,525 16,847 19,849
Restructured 10808 ........ocooovvviivieieee e - 7,137 - - -
Total nonperforming 10ans ........cccocoovveriee i 19,197 23,067 12,525 16,847 19,849
Foreclosed real estate.........c.cooeviviioiiiciiieeieee e, 3,736 5,812 5,496 3,630 1,337
Total nonperforming assets .......ccoevvieviiveeevnre e, 22,933 28,879 18,021 20,477 21,186
90 days past due loans (still accruing interest) ............... 2,658 3,384 3,307 5,783 7,045
Total nonperforming assets plus
90 days past due 10ans.........ccceceeviomiveeevroseirenenn $ 25591 § 32263 S§ 21,328 § 26260 $ 28231
Nonperforming loans to total loans...........cccoocerennreenen, 0.46% 0.57% 0.37% 0.50% 0.61%
Nonperforming assets to total loans
plus foreclosed real estate ..o 0.55% 0.71% 0.33% 0.61% 0.65%
Nonperforming assets plus 90 days past due loans
to total loans plus foreclosed real estate ..................... 0.62% 0.79% 0.63% 0.78% 0.87%
Nonperforming assets to total assets........ccooverrrrirenenn. 0.33% 0.42% 0.30% 0.36% 0.36%
Reserve for loan losses as a percent of:
Total loans at year-end ...........cccceeeiiiiiiiviiirincineennnn, 1.37% 1.39% 1.41% 1.42% 1.39%
Nonperforming 10ans...........cccocvericeiiniecncrinnnreenn, 295% 245% 383% 283% 227%
2004
The effect of nonaccrual loans on interest income for 2004 is presented below:
Interest which would have been included at the normal CONTract rateS...........cooivviiveierieee e $ 3,406
Interest included in INCOME AUIINE The YEAL......cociiiiiiriitiicitie st ettt ettt se e ere s (304)
Interest income not recognized in the financial StAEMENTS .........ocooiiiiioiiiiiiie e e $ 3,102

Nonperforming assets at December 31, 2004 totaled $22.9 million, a decline of $5.9 million from $28.9 million at year-end
2003. As of December 31, 2004, nonperforming assets plus loans 90 days past due totaled $25.6 million and represented
0.62% of loan plus foreclosed real estate improved as compared to 2003 and 2002°s levels of 0.79% and 0.63%, respectively.
Nonperforming asset levels improved in 2004 as two renegotiated credits totaling $7.1 million returned to performing status
in first quarter 2004 due to sustained borrower performance pursuant to the restructured terms and management’s expectation
of continuing performance. These troubled credits were renegotiated pursuant to existing market terms during second quarter
2003 and were included in nonperforming assets as of December 31, 2003. These two loans, along with the acquisition of
$4.9 million in total nonaccruing loans acquired as part of the CoVest Acquisition, drove the increase in nonperforming
assets in 2003 as compared to 2002.
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Nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2004 totaled $19.2 million, compared with $15.9 million at year-end 2003 and $12.5
million at year-end 2002. The $3.3 million increase in 2004 was due to a $5.5 million increase in commercial nonaccrual
loans, primarily the result of three credits moved to nonaccrual status in 2004. The increase was partially offset by a $1.7
million decrease in 1-4 family real estate nonaccrual loans. The $3.4 million increase in total nonperforming loans in 2003
reflected an increase of $5.2 million in nonperforming commercial and industrial and real estate construction loans, partially
offset by a decrease of $2.3 million in real estate commercial. The increase in 2003 in nonperforming commercial and
industrial and real estate construction loans was principally due to the $4.9 million of nonaccruing loans acquired from
CoVest. The loans acquired were comprehensively reviewed by the Company and deemed to be appropriately valued. The
ratio of the reserve for loan losses to nonperforming loans at year-end 2003 was 245%, down from 2002’s historical high of
383%.

In addition to the loans summarized in Table 13, on December 31, 2004, the Company had $47.0 million of loans that are
now performing, but for which the Company had some concern with the ability of the borrower to comply with existing loan
repayment terms. This amount decreased from $72.3 million at year-end 2003, following an increase from $27.1 million at
year-end 2002. These loans continue to perform under existing terms and accrue interest. The Company anticipates that the
type of restructure, guarantee, additional collateral, or such planned action will reflect the full liquidation of debt. The
classification of these loans, however, does not imply that management expects losses on these loans but rather that a higher
level of scrutiny is prudent under the circumstances. 2004’s decrease and 2003’s increase as compared to the prior year
reflects the identification and subsequent improvement of two large credit relationships, which management believed
warranted greater scrutiny at the end of 2003 given the state of the economy and the circumstances of the borrower. In
addition, the increase in 2003’s classification as compared to 2002 stems, in large part, from the acquisition of the CoVest
portfolio on December 31, 2003, as well as management’s concerns about the stability of the economy at the end of 2003.

FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

Liquidity management is the ability to provide funding sources at a minimum cost to meet fluctuating deposit, withdrawal,
and loan demand needs. The Company's liquidity policy establishes parameters as to how liquidity should be managed to
maintain flexibility in responding to changes in liquidity needs over a 12-month forward period, including the requirement to
formulate a quarterly liquidity compliance plan for review by the Bank’s Board of Directors. The compliance plan includes
an analysis that measures projected needs to purchase and sell funds. Inherent in the analysis is a set of projected balance
sheet assumptions that are updated quarterly throughout the year. Based on such assumptions, the Company determines its
total cash liquidity on hand and adds to that position excess collateral capacity from pledging, unused Federal funds
purchased lines, and other unused borrowing capacity such as Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances, resulting in a
calculation of the Company’s total liquidity capacity. The Company’s total policy-directed liquidity requirement is 7.5% of
total sources (demand deposits, interest-bearing transactions deposits, retail time deposits, other borrowings, and other
liabilities and equity) less pledged deposits. Based upon the Company’s projections as of December 31, 2004, the Company
expects to have net excess liquidity capacity, based upon policy guidelines, for the forward twelve-month period.

The liquidity needs of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. on an unconsolidated basis (“Parent Company”) consist primarily of
operating expenses and dividend payments to its stockholders. The primary source of liquidity for the Parent Company is
dividends from subsidiaries. At December 31, 2004, the Parent Company had short-term credit facilities available to fund
cash flow needs totaling $50.0 million. The Parent Company also has the ability to enhance its liquidity position by raising
capital or incurring debt. The Parent Company had $129.3 million in subordinated debt from trust preferred securities but
had no debt outstanding under its short-term credit facilities as of year-end 2004. The Parent Company had cash and
equivalent short-term investments of $59.9 million as of such date.

Total deposits and borrowed funds as of December 31, 2004 are summarized in Notes 9 and 10 of the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” commencing on pages 59 and 60 of this Form 10-K, respectively. Table 14 provides a year-to-year
comparison of the sources of the Company's liability funding based upon average balances over the last three years.
Average, rather than period-end, balances are more meaningful in analyzing the Company's funding sources because of the
inherent fluctuations that occur on a monthly basis within most deposit categories.
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Tabie 14
Funding Sources - Average Balances
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

% Change
% % %
2004 of Total 2003 of Total 2002 of Total  2004-2003 2003-2002
Demand deposits ................. $ 894,093 143 § 806,777 143 § 744,295 13.9 10.8 84
Savings deposits .........oc...... 646,214 103 498,798 89 454,588 85 29.6 9.7
NOW accounts.......oooeevennnn., 921,635 14.7 813,993 145 723,634 13.5 13.2 12.5
Money market accounts....... 732,456 11.7 616,868 11.0 552,440 10.3 18.7 11.7
Transactional deposits ......... 3,194,398 51.0 2,736,436 48.7 2,474,957 46.2 16.7 10.6
Time deposits......cccceevrneenn. 1,474,734 235 1,504,424 26.7 1,706,402 31.8 (2.0) (11.8)
Brokered deposits ................ 221,624 3.5 95,337 1.7 32,615 0.6 132.5 1623
Total deposits............... 4,890,756 78.0 4,336,197 77.1 4,213,974 78.6 12.8 2.9
Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase.. 490,272 7.8 554,281 9.8 519,113 9.6 (11.5) 6.8
Federal Funds purchased
and other borrowed funds . 763,147 12.2 722,335 12.8 630,915 11.8 5.7 14.5
Total borrowed funds........... 1,253,419 20.0 1,276,616 22.6 1,150,028 21.4 (1.8) 11.0
Subordinated debt-trust
preferred securities............ 128,454 2.0 15,515 0.3 - - 727.9 N/M
Total funding sources.... $§ 6,272,629 1000 § 5,628,328 100.L0 $§ 5,364,002 100.0 114 49

N/M - Not meaningful.

The Company’s total average deposits for 2004 increased 12.8% from 2003, largely the result of its acquisition of $465.7
million in deposits as part of the CoVest Acquisition. The current mix of average deposits shifted somewhat over the past
two years as transactional deposits currently represent 51.0% of total funding sources. In 2004 and 2003, the Company
focused its sales efforts on increasing core funding sources from transactional deposits, as these funding costs are generally
less expensive and less price sensitive than wholesale borrowed funds. As discussed in the section entitled “Qualitative and
Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” commencing on page 38 of this Form 10-K, these efforts were consistent with
the Company’s strategy to reduce its exposure to increases in market interest rates.

The pricing strategies in 2004 and 2003, the overall low level of interest rates, and instability in the equity markets have
combined to create an incentive for customers seeking liquidity to retain balances in transactional accounts as opposed to
shifting them to longer-term time deposits. Given the expectation that equity markets will stabilize and interest rates will
increase in 2005, management expects that customer liquidity preferences will change and some portion of transactional
balances will revert to time deposits as influenced by then existent pricing and competition.

Included as a part of the Company’s total funding sources are public balances, denoting the funds held on account for
municipalities and other public entities. Public balances represent an important customer segment for the Company, and
reflects the community-based roots of the Company. The Company enters into specific agreements with public customers to
pledge collateral, primarily securities, in support of the balances on account. Because the average customer tenure with the
Company is 18 years, they provide the Company with a reliable, lower cost, short-term funding source for its securities
portfolio than are available through other wholesale alternatives. These relationships also provide numerous cross-sell and
business referral opportunities.

For 2004, the Company had average public funds on account totaling $635.9 million, and approximately 95% of these funds
were collateralized. Of this total, $478.3 million was held in deposit accounts, with the remainder representing securities sold
under agreement to repurchase. This contrasts to average balances maintained of $675.3 million in 2003 and $640.0 million
in 2002. Year-to-year changes in balances are influenced by the tax collection activities of the various municipalities as well
as the general level of interest rates. The size of the Company’s securities portfolio is influenced, in part by the size of its
public customer base. For additional discussion of the securities portfolio, refer to “Investment Portfolio Management”
commencing on page 22 of this Form 10-K.
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Table 15
Maturities of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2004
Maturing Within 3 TOMTNS ...c.oeiiiie ettt et et e e e e es e et b e ete e e e e easaeneesteasteebaanneeoeeaneeneeerenns $ 175,339
After 3 But WIthin 6 TOMTHS Lottt ettt e et eete e e et raeae e e nteeerae s e aeetb e s e e e etae e 104,919
After 6 but Within 12 mMONEAS .ottt sb et etr e et ra et a e b e neae s b e ntras 103,284
ATEE 12 MONEHS oottt et et s et e e b e eabestr et beesbe st b e esaeerseasbestt et s are e resseen st aasasseenbaens 135236
TOTAL oottt ettt ettt a1t bt b ettt ettt be et b etbe e eresareeae e besebe et etb e at e e sataaneeans $ 518,778
Table 16
Borrowed Funds
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
2004 2003 2002
Amount Rate (%) Amount Rate (%) Amount Rate (%)
At year-end:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase  $ 404,589 201 | § 564,709 076 | $ 384,408 1.21
Federal funds purchased..........c...cccocovviveneinnnne. 300,000 2.28 315,000 1.01 278,000 1.24
Federal Home Loan Bank advances................. 513,743 1.81 491,373 2.35 575,000 3.72
Other borrowed funds ........cocovveviviiieiiiene - - 590 0.94 - -
Total borrowed funds .........ccoooveieicniiveenan $ 1,218,332 200 | $ 1,371,672 1.39 | § 1,237,408 2.38
Average for the year:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase  $§ 490,272 1.33 $ 554,281 0.87 $ 519,113 1.65
Federal funds purchased............cccooovriviirinennne 243,790 1.37 233,119 1.19 193,929 1.72
Federal Home Loan Bank advances................. 519,327 2.14 489,014 3.34 436,986 3.98
Other borrowed funds ..o 30 0.80 202 1.49 - -
Total borrowed funds ........ccooveiiiiiennnn, $ 1,253,419 1.67 | $§ 1,276,616 1.88 | § 1,150,028 2.55
Maximum month-end balance:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 644,383 S 742,164 $ 621,630
Federal funds purchased..............ccocccvviennnne 365,000 360,000 278,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances................. 531,124 575,000 575,000
Other borrowed funds ..o e, 159 2,500 -

Average borrowed funds totaled $1,253.4 million, representing a decrease of $23.2 million, or 1.8%, from 2003 after
increasing $126.6 million, or 11.0%, in 2003 over 2002. The Company makes extensive, interchangeable use of both
repurchase agreements and FHLB advances to supplement deposits and leverage the interest yields produced through its
securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2004, FHLB borrowings totaled $513.7 million as compared to $491.4 million as of
December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004, the weighted-average maturity for FHLB borrowings was 7.6 months, and
the weighted-average yield for FHLB borrowings was 1.81%, as compared to 20.2 months and 2.35% as of December 31,
2003 and 19.9 months and 3.72% as of December 31, 2002. The Company reduced the weighted-average rate on its FHLB
borrowings by refinancing and restructuring $115.0 million of FHLB advances during the first half of 2004, while incurring
$2.7 million in debt extinguishment costs. In 2003, the Company refinanced $310.0 million in FHLB borrowings at a cost of
$6.0 million.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS, OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK, AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Through its normal course of operations, the Company has entered into certain contractual obligations and other
commitments. Such obligations generally relate to the funding of operations through deposits or debt tssuances, as well as
leases for premises and equipment. As a financial services provider, the Company routinely enters into commitments to
extend credit. While contractual obligations represent future cash requirements of the Company, a significant portion of
commitments to extend credit may expire without being drawn upon. Such commitments are subject to the same credit
policies and approval process as all comparable loans made by the Company.

The following table presents the Company’s significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations and significant
commitments as of December 31, 2004. Further discussion of the nature of each obligation is included in the referenced note
to the consolidated financial statements.

Table 17
Contractual Obligations, Commitments, Contingencies, and Off-Balance Sheet Items
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Payments Due In

Three to
Note Less Than One to Five Over Five
Reference ! One Year Three Years Years Years Total

Deposits without a stated maturity .................... 9 $ 3,150,230 $ - - S - § 3,150,230
Consumer and brokered certificates of deposit . 9 1,145,875 542,055 67,030 188 1,755,148
Borrowed Funds........cccoveeeiinieiiiis e 10 1,091,800 54,927 71,605 - 1,218,332
Subordinated debt — trust preferred securities.... 11 - - - 129,294 129,294
Operating 1€8SeS ........oveciriveiinine e 7 1,065 2,778 2,905 8,490 15,238
Commitments to extend credit:

Home equity lINes ....c.coovviiieiiieeiececee 20 ettt 282,247

All other cOMMItMENtS...........c.oooevivereriieeennans 20 e et etra et h b e b e eate e et eate e bae st eneeares 1,099,025
Letters of credit:

Standby ..o 20 ettt 128,799

Commercial.........cocoveiiviiiiiccee e 20 et e 4,981

m . . . . . . .
Denotes the corresponding note in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K.

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL
Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 increased 1.8% to $532.0 million, increasing $9.5 million from December 31,
2003. Stockholders’ equity grew largely because earnings exceeded dividends paid to stockholders. The increase was
partially offset by reduction in other comprehensive income and net stock repurchases. Equity as a percentage of assets was
7.8% at December 31, 2004, compared to 7.6% a year before. Book value per common share increased to $11.55 at
December 31, 2004, up from $11.22 at December 31, 2003 due to the increase in equity and fewer shares outstanding as a
result of stock repurchases under the Company’s current repurchase program.

Capital Measurements

A strong capital structure is crucial in maintaining investor confidence, accessing capital markets, and enabling the Company
to take advantage of future profitable growth opportunities. The Company's Capital Policy requires that the Company and
the Bank maintain a capital ratio in excess of the minimum regulatory guidelines and also serves as an internal discipline in
analyzing business risks and internal growth opportunities, in addition to setting targeted levels of return on equity. Under
regulatory capital adequacy guidelines, the Company and the Bank are subject to various capital requirements set and
administered by the Federal banking agencies. These requirements specify minimum capital ratios, defined as Tier 1 and
Total capital as a percentage of assets and off-balance-sheet items that have been weighted according to broad risk categories,
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as well as a leverage ratio that compares Tier 1 capital to adjusted average assets. At December 31, 2004, the Company and
the Bank exceeded the minimum risk based capital requirements established by Federal banking regulatory agencies. The
minimum ratios for well-capitalized banks are 6.0% for Tier 1 capital, 10.0% for Total capital and 5.0% for the leverage
ratio. The consolidated Tier 1 and Total risk based capital ratios were 10.45% and 11.52%, respectively, and the leverage
ratio was 8.16% at December 31, 2004. For further details of the regulatory capital requirements and ratios as of December
31, 2004 and 2003, for the Company and the Bank, see Note 19 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
commencing on page 70 of this Form 10-K.

Stock Repurchase Programs

The Company continues to follow a policy of retaining sufficient capital to support growth in total assets and returning
excess capital to stockholders in the form of dividends and through common stock repurchases. The latter increases the
percentage ownership of the Company by existing stockholders.

In August 2002, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 3 million of its common shares, or
6.28% of shares then outstanding. The repurchase plan authorizes stock repurchases in both open market and privately
negotiated transactions and has no execution time limit. The Company repurchased 897,085 shares of its common stock at a
weighted-average cost per share of $34.82 during 2004 and 842,400 shares of its common stock at a weighted-average cost
per share of $26.60 during 2003. Subject to ongoing capital, investment, and acquisition considerations, management
intends to continue share repurchases in 2005. At December 31, 2004, the Company’s authority to repurchase 661,119
shares remained under the current share repurchase authorization.

Shares repurchased are held as treasury stock and available for issuances in conjunction with the Company’s Dividend
Reinvestment Plan, qualified and nonqualified retirement plans, and stock option plans as well as for other general corporate
purposes. The Company reissued shares held in the treasury to fund such plans totaling 387,943 shares in 2004 and 222,583
shares 2003.

Dividends

The Company paid dividends per common share of $0.90 in 2004 and $0.79 in 2003. As part of the Company's dividend
policy, the Board of Directors periodically reviews its dividend payout ratio to ensure that it is consistent with internal capital
guidelines, industry standards, and peer group practices.

On November 19, 2004, the Company increased its quarterly dividend by 9.1% from $0.22 to $0.24 per share. Based on the
Company’s December 31, 2004 closing price of $36.29 per share, the current dividend payment represents an annualized
yield of 2.6%.

The dividend payout ratio, which represents the percentage of dividends declared to stockholders to earnings per share, was
42.5% for 2004 and 40.1% for 2003. The dividend payout ratio has averaged approximately 40.1% for the past five years.
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QUARTERLY REVIEW

The following table summarizes the Company's quarterly earnings performance for 2004 and 2003.

Table 18
Quarterly Earnings Performance
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2004 2003
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Interest iNCOME ........ccocommeernnns § 81,765 § 79643 $§ 76,545 § 77,389 $ 71668 $§ 71,309 $§ 73,525 § 74,565
Interest eXpense ........ccoeeveeren, 23,372 22,109 20,497 20,500 18,706 19,302 20,881 22,424
Net interest inCOmMe.................. 58,393 57,534 56,048 56,889 52,962 52,007 52,644 52,141
Provision for loan losses ......... 5,350 3,240 2,405 1,928 3,075 2.660 2,540 2,530
Noninterest income .....c..c..cc... 21,204 18,065 17,857 16,686 22,235 19,364 17,880 17,698
Security gains (losses), net...... 2,872 748 2,663 1,939 202 (615) 3,335 66
(Losses) on early

extinguishment of debt......... - - (1,413) (1,240) (3,018) (3,007) - -
Noninterest eXpense ................ 42,797 40,359 39,977 40,205 37,109 37,551 37,954 36,838
Income tax expense ..o 9,102 7,576 8,061 8,109 7,998 6,366 8,718 7,807
Net INCOME....cvvrvmrvirrrecereennees § 25220 § 25172 § 24712 S 24,032 $ 24199 § 21202 § 24647 $ 22,730
Basic earnings per share.......... $ 055 § 054 8 053 8§ 0.52 $ 052 § 046 S 053 $ 0.48
Diluted earnings per share....... $ 054 § 054 § 053 § 0.51 $ 052 $ 045 S 053 $ 0.48
Return on average equity......... 18.57% 19.03% 19.17% 17.97% 18.59% 16.73% 19.40% 18.39%
Return on average assets ......... 1.46% 1.45% 1.44% 1.42% 1.54% 1.33% 1.59% 1.53%
Net interest margin - tax 3.94% 3.90% 3.81% 3.97% 4.01% 3.90% 4.01% 4,06%

equivalent .......ocovvevceniincne

M Al ratios are presented on an annualized basis.

FOURTH QUARTER 2004 vs. 2603

Net income for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2004, increased to $25.2 million, or $0.54 per diluted share, as
compared to the fourth quarter 2003 of $24.2 million, or $0.52 per diluted share, an increase of 3.8% on a per diluted share
basis. Performance for the fourth quarter of 2004 resulted in an annualized return on average assets of 1.46% as compared to
1.54% for the fourth quarter 2003 and an annualized return on average equity of 18.6% in both fourth quarter 2004 and fourth
quarter 2003.

The Company’s comparative performance between fourth quarter 2004 and 2003 is heavily influenced by the acquisition of
$645.6 million in assets resulting from the CoVest Acquisition and subsequent operational integration during first quarter
2004.

The Company’s net interest income increased 10.3% to $58.4 million in fourth quarter 2004 as compared to $53.0 million in
2003’s fourth quarter. This improvement was driven by a $567.8 million increase in average interest-earning assets from
fourth quarter 2003, primarily the result of assets acquired in the CoVest Acquisition. Net interest margin for fourth quarter
2004 was 3.94%, down from 4.01% in fourth quarter 2003, but up from 3.90% on a linked-quarter basis. This sequential
quarter margin improvement was largely the result of eaming assets repricing more quickly than paying liabilities as the
targeted Federal Funds rate increased 50 basis points during fourth quarter 2004.

The Company’s noninterest income for fourth quarter 2004 decreased 4.6% to $21.2 million, as compared to $22.2 million
for fourth quarter 2003. The decrease from 2003 was due to the absence in 2004 of $4.6 million in gains realized from the
Company’s 2003 divesture of its two branches in Streator, Illinois. Excluding this gain, the Company’s noninterest income
increased $3.6 million. Increased revenue was driven by a 10.2% increase in trust revenues and a 22.4% increase in card-
based revenues.
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Total noninterest expense for fourth quarter 2004 increased $5.7 million to $42.8 million, an increase of 15.3% from fourth
quarter 2003. This increase reflected additional expenses associated with operating the CoVest franchise, including
employee-related expense, net occupancy and equipment costs, and core deposit intangible amortization. In addition, this
increase also reflected comparatively higher expenses for incentive-related compensation programs, employee insurance and
increased fees for professional and audit-related services. These increases were partially offset by lower data processing
costs.

The Company’s credit quality improved during the fourth quarter of 2004 on both a linked-quarter and a year-over-year
basis. Nonperforming assets totaled $22.9 million as of December 31, 2004, down 14.4% from $26.8 million as of
September 30, 2004 and down 20.6% from $28.9 million as of December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004, the ratio of
nonperforming assets to total loans plus foreclosed real estate was 0.55%, down 22.5% from 0.71% as of December 31, 2003.

ITEM 7a. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in interest
rates, exchange rates, and equity prices. Interest rate risk is the Company’s primary market risk and is the result of repricing,
basis, and option risk. Repricing risk represents timing mismatches in the Company’s ability to alter contractual rates earned
on financial assets or paid on liabilities in response to market interest rates. Basis risk refers to the potential for changes in
the underlying relationship between market rates or indices, which subsequently result in a narrowing of the spread earned on
a loan or investment relative to its cost of funds, Option risk arises from the “embedded options” present in many financial
instruments such as loan prepayment options or deposit early withdrawal options. These provide customers opportunities to
take advantage of directional changes in rates and could have an adverse impact on the Company’s margin performance.

The Company seeks to achieve consistent growth in net interest income and net income while managing volatility that arises
from shifts in interest rates. The Company’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) oversees financial risk
management by developing programs to measure and manage interest rate risks within authorized limits set by the Bank’s
Board of Directors. ALCO also approves the Company’s asset/liability management policies, oversees the formulation and
implementation of strategies to improve balance sheet positioning and earnings, and reviews the Company’s interest rate
sensitivity position. Management uses net interest income and economic value of equity simulation modeling tools to
analyze and capture near-term and longer-term interest rate exposures.

Net interest income represents the Company’s primary tool for measuring interest rate sensitivity. Net interest income
simulation analysis measures the sensitivity of net interest income to various interest rate movements and balance sheet
structures. The simulation is based on actual cash flows and repricing characteristics for on and off-balance sheet instruments
and incorporates market-based assumptions regarding the effect of changing interest rates on the prepayment rates of certain
assets and liabilities. The simulation includes management projections for activity levels in each of the product lines offered
by the Company. Assumptions based upon the historical behavior of deposit rates and balances in relation to interest rates
are also incorporated into the simulation. These assumptions are inherently uncertain. As a result, the simulation cannot
precisely measure net interest income or precisely predict the impact of the fluctuation in interest rates on net interest income.
Actual results will differ from simulated results due to timing, magnitude, and frequency of interest rate changes, as well as
changes in market conditions and management strategies.

The Company monitors and manages interest rate risk within approved policy limits. The simulation model assesses the
magnitude of changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates over a 12-month horizon, using multiple
rate scenarios. These scenarios include, but are not limited to, a flat or unchanged rate environment, a “most likely” forecast
(which the Company believes to be the most probable outlook), a graduatal increase and decrease of 200 basis points that
occurs in equal steps over a six month time horizon, and immediate increases and decreases of 200 and 300 basis points.

The Company’s current interest rate risk policy limits are determined by measuring the change in net interest income over a
12-month horizon assuming a 200 basis point gradual increase and decrease in all interest rate limits. Current policy limits
this exposure to plus or minus 8% of the anticipated level of net interest income over the corresponding 12-month horizon
assuming no change in current interest rates. Given the low interest rate environment existent at December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, the Bank’s Board of Directors temporarily authorized operation outside of existing policy limits under
the gradual falling rate scenario.
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Analysis of Net Interest Income Sensitivity
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Gradual Change in Rates Immediate Change in Rates
-200 +200 -200 +200 -300 @ +300

December 31, 2004:

Dollar change........ccocoevene.. § (20,041) § 2,755 $ (28,500) § 5,552 N/M $ 11,438

Percent change ................. -8.5% +1.2% -12.0% +2.3% N/M +4.8%
December 31, 2003:

Dollar change........c.cceo.. § (26,053) $ 5377 § (35,487 § 7,016 N/M $§ 12,619

Percent change .................. -11.2% +2.3% -15.3% +3.0% N/M +5.4%

" Reflects an assumed uniform change in interest rates across all terms that occur in equal steps over a six-month horizon.

@ N/M - Due to the low level of interest rates as of year-end 2004 and 2003, in management’s judgment an assumed 300 basis point drop in
interest rates was deemed not meaningful in the current interest rate environment.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s interest rate sensitivity profile, assuming a gradual change in rates, was less
positive in rising interest rate scenarios and less negative in falling rate scenarios than the profile that existed as of December
31, 2003. The change in profile from 2003 results from a combination of the comparatively higher level of interest rates
existent as of December 31, 2004 and changes in the remaining term and mix of both security investments and wholesale
funding. The higher level of interest rates at December 31, 2004 limits the Company’s ability to benefit from future interest
rate increases, as the positive impact of slowing mortgage prepayments as of December 31, 2003 has already been partially
reflected as actual performance during the last half of 2004. In addition, the passage of time has shortened the duration of
borrowed funds since year-end 2003, and the majority of these liabilities will reprice in the latter half of 2005.

In addition to the simulation analysis, management uses an economic value of equity sensitivity technique to capture the risk
in both short and long-term positions and to study the impact of long-term cash flows on earnings and capital. Economic
value of equity involves discounting present values of expected cash flows on all assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet
contracts under different interest rate scenarios. The discounted present value of all cash flows represents the Company’s
economic value of equity. Economic value of equity does not represent the true fair value of asset, liability, or derivative
positions because factors such as credit risk, liquidity risk, and the impact of future changes to the balance sheet are not
considered. The Company’s policy guidelines call for preventative measures to be taken in the event that an immediate
increase or decrease in interest rates of 200 basis points is estimated to reduce the economic value of equity by more than
20%.

Analysis of Economic Value of Equity
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
Immediate Change in Rates

-200 +200
December 31, 2004:
DOLIAr CHANEE ..ottt ettt ettt e § (47,736) $ (30,601)
Percent ChANEE .....cviiiiie ittt et -5.0% -3.2%
December 31, 2003:
DOMAT CHANZE ...cioeieie ettt ettt ea b st st eas e b e et essamt et e snare e $  (36,271) $ (53,088)
Percent ChanZe ...oc.ooii e e -3.8% -5.5%

The sensitivity of the Company’s economic value of equity to changes in interest rates has increased in a falling rate scenario
and decreased in a rising rate scenario as compared to December 31, 2003 primarily due to changes in securities portfolio
mix. During 2004, the Company sold longer-term, municipal securities and reinvested the proceeds into comparatively
shorter-term collateralized mortgage obligations, lessening the duration of the securities portfolio. This shortening, in
combination with strategies to lengthen the duration of liabilities, decreased the level of market value volatility to rising
interest rates.

As in 2003, the Company’s current sensitivity of net interest income and economic value of equity suggests better

performance in a rising interest rate environment, with net interest income over a 12-month horizon benefiting from gradually
rising interest rates. The Company’s balance sheet and net interest income remain vulnerable to an immediate decrease in
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interest rates. ALCO has deemed the risk of an immediate and extended decline in interest rates to be low given the current
rate environment.

As part of its approach to conirolling the interest rate risk within its balance sheet, the Company has used derivative
instruments (specifically interest rate swaps with third parties) in order to limit volatility in net interest income. The
advantages of using such interest rate derivatives include minimization of balance sheet leverage resulting in lower capital
requirements as compared to cash instruments, the ability to maintain or increase liquidity, and the opportunity to customize
the interest rate swap to meet desired risk parameters. The accounting policies underlying the treatment of derivative
financial instruments in the Consolidated Statements of Condition and Income of the Company are described in Notes 1 and
12 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” commencing on pages 47 and 62, respectively, of this Form 10-K.

Interest rate swap transactions involve exchanges of fixed and floating rate interest payments without the exchange of the
underlying notional (i.e., principal) amount on which the interest payments are calculated. When the interest rate swap has
been appropriately designated as a hedge, the net cash flow paid or received by the Company on these transactions is treated
as an adjustment to interest income and expense on the underlying earning asset or funding source to which the swap relates.
A risk associated with interest rate swap transactions is credit risk, defined as the ability of the swap counterparty to perform
its interest payment obligation under the terms of the agreement. Credit risk on interest rate swap transactions consists of the
aggregate net interest payable to the Company by the counterparty in addition to the aggregate unrealized gain on the swap
position. The Company controls this credit risk by reviewing each counterparty for creditworthiness prior to entering into
transactions and maintaining a policy limiting credit exposure to any one counterparty to not more than 2.5% of consolidated
stockholders' equity. In addition, the Company's interest rate swap transactions require the establishment of a mutual mark-
to-market arrangement whereby cash collateral is required to be on deposit with the Company and/or the counterparty,
depending upon the existing net settlement position. The Company does not act as an intermediary in arranging interest rate
swaps for customers.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had total interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $162.5
million and $76.9 million in place, respectively, hedging various balance sheet categories. The specific terms of the interest
rate swaps ouistanding as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are discussed in Note 12 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” commencing on page 62 of this Form 10-K.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements
To Our Stockholders:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared by management, which is responsible for the integrity
and objectivity of the data presented. In the opinion of management, the financial statements, which necessarily include
amounts based on management's estimates and judgments, have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Ermnst and Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and have expressed
their unqualified opinion on these financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the
Board of Directors, is composed entirely of independent directors (as defined by the listing standards of Nasdaq). The Audit
Committee meets periodically with management, the independent accountants, and the internal auditors to review matters
relating to the Company’s financial statements, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements relating to financial
reporting and disclosure, annual financial statement audit, engagement of independent accountants, internal audit function,
and system of internal controls. The internal auditors and the independent accountants periodically meet alone with the Audit
Committee and have access to the Audit Committee at any time.

W@@@M, J(Mb/ it

John M. O'Meara Michael L. Scudder
President and Executive Vice President,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer, and

Principal Accounting Officer

March 4, 2005
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc., as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the effectiveness of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.’s, internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based
on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 4, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanet ¢ MLLP

Ernst & Young LLP
Chicago, Illinois
March 4, 2005
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FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

December 31,

2004 2003
Assets
Cash and due from Banks .........cccveiiviiii e S 119,880 § 186,900
Federal funds sold and other short-term investments.........cccceevvvveeeeeieeccireniieeees 330 5,789
Mortgages held for sale..........covinriiiriiiic e 4,251 9,620
Securities available for sale, at market value .........cc.cocoocoiviveiiiii e 2,179,438 2,229,650
Securities held to maturity, at amortized cost (market value 2004 - $64,618;

2003 = $O7,514) et e 64,576 67,446
LLOAIMS ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt a e rae et e e e nre e aaes 4,135,278 4,059,782
RESEIVE TOT LOAN LOSSES cenvvieieeiie ettt e st e et s e e s s st s e st e s er e e e s (56,718) (56,404)

INEE LOBIIS 1.e ittt ettt et e stsr e s eeearee et e oot e beetseebsasbeesaasesaseenrasasesbessbenesannnans 4,078,560 4,003,378
Premises, furniture, and equipmMent...........cooeceririieine e 89,003 91,535
Accrued INterest TECEIVADIE ...t 30,169 30,506
Investment in corporate owned life INSUTaNCe.........ccoccvvviivcininieni i 151,359 146,421
GOOAWIILe . oecrit ettt e b et e bbb b e et e bbb e ke sbeenbeas 84,547 83,733
Other INtANGIBIE ASSELS ...cvecviviieiiiie ittt ettt ettt senre e 12,165 15,533
ORET ASSES ettt ettt ettt e e e et n e s 49,103 36,145

TOMAL ASSEES ©..uviiveeei ittt et ettt e et et e e et ebeetb e sasars e ase st e aeebeatreraeeaesreeree e $ 6,863,381 § 6,906,658

Liabilities
Demand dEPOSIS ...ccoviruiiiiriieiiieee ettt et $ 922,540 § 859,080
SAVINES EPOSILS ...ovevire e 644,664 629,505
NOW QCCOUNLS .ttt ee e e et e e et s ee e e e e et e e etaaeestb e e eesae e e eanes 891,378 890,461
Money mMarket dEPOSILS ..c..ovvririiriiieecieerii et 691,648 740,009
TIME AEPOSIES 1oviieieirieieie ettt st et a e ettt eea 1,755,148 1,696,053

TOtAl AEPOSIES ...v.evieieiiiitiei ettt ettt erne 4,905,378 4,815,108
BorroOwWed TUNAS ......ooviiiiiiiici ettt sttt b e es 1,218,332 1,371,672
Subordinated debt - trust preferred SECUITHIES. ....o...iiiviieiiiiieciiceiee e 129,294 128,716
Accrued interest payable ... 7,036 6,828
OTher HADIHHIES ......evevieiee ittt ettt ettt seesbe e e enae e eae et ebeabeesnea 71,303 61,794

TOta] HADIIHES ..o vveevee ettt v ettt ettt ee e eeeneeaneeas 6,331,343 6,384,118

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock, no par value; 1,000 shares authorized, none issued..................... - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 100,000 shares; issued 56,927 shares

outstanding: 2004 — 46,065 shares; 2003 - 46,58 1shares ..........coccccerimvinnennnn. 569 569
Additional paid-n capital.......cccoiiieiiiiiner 61,918 68,755
RetAINEd CAIMINES ..vonveenieirreieitirte ettt etie et eitestneeete e e emc e essesecemee e sts s e eaeceans 707,435 650,128
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 0f taX......o.covvviireircorierreecenn 10,115 32,656
Treasury stock, at cost: 2004 —10,862 shares; 2003 - 10,346 shares..........cc........ (247,999) (229,568)

Total stockholders' EQUILY ......cvivvivie e 532,038 522,540

Total liabilities and stockholders' €QUILY ......ccoovvvireireerniceimrie et $ 6863381 § 6,906,658

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Interest Income
LOGIIS 1ttt et ettt ettt st ssa e e s e sse e ereaareenne e $ 225,099 $ 200,013 $ 223,393
Securities:
Available for sale —taxable ... 57,163 56,077 78,301
Available for sale — nontaxable ............ccocovi i 30,020 30,632 23,702
Held to maturity — taxable ........cocecveveninriie e 439 831 952
Held to maturity — nontaxable ..........cccccevevveeervvirere e, 1,988 2,432 2,499
Total interest On SECUTILIES......oovvvviiivveiereeeeeeeeciiie e 89,610 89,972 105,454
Federal funds sold and other short-term investments.............. 633 1,082 817
Total INterest INCOME.......cccuveeeiiririeeeree e eeeeereee e e e 315,342 291,067 329,664
Interest Expense
SaVINES AEPOSILS 1ovverieeriiriierie ettt et 4,305 2,489 4,191
INOW GCCOUNTS oviiuvriiiireeerieesreeenererniesevesereescneessessenessnneesessas 7,549 7,089 10,291
Money market deposits ... 9,083 7,850 10,993
TIME AEPOSILS -neivveiire e eeieeee ettt et e 36,495 38,844 56,141
Borrowed fUnds............ooiviiiee e 20,980 23,962 29,294
Subordinated debt - trust preferred securities........ccccoovieennnnnnn. 8,066 1,079 -
Total INTETESt EXPEIISE....ecverrriarieieeeerceeerietre e cerareseeeneseee 86,478 81,313 110,910
Net interest inCoOme...........cc.cooovviviiiiviie i 228,864 209,754 218,754
Provision for loan 108Ses..................cooovivviineveiiieeee e 12,923 10,805 15,410
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ............ 215,941 198,949 203,344
Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit aCCOUNES .......occeveevvrrrricncaninrenn 28,837 27,924 25,362
Trust and investment management fees ..........c.cocvevivinincvinnnne 11,888 10,810 10,309
Other service charges, commissions, and fees ............cccceoceee. 15,147 16,187 14,349
Card-based fEeS .......cccoiviiiviiiieie et 9,252 8,336 7,895
Corporate owned life insurance iNCOME.......ccocoecerervenrnrnrrrne 4,939 5,059 6,728
SeCcUrity gains, NEt......cooceovoeririririeiinareeniereesrirereeirire e 8,222 2,988 460
(Losses) on early extinguishment of debt...........cccoorecvrinnne (2,653) (6,025) -
Other INCOME ..o vviiiriiireeeieestee ettt te e ree e e seveesare e 3,749 8,891 1,888
Total NONINETESt INCOME ...vvvrivviiieieiccreecrer e e sreeereens 79,381 74,170 66,991
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and Wages . ... 68,907 64,736 61,834
Retirement and other employee benefits.........cccoceevirninnnnns 23,264 19,548 18,792
Net OCCUPANCY BXPEISE ..vvvrveriirreerieeieieeererceieareeereneereneesresnenne 16,015 14,508 14,298
EQUIPMENt EXPEIISE ...viviiviricrr ittt 8,847 7,979 7,769
Technology and related COSS .....ovavvirviineneieicercr s 6,681 8,913 9,796
Professional SEIVICES .. .oevvvvivieeiein e erieeer e seesserie s etbearee e 7,998 6,623 6,627
Advertising and promotions .......c.c.ceecvevrnrereienencenenenreees 5,043 4,563 4,195
Merchant card EXPense........ovevvverereririiereeere e 4,012 3,595 3,540
Other EXPENSES .. .c.eovieiirireiirirree et e 22,571 18,987 21,201
Total NONINErest EXPEIMSE. ...c.veverrirrrerreerereneeere e 163,338 149,452 148,052
Income before inCOMe taX EXPENSE ......oveveerrereicerirircrnieeieee 131,984 123,667 122,283
INCOME taX EXPEINSE ..verveeveiiiiniieiierriesreeseeeie st eteeenesre e 32,848 30,889 32,133
INEE INCOIMIE .ottt seresreere e e eteets e enrsrnescnenescnaresbeenens $ 99,136 $ 92,778 $ 90,150
Per Share Data
Basic earnings per Share ......cc.coceeiinrvvieneienieneienere e ) 2.13 $ 1.99 $ 1.88
Diluted earnings per share ........cccooivrrrvnnrcinecnvrneeenne S 2.12 $ 1.97 $ 1.86
Weighted-average shares outstanding .......c..c.cceceevenveavercnnnens 46,469 46,671 48,074
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding ..........cc.c.cc.... 46,860 46,982 48,415

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total
Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 569 $ 74,961 $ 537,600 $ 5265 $  (171,128) $ 447267
Comprehensive Income:
NEt INCOME ..t - - 90,150 - - 90,150
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on securities................... - - - 32,928 - 32,928
Unrealized gains on hedging activities....... - - - 1,172 - 1,172
Total comprehensive income .........ccccoeee.. 124,250
Dividends declared ($.70 per share) - - (33,558) - - (33,558)
Purchase of treasury stock........ccocccoiveirinnenne - - - - (52,117) (52,117)
Treasury stock issued to (purchased for)
beneflit plans ... - 9 - - (155) (146)
Exercise of stock options .........ccoveveomicrineecnnns - (3,954) - - 10,217 6,263
Fair value adjustment to treasury
stock held in grantor trust.......oocoveveeciineeine - 4 - - (10) (6)
Balance at December 31, 2002 569 71,020 594,192 39,365 (213,193) 491,953
Comprehensive Income:
NEtINCOME .viiiiiiiiiieie et - - 92,778 - - 92,778
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized (losses) on securities......c......... - - - (7,029) - (7,029)
Unrealized gains on hedging activities....... - - - 320 - 320
Total comprehensive INCOME .........cccvennn. 86,069
Dividends declared ($.79 per share)................ - - (36,842) - (36,842)
Purchase of treasury stock..........cccooivernnnenn. - - - - (22,404) (22,404)
Treasury stock issued to (purchased for)
benefit plans ........ccooeveviiiieee e - 4 - - (165) (161)
Exercise of stock options .........ccoecvieinnnn, - (2,269) - - 6,210 3,941
Fair value adjustment to treasury
stock held in grantor trust...........cocooeerneiinne - - - - (16) (16)
Balance at December 31, 2003 569 68,755 650,128 32,656 (229,568) 522,540
Comprehensive Income:
NELINCOME oot - - 99,136 - 99,136
Other comprehensive income: "
Unrealized (losses) on securities................ - - - (23,156) (23,136)
Unrealized gains on hedging activities ...... - - - 615 615
Total comprehensive income .........oco...... 76,595
Dividends declared ($.90 per share)................ - - (41,829) - (41,829)
Purchase of treasury StocK........c.ccovevirvccinnnnn, - - - - (31,240) (31,240)
Treasury stock issued to (purchased for)
benefit plans ........cccocoveveieeni e - ) - - (212) (213)
Exercise of stock options «......ccccovververiniiiernennns - (6,836) - - 13,021 6,185
Balance at December 31, 2004 3 569 § 61,918 $ 707435 § 10,115 §  (247,999) § 532,038

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(M Net of taxes and reclassification adjustments.
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FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities
NEE INCOMIE oeveiiiieitetetiete e e e ee e sreeaeete s ertestsaaeeereatserbeattesbenssereesbesaeassesbesseersesenas 99,136 § 92,778 % 90,150
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for 10an 10SSES ...vviiiiii e 12,923 10,805 15,410
Depreciation of premises, furniture, and equIpmMent ............oocerveerniinneernnenens 8,845 8,423 8,690
Net amortization of premium on securities 6,902 17,482 9,812
Net (ZaINS) ON SECUTITIES ....eviietei ettt etee sttt ettt ettt s e rese e ee e be et eee e (8,222) (2,988) (460)
Net losses on early extinguishment of debt........ccocoovviiiiniiiicicin s 2,653 6,025 -
Net (gains) on sales of other real estate owned ...........c..oevioiecererniiec e (530) (312) (176)
Net (gains) losses on sales of premises, furniture, and equipment .......c..c.cccoconueee (483) (498) 92
(Gain) on branch divestiture - (4,635) -
Net pension Cost.......cooceereeneen. . 4,515 3,230 2,461
Tax benefit from exercise of nonqualified stock options 1,362 920 985
Net decrease in deferred INCOME tAXES ...ovvivvreeriiieiieieer e eeetee e 2,522 3,606 554
Net amortization of other Intangibles.........ccooviviniiiiniiin e, 2,131 38 1,313
Originations and purchases of mortgage loans held for sale..........ccccccoeeivreirnnne (173,445) (472,076) (286,450)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held forsale................... 178,814 480,977 283,169
Net (increase) in corporate owned life insurance.................. (4,939) (5,059) (6,082)
Net decrease in accrued interest receivable........oiiviiiiiiiniiirirn e 337 499 1,022
Net increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable ............ocvveveriniiineicecine 208 (1,675) (1,728)
Net decrease (increase) in Other aSSELS ........cviviviiiivviiciirieieeeieeeeeeee e 1,753 (16,355) (7,841)
Net increase in other Habilities.........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiei e 14,111 3,325 21,771
Net cash provided by operating activities..................c.ccooviiiincnniincnn, 148,593 124,510 132,692
Investing Activities
Securities available for sale:
Proceeds from maturities, repayments, and calls..........c..cccoevivevvcerinninneieenennnnn. 568,727 1,036,514 575,629
Proceeds frOm SAIES....cco vttt e 467,928 608,485 300,212
PUICRASES ..ttt e bttt ees (1,036,285) (1,878,797) (1,057,730)
Securities held to maturity:
Proceeds from maturities, repayments, and calls.... 29,684 73,940 35,547
PUrchases ......coocoevvvneinincne e s (26,743) (71,655) (39,796)
Net (INCTEASE) T LOAMS ..o iiiiiiriietii ettt ese e sisses v eaesetaeve s b ssessrese s e esaesbeassesaes (92,261) (657,943) (57,982)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned, net of purchases .........cc.ooceeivenine 6,762 2,673 6,526
Proceeds from sales of premises, furniture, and equipment ...........ccocovccrnrceinnnnnns 1,211 1,484 1,446
Proceeds from branch diveStitUre.......ocooveiiiiiiiciit s e - 5,142 -
Purchases of premises, furniture, and eqUIPMENt ........cc.ccvveerervrereeneneniereeneenin (6,962) (19,824) (14,683)
Acquisitions, net of cash aCqUITEd...........covcveiieeceiiiniiiici e e - (82,909) -
Net cash (used in) investing activities ...............cccoovviiinicniieniiienecn, (87,939) (982,890) (250,831)
Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in deposit accounts 90,270 642,154 (20,967)
Net (decrease) increase in borrowed funds (155,993) 128,239 265,557
Proceeds from the issuance of subordinated debt - trust preferred securities............. - 128,715 -
Purchase of treasury StOCK.........cviiiriiieie ettt e (31,240) (22,404) (52,117)
Proceeds from the issuance of treasury stock... 7 6 9
Cash dividends Paid ........cccooveiriieiiieii it et ettt (41,000) (35,560) (32,879)
Exercise of StoCK OPLIONS ..o.ooviiiiiiiii ettt 4,823 3,021 5,278
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ................coccoeneie (133,133) 844,171 164,881
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (72,479) (14,209) 46,742
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..............ooccvviercrncennnnns 192,689 206,898 160,156
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year....................ccoccviniiniinnn 120,210 § 192,689 § 206,898

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Delaware corporation and bank holding company
that was incorporated in 1982, began operations on March 31, 1983, and was formed through an exchange of common stock.
The Company is headquartered in Itasca, Illinois and has operations primarily located in Northern Illinois, principally in the
suburban metropolitan Chicago area. The Company operates two wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries™): First
Midwest Bank (the “Bank”) and First Midwest Insurance Company, which is largely inactive. The Company is engaged in
commercial and retail banking and offers a comprehensive selection of financial products and services including lending,
depository, trust, investment management, insurance, and other related financial services tailored to the needs of its
individual, business, institutional, and governmental customers.

Principles of Ceonsolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions. Assets held by its
subsidiaries in a fiduciary or agency capacity are not assets of the subsidiaries and, accordingly, are not included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Presentation - Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year
presentation. For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents has been defined by
management to include cash and due from banks, funds sold, and other short-term investments. The Company uses the
accrual basis of accounting for financial reporting purposes, except for immaterial sources of income and expense, which are
recorded when received or paid.

Use of Estimates - The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and general practice within the banking industry. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Coembinations - In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, are accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.
Under the purchase method, net assets of the business acquired are recorded at their estimated fair value as of the date of
acquisition, with any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired recorded as goodwill. Results of operations of the acquired business are included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income from the effective date of acquisition.

Securities - Securities are classified as held to maturity or available for sale at the time of purchase. Securities classified as
held to maturity, which management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at amortized cost.
The historical cost of debt securities classified as held to maturity or available for sale is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts over the estimated life of the security, using the level-yield method. In determining the
estimated life of a mortgage-related security, certain judgments are required as to the timing and amount of future principal
prepayments. These judgments are made based upon the actual performance of the underlying security and the general
market consensus regarding changes in mortgage interest rates. Amortization of premium and accretion of discount is
included in interest income from the related security.

Available for sale securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of related deferred income taxes,
included in stockholders' equity as a separate component of other comprehensive income. Realized securities gains or losses
and declines in value judged to be other than temporary are included in investment securities gains (losses), net in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Any security
for which there has been other than temporary impairment of value is written down to its estimated fair value through a
charge to earnings.

Loans - Loans are carried at the principal amount outstanding, including certain net deferred loan origination fees.
Residential real estate mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Interest income
on loans is accrued based on principal amounts outstanding. Loan and lease origination and commitment fees and certain
direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount amortized over the estimated life of the related loans or
commitments as a yield adjustment. Other credit-related fees, including line of credit fees are recognized as fee income when
earned.
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Nonaccrual loans - Generally, commercial loans and loans secured by real estate (including impaired loans) are designated
as nonaccrual: (a) when either principal or interest payments are 90 days or more past due based on contractual terms unless
the loan is sufficiently collateralized such that full repayment of both principal and interest is expected and is in the process
of collection; or (b) when an individual analysis of a borrower’s creditworthiness indicates a credit should be placed on
nonaccrual status. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest credited to income in the current year is
reversed and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged against the reserve for loan losses. Future interest income may
only be recorded on a cash basis after recovery of principal is reasonably assured. Nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual
status when the financial position of the borrower and other relevant factors indicate there is no longer doubt as to such
collectibility.

Commercial loans and those secured by real estate are generally charged-off when deemed uncollectible and to the extent
principal and interest due exceed the net realizable value of the collateral, with the charge-off occurring when the loss is
reasonably quantifiable. Consumer loans are subject to mandatory charge-off at a specified delinquency date and are usually
not classified as nonaccrual prior to being charged-oftf. Closed-end consumer loans, which include instaliment, automobile,
and single payment loans are generally charged-off in full no later than the end of the month in which the loan becomes 120
days past due. Open-end unsecured consumer loans, such as credit card loans, are generally charged-off in full no later than
the end of the month in which the loan becomes 180 days past due.

Impaired Loans - A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest due according to the terms of the loan agreement.
Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate or the value of the underlying collateral. The Company evaluates the collectibility of both principal and interest
when assessing the need for loss accrual. All loans subject to evaluation and considered impaired are included in
nonperforming assets.

Restructured Loans - In cases where a borrower experiences financial difficulties and the Company makes certain
concessionary modifications to contractual terms, the loan is classified as a restructured loan. Loans restructured at a rate
equal to or greater than that of a new loan with comparable risk at the time the contract is modified may be excluded from
restructured loans in the calendar years subsequent to the restructuring if they are in compliance with modified terms.
Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is restructured remains in nonaccrual for a period of six months to demonstrate that the
borrower can meet the restructured terms. However, sustained payment performance prior to the restructuring, or significant
events that coincide with the restructuring, are included in assessing whether the borrower can meet the restructured terms.
These factors may result in the loan being returned to accrual status at the time of restructuring or upon satisfaction of a
shorter performance period.

Reserve for Loan Losses - The reserve for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb
probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The reserve takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature,
volume, size and current risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, an assessment of individual problem loans, actual and
anticipated loss experience; current economic conditions that affect the borrower’s ability to pay and other pertinent factors.
Determination of the reserve is inherently subjective, as it requires significant estimates, including the amounts and timing of
expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. Credit
exposures deemed to be uncollectible are charged-off against the reserve, while recoveries of amounts previously charged-off
are credited to the reserve. Additions to the reserve for loan losses are charged to operating expense through the provision for
loan losses. The amount charged to operating expense in any given year is dependent on a number factors including historic
loan growth and changes in the composition of the loan portfolio, net charge-off levels, and the Company’s assessment of the
reserve for loan losses based upon the methodology discussed below.

The reserve for loan losses is the accumulation of three components calculated based on independent methodologies. All
components of the reserve for loan losses represent estimations performed pursuant to the requirements of SFAS Statement
No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and SFAS Nos. 114 and 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,”
and consists of: (i) specific reserves established for expected losses resulting from analysis developed through specific credit
allocations on individual loans for which the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the measured value of the loan; (ii)
reserves based on historical loan loss experience for each loan category; and (iii) reserves based on general, current economic
conditions as well as specific economic factors believed to be relevant to the markets in which the Company operates.

The specific reserves component of the reserve for loan losses is based on a regular analysis of impaired loans over a fixed-
dollar amount where the internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined classification. A loan is considered impaired
when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest due according to the terms
of the loan agreement. Loans subject to impairment valuation are defined as nonaccrual and restructured loans exclusive of
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smaller homogeneous loans such as home equity, installment, and 1-4 family residential loans. Impairment is measured by
estimating the fair value of the loan based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s initial
effective interest rate, the market price of the loan, or the fair value of the underlying collateral less costs to sell, if repayment
of the loan is collateral dependent. If the estimated fair value of the loan is less than the recorded book value, a valuation
reserve is established as a component of the reserve for loan losses.

The component of the reserve for loan losses based on historical loan loss experience is determined statistically using a loss
migration analysis that examines loss experience and the related internal grading of loans charged-off. The loss migration
analysis is performed quarterly and loss factors are updated regularly based on actual experience.

The final component of the reserve for loan losses reflects management's gencral estimate of probable inherent, but
undetected, losses within the portfolio. The general component of the reserve for loan losses is determined based upon the
Company’s assessment of economic conditions such as levels of unemployment and bankruptcy trends. The Company also
assesses other risk factors such as changes in the characteristics of the loan portfolio, underwriting policies as well as
delinquency and charge-off trends. The general allowance is determined by applying estimated loss factors to the credit
exposures from outstanding loans due to uncertainties in economic conditions, delays in obtaining information, including
unfavorable information about a borrower's financial condition, the difficulty in identifying triggering events that correlate
perfectly to subsequent loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet- manifested themselves in loss allocation factors. In
addition, this component includes a portion that explicitly accounts.for the inherent imprecision in loan loss migration
models. Because the general component of the reserve considers risk factors that may not have manifested themselves in the
Company's historical loss experience, it involves a high degree of subjectivity in its determination.

Foreclosed Real Estate - Foreclosed real estate includes properties acquired in partial or total satisfaction of certain loans
and is included in other assets in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Condition. Properties are recorded at the
lower of the recorded investment in the loans for which the properties previously served as collateral or the fair value, which
represents the estimated sales price of the properties on the date acquired less estimated selling costs. Management
periodically reviews the carrying value of foreclosed real estate properties. Any write-downs in the carrying value of a
property within 180 days of acquisition are charged against the reserve for loan losses, otherwise they are recognized in
operating results in the period realized. Gains or losses on disposition and income or expense from the operations of
foreclosed real estate are recognized in operating results in the period they are realized. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
foreclosed real estate totaled $3.7 million and $5.8 million, respectively.

Depreciable Assets - Premises, furniture and equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, Depreciation expense is determined by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the life of the asset or the lease term. Rates
of depreciation are generally based on the following useful lives: buildings - 25 to 40 years; building improvements - 3 to 15
years; and furniture and equipment - 3 to 10 years. Gains and losses on dispositions are reflected in other income and other
expense, respectively. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred, while improvements that

extend the useful life are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining life.
\

Long-lived depreciable assets are evaluated periodically for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the expected undiscounted future cash flows of a long-
lived asset are less than its carrying value. In that event, the Company recognizes a loss for the difference between the
carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset based on a quoted market price, if applicable, or a discounted cash
flow analysis. Impairment losses are recorded in other noninterest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Corporate Owned Life Insurance (*COLI”) - COLI represents life insurance policies on the lives of certain Company
officers for which the Company is the beneficiary. These policies are recorded as an asset on the Consolidated Statements of
Condition at their cash surrender value, or the amount that could be realized currently. The change in cash surrender value
and insurance proceeds received are recorded as COLI income on the Consolidated Statements of Income in noninterest
income and is not subject to income taxes based on the Company’s intent and ability to hold the policies.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles - Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired
using the purchase method of accounting. Other intangible assets represent purchased assets that also lack physical substance
but can be distinguished from goodwill because of contractual or other legal rights or because the asset is capable of being
sold or exchanged either on its own or in combination with a related contract, asset, or liability. The Company follows SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is tested at least
annually for impairment, or more often if events or circumstances indicate that there may be impairment. Identified
intangible assets that have a finite useful life are amortized over that life in a manner that reflects the estimated decline in the
economic value of the identified intangible asset. Identified intangible assets that have a finite useful life are periodically
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reviewed to determine whether there have been any events or circumstances to indicate that the recorded amount is not
recoverable from projected undiscounted net operating cash flows. If the projected undiscounted net operating cash flows are
less than the carrying amount, a loss is recognized to reduce the carrying amount to fair value, and, when appropriate, the
amortization period is also reduced. Unamortized intangible assets associated with disposed assets are included in the
determination of gain or loss on sale of the disposed assets. All of the Company’s other intangible assets have finite lives and
are amortized over varying periods not exceeding 11 years.

Trust Assets and Assets Under Management - Assets held in fiduciary or agency capacity for customers are not included
in the consolidated financial statements as they are not assets of the Company or its subsidiaries. Fee income is recognized
on an accrual basis for financial reporting purposes and is included as a component of noninterest income.

Advertising Costs - All advertising costs incurred by the Company are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Derivative Financial Instruments - In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into derivative transactions as
part of its overall interest rate risk management strategy to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings and cash
flows caused by interest rate volatility. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133™), as amended, all derivative instruments are recorded on the Consolidated Statements
of Condition at fair value. The Company includes the fair value of derivative instruments in other assets and other liabilities
in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Subsequent changes in a derivative’s fair value are recognized in earnings
unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met.

On the date the Company enters into a derivative contract, it designates the derivative instrument as either a fair value hedge,
cash flow hedge or as a freestanding derivative instrument. Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to
mitigate exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or liability attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are
considered to be fair value hedges. Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows to be received or paid related to an asset or liability or other types of forecasted
transactions are considered to be cash flow hedges. The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument,
as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, are recognized in current earnings
during the period of the change in fair values. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow
hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. For all hedge relationships, derivative gains and losses not effective in hedging the change in fair value or
expected cash flows of the hedged item are recognized immediately in current earnings during the period of change.

At the hedge’s inception and at least quarterly thereafter, a formal assessment is performed to determine whether changes in
the fair values or cash flows of the derivative instruments have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item and whether they are expected to be highly effective in the future. If it is determined that the
derivative instrument is not highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. SFAS No. 133 basis
adjustments recorded on interest-bearing hedged assets and liabilities are amortized over the remaining life of the hedged
item beginning no later than when the hedge terminates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes.

Income Taxes - The Company and its banking subsidiary file a consolidated Federal income tax return. First Midwest
Insurance Company files a separate Federal life insurance company tax return. The provision for income taxes is based upon
income in the financial statements, rather than amounts reported on the Company’s income tax return.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is established for any deferred tax asset for which
recovery or settlement is unlikely. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) - Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. The basic EPS computation excludes the dilutive effect of all common stock equivalents.
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus all
potential common shares. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. The Company’s potential common shares represent shares
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issuable under its long-term incentive compensation plans. Such common stock equivalents are computed based on the
treasury stock method using the average market price for the period.

Treasury Stock - Treasury stock acquired is recorded at cost and is carried as a reduction of stockholders' equity in the
Consolidated Statements of Condition. Treasury stock issued is valued based on the “last in, first out” inventory method.
The difference between the consideration received upon issuance and the carrying value is charged or credited to additional
paid-in capital.

Stock-Based Compensation - The Company’s stock-based compensation plans are accounted for based on the intrinsic
value method set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB
257), and related interpretations. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized, as the exercise price of the
Company’s stock options is equal to the fair market value of its common stock on the date of the grant.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”), as amended by SFAS No. 148,
disclosure requirements, pro forma net income, and earnings per share are presented in the following table as if compensation
cost for stock options, net of related tax effects, was determined under the fair value method and amortized to expense over
the options’ vesting periods. (Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data.)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net INCOme, @8 TEPOTLE. .. .oveierreiieieie ittt $ 99,136 § 92,778 § 90,150
Less: pro forma expense related to options, net of tax .....c.cccccocvvveennene (1,295) (1,564) (2,499)
Pro fOrmMAa NEL INCOIMIE ... ettt err e eeeteetereee e ses s e eeeeeeneseeereeeneeneens $ 97841 § 91,214 % 87,651
Basic Earnings Per Share:
AS TEPOTTEA oot et $ 213§ 199 § 1.88
Pro fOrma ..o e $ 211§ 195 § 1.82
Diluted Earnings Per Share: )
AS TEPOTTEA. ottt ettt sttt eb e ettt ee e saene e $ 212 % 197  § 1.86
Pro fOIMA ..ottt et $ 209§ 194 § 1.81
Weighted-average assumptions used in the model to
determine the fair value of the options granted:
Risk-free INLETeSt TALE ......eoeiieiiiei e 2.61% 2.27% 4.69%
Expected life of the option (in YEAIS)......covceoeiirirceireei e 3.0 35 7.8
Expected dividend yield........ccoovmiriniiiiiciinis e 2.66% 2.72% 2.72%
Expected stock vOlatility ..o 19% 22% 22%
Weighted-average fair value of options at their grant date .................. $3.90 $3.58 $6.99

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models such as the Black-Scholes require the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Periodically, management will review and adjust the
assumptions used to calculate the fair value of an option in order to realign them with current experience. In 2003,
management adjusted the expected life of an option and the correlating risk-free interest rate to better reflect historical and
expected trends. The Company's stock options have characteristics significantly different from traded options. Changes in
these assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, and, as a result, the existing models may not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

For additional details on the Company’s stock-based compensation plans see Note 17, “Stock Option Plans,” commencing on
page 68 of this Form 10-K.

Comprehensive Income - Comprehensive income is the total of reported net income and all other revenues, expenses, gains
and losses that under U.S. GAAP bypass reported net income. The Company includes changes in unrealized gains or losses,
net of tax, on securities available for sale and changes in the fair value of derivatives designated under cash flow hedges in
other comprehensive income and is presented in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.
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Segment Disclosures - Operating segments are components of a business about which separate financial information is
available and that are evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance. Public companies are required to report certain financial information about operating segments in
interim and annual financial statements. The Company’s chief operating decision maker evaluates the operations of the
Company as one operating segment, commercial banking, due to the materiality of the commercial banking operation to the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations, taken as a whole, and as a result, separate segment disclosures are
not required. The Company offers the following products and services to external customers: deposits, loans, and trust
services. Revenues for each of these products and services are disclosed separately in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS
No. 123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”, supersedes APB 25 and amends
FASB Statement No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS No. 123R establishes standards for the accounting for
transactions in which an entity (i) exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services, or (ii) incurs liabilities in exchange
for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance
of the equity instruments. SFAS No. 123R eliminates the ability to account for stock-based compensation using APB 25 and
requires that such transactions be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement based on their fair values on the
date of the grant. The effective date of SFAS No. 123R is the first reporting period beginning after June 15, 2005, which is
third quarter 2005 for calendar year companies, although early adoption is allowed. SFAS No. 123R permits companies to
adopt the recognition requirements using either a “modified prospective” method or a “modified retrospective” method.
Under the “modified prospective” method, compensation cost is recognized in the financial statements beginning with the
effective date, based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based payments granted after that date, and based
on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all unvested awards granted prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123R. Under
the “modified retrospective” method, the requirements are the same as under the “modified prospective” method, but also
permits entities to restate financial statements of previous periods based on pro forma disclosures made in accordance with
SFAS No. 123.

The Company currently utilizes a standard option-pricing model (i.e., Black-Scholes) to measure the fair value of stock
options granted. While SFAS No. 123R permits entities to continue to use such a model, the standard also permits the use of
a “lattice” model. The Company is currently evaluating the alternative models, including the underlying valuation
assumptions and has not yet determined which model it will use to measure the fair value of stock options upon the adoption
of SFAS No. 123R.

SFAS No. 123R also requires that the benefits associated with the tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost
be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This
requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net financing cash flows in periods after the effective date.
These future amounts cannot be estimated, because they depend on, among other things, when stock options are exercised.
However, the amount of operating cash flows recognized in prior periods for such excess tax deductions, as shown in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, were $1.4 million, $0.9 million, and $1.0 million, respectively, for 2004,
2003, and 2002.

The Company currently expects to adopt SFAS No. 123R effective July 1, 2005; however, the Company has not yet
determined which of the aforementioned recognition methods it will use. The Company currently uses the intrinsic value
method as permitted by APB 25 to account for its share-based payments to employees, and as such, generally recognizes no
compensation expense for employee stock options. Accordingly, adopting SFAS No. 123R will result in the Company
recording compensation cost for employee stock options. Subject to a complete review of the requirements of SFAS No.
123R, based on stock options granted through December 31, 2004, and stock options expected to be granted during 2005, the
Company expects that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R on July 1, 2005, would reduce both third quarter 2005 and fourth
quarter 2005 net income by approximately $0.4 million ($.008 per diluted share) each. Future levels of compensation cost
recognized related to share-based compensation awards (including the aforementioned expected costs during the period of
adoption) may be impacted by new awards and/or modifications, repurchases and cancellations of existing awards before and
after the adoption of this standard. Had the Company adopted stock option expensing in prior periods, the impact would have
approximated that as presented in the SFAS No. 123 disclosure of pro-forma net income and earnings per share in Note 1,
“Summary of Accounting Policies,” commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K. For additional information regarding the
Company’s stock-based compensation plans, refer to Note 17, “Stock-Based Compensation,” commencing on page 68 of this
Form 10-K.
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In March 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force on Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments” (“EITF 03-17). EITF 03-1 provides
guidance for determining when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other-than-temporary, and
measuring an impairment loss. An investment is considered impaired if the fair value of the investment is less than its cost.
Generally, an impairment is considered other-than-temporary unless: (a) the investor has the ability and intent to hold an
investment for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a forecasted recovery of fair value up to (or beyond) the cost of the
investment; and (b) evidence indicating that the cost of the investment is recoverable within a reasonable period of time
outweighs evidence to the contrary. If impairment is determined to be other-than-temporary, then an impairment loss is
recognized equal to the difference between the investment’s cost and its fair value. The guidance also includes accounting
considerations subsequent to recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about
unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments.

With the release of FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) EITF Issue 03-1-1 on September 30, 2004, the FASB staff delayed the
effective date of the other-than-temporary impairment evaluation guidance of EITF 03-1 (which was initially to be applied
prospectively to all current and future investments in interim and annual reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004).
FSP EITF 03-1 delays the effective date of the measurement and recognition guidance until certain implementation issues are
addressed and a final FSP providing implementation guidance is issued. The disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 remain in
effect and are presented in Note 4, “Securities,” commencing on page 54 of this From 10-K for the periods ended December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. The amount of any other-than-temporary impairment that may need to be recognized in
the future will be dependent on market conditions, the occurrence of certain events or changes in circumstances relative to an
investee, the final guidance issued by the FASB, and the Company’s intent and ability to hold the impaired investments at the
time of the valuation.

In December 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants issued AICPA Statement of Position No. 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a
Transfer” (“SOP 03-3"). SOP 03-3 was issued to address accounting for differences between the contractual cash flows and
the cash flows expected to be collected of certain loans and debt securities (structured as loans) when acquired in a transfer,
if those differences are attributable, at least in part, to credit quality. As such, SOP 03-3 applies to such loans and debt
securities acquired in purchase business combinations and does not apply to originated loans. The application of SOP 03-3
could reduce the interest income that is recognized for certain loans and debt securities by requiring that acquired loans and
debt securities be recorded at their fair value defined as the present value of future cash flows net of expected credit losses.
As a result, an allowance for loan losses would not be recognized at acquisition. Subsequent to the initial acquisition,
increases in expected cash flows generally would be recognized prospectively through adjustment of the yield on the loan or
debt security over its remaining life. Decreases in expected cash flows would be recognized as impairment. SOP 03-3 is
effective for loans and debt securities acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004, with early application
encouraged. The Company will continue to evaluate the applicability of this SOP for prospective acquisitions.

3. ACQUISITION AND DIVESTITURE ACTIVITY

On June 13, 2003, the Company acquired from The Northern Trust Company a single retail branch office located in Chicago,
[llinois, which had $102.9 million of deposits and $13.9 million of loans. This acquisition was accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting and resulted in the recognition of $18.4 million and $0.9 million in goodwill and core deposit
intangibles, respectively. Both the goodwill and core deposit intangibles resulting from the transaction are deductible for
income tax purposes.

On November 17, 2003, the Company completed the sale of two retail branch offices in Streator, Illinois, which included
$69.1 million of deposits and other labilities, $11.3 million of loans, and $500,000 of premises and equipment. The
Company received a deposit premium of 7%, or $4.9 million. The pre-tax gain from the sale was $4.6 million, net of
associated costs, and was reflected in other non-interest income.

On December 31, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of CoVest Bancshares, Inc. (the “CoVest Acquisition™), a
single bank holding company, in a cash transaction valued at $27.45 per CoVest share, or approximately $102.2 million in
the aggregate. CoVest provided retail and commercial banking services to customers through three full service locations in
the northwest suburbs of Chicago, lllinois. The transaction, which is accounted for under the purchase method of accounting,
included the recognition of $12.9 million of identifiable intangible assets to be amortized over a weighted-average life of 7.1
years and the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets (“goodwill”) of $49.7 million. The
goodwill and intangibles resulting from this transaction are not deductible for income tax purposes.
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In connection with the CoVest Acquisition, the Company accrued $6.0 million for direct merger-related costs, which was
included in the purchase price of the transaction and in the determination of goodwill. The merger-related charges consisted
of $4.6 million in employee severance and benefit related costs, $583,000 in contract termination costs, and $777,000 in
professional fees. Cash payments totaled $4.5 million and noncash accrual adjustments totaled $351,000. The noncash
accrual adjustments were offset to goodwill and were associated with reduced contract termination fees and severance
payments. As of December 31, 2004, the remaining $1.1 million accrual represents change-in-control payments, which are in
the process of distribution and scheduled to be completed by December 31, 2006.

In addition to the direct merger-related charges, the Company incurred $650,000 during first quarter 2004 related to
integrating CoVest operations into the Company, including salaries, retention bonuses, customer product transition
brochures, and various system conversion costs.

4. SECURITIES

The aggregate amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and market value of securities as of December 31 were as
follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
Amortized Gross Unrealized Market Amortized Gross Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities Available for Sale
U.S. AZENCY worvvveeeerrrrnees S 141,928 $ 357 S (263) S 142,022 $ 219406 $ - 8 (2) $ 219,404
Collateralized mortgage
obligations.......cceevevveennene 898,565 2,378 (8,177) 892,766 901,998 6,175 (5,952) 902,221
Other mortgage-backed
SECUTTHES..ov.vevveeeerecrensenns 393,353 4,843 (1,479) 396,717 255,586 6,142 (266) 261,462
State and municipal ............. 566,425 20,369 (1,794) 585,000 706,741 53,832 (793) 759,780
Other...coovieeeeeceeeeeeea 163,057 28 (152) 162,933 91,848 35 (5,100) 86,783
Total ...ocvevereeeieeeieiiea $ 2,163,328 § 27,975 S (11,865) § 2,179438 $§ 2175579 $ 66,184 § (12,113) § 2229650
Securities Held to
Maturity
U.S. Treasury....ccococeeevcrenee $ 1,025 $ - 5 4 3 1,021 % 1,376 § 13 - 8 1,377
U.S. Agency .o 449 - ¢ 448 176 - - 176
State and municipal ............. 63,102 47 - 63,149 65,894 67 - 65,961
Total oo $ 64576 § 47 3 5 % 64,618 §$ 67,446 $ 68 % - 3 67,514

Other securities available for sale include Federal Home Loan Bank stock, Federal Reserve Bank stock, Federal National
Mortgage Association stock, and other marketable equity securities. The Federal Home Loan Bank stock and the Federal
Reserve Bank stock are carried at cost.

The following table presents the aggregate amount of unrealized losses and the aggregate related fair values of investments
with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. The securities presented are grouped according to the time periods
during which the investments have been in a continuous unrealized loss position. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
As of December 31, 2004
U.S. Treasury .....ccocoeevevveeeinenennns $ 1,021 §$ 4 % -3 - $ 1,021 § 4
U.S. Agency . .cooovvevneeiceevierereenen 52,269 264 - - 52,269 264
Collateralized mortgage obligations 536,989 4,644 166,315 3,533 703,304 8,177
Other mortgage-backed securities.... 120,847 1,430 3,668 49 124,515 1,479
State and municipal......................... 42,567 594 49,075 1,200 91,642 1,794
Other ...oooiiieicceeee e 23,605 152 - - 23,605 152

Total oo $ 777,298 § 7,088 % 219,058 $ 4782 § 996,356 § 11,870
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Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
As of December 31, 2003
U.S. Treasury ..ccocoveevevieereeeneevenneni, $ - 8 - 3 -5 - 8§ - § -
U.S. AENCY .o, 99,861 2 - - 99,861 2
Collateralized mortgage obligations 537,323 5,947 41 5 537,364 5,952
Other mortgage-backed securities.... 77,534 204 7,299 62 84,833 266
State and municipal.........ccccoeereien 53,215 793 - - 53,215 793
Other ..o - - 24,900 5,100 24,900 5,100

TOtal oo $ 767933 § 6,946 § 32,240 § 5,167 $ 800,173 § 12,113

At December 31, 2004, gross unrealized losses for the securities portfolio totaled $11.9 million, with $7.1 million or 60% in
an unrealized loss position for less than 12 months. At December 31, 2004, 81% of total unrealized losses were comprised of
securities issued or guaranteed by U.S. Government-sponsored agencies with price movements in these securities dependent
upon movement in the market interest rates, given the negligible inherent credit risk for these securities. The Company has
both the intent and ability to hold the securities with unrealized losses for a period of time necessary to recover the amortized
cost. Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2004 represents an other-than-

temporary impairment,

The following table presents securities available for sale and held to maturity as of December 31, 2004, by remaining

contractual maturity. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

Available for Sale Held to Maturity

Amortized Market Amortized Market

Cost Value Cost Value
ONE YA OF 1888 ..eoviiiivieireerieii e e atceie e sae e $ 191,851 § 192,535 % 23,776 § 23,788
One year t0 fIVe YEarS.......cveoveiiereerereeiree et 292,014 299,763 25,229 25,248
Five Years to teN YEAIS ..c.vcviveuermiiierirnre ettt ein e 165,836 171,274 1,470 1,471
ATLET 1O YEAIS ..ottt v 143,152 147,846 14,101 14,111
Collateralized mortgage obligations..........cccccvvcvvceiniciinnnae 898,565 892,766 - -
Other mortgage-backed securities ........occovvvvrvecrennniennenn, 393,353 396,717 - -
EQUITY SECUTIHIES ooevvivveesicsirecesiecveireeneeieeies et aeiraresseas 78,557 78,537 - -
TOtAL 1ot s $2,163,328 § 2,179438 § 64,576 $ 64,618

The following table presents proceeds from sales of securities and the components of net security gains for the years ended

December 31. (Doliar amounts in thousands.)

Proceeds from SAlES ..ot

Gross 18al1Zed GAINS......ociivviiiiic it
Gross realized JOSSES ...ovvvevreeieeeiieseceteeeeeeee et ettt

Net realized gains ....ooveoiiiioeie et

Income taxes on net realized gaINS.......cccoviviivrirnenienrnc e

2004 2003 2002

S 467928 $ 608,485 § 300,212

$ 14725 $ 4134 § 1921
(6,503) (1,146) (1,461)

S 8222 $ 2988 S 460

$ 3207 § 1,165 $ 179

Included in gross realized losses for 2004 is $5.4 million in other-than-temporary impairment recognized on the Company’s

investment in the Federal National Mortgage Association preferred stock.

The carrying value of securities available for sale, securities held to maturity, and securities purchased under agreements to
resell, which were pledged to secure deposits and for other purposes as permitted or required by law at December 31, 2004

and 2003 totaled $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively.
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Excluding securities issued by the U.S. Government and its agencies and corporations, there were no investments in
securities from one issuer that exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders' equity on December 31, 2004 or 2003.

For additional details of the securities available for sale portfolio and the related impact of unrealized gains/(losses) thereon,
see Note 14, “Comprehensive Income,” commencing on page 64 of this Form 10-K.

5. LOANS

Total loans, net of deferred loan fees of $5.2 million at December 31, 2004 and $3.2 million at December 31, 2003, were as
follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003

Commercial and indUSITIAL ...........cooiiiiiiii et ee e sbaesae s $ 1,146,168 $ 1,052,117
AGTICUITUIAL ..o et ettt as st et e e esseasteae b e eneesebesrrearbesbeeeeeeneas 107,059 94,983
Real estate — COMMETCIAL ........covviiveeiiiceiccic ettt et vestaesae e 1,493,855 1,393,420
Real €5tate — CONSIUCTION. ... ..oiiviieerieitiesitieiieve sttt e et eeeaee e bt stae e eeeeaeesasteestaeenneseseneseibsasreeaes 427,248 453,429
COTISUITIET .\ iuviiitiitieeiiesetessaeeeeasteassasscassaassnsaassasssassanssaassenssasseaksasansshsasanessssenssaeassnesnsnassnssnnssnns 868,436 895,588
Real estate - 1-4 fAMILY ..ooooviieiiei st e 92,512 170,245

TOLAL LOAMS ...ovvvovie ettt ettt et et e tbeerae b e e e e sttt e et ete e sabeeabeetrebeas $ 4,135,278 § 4,059,782

The Company primarily lends to consumers and small to mid-sized businesses in the market areas in which the Company
operates. Within these areas, the Company diversifies its loan portfolio by loan type, industry, and borrower. The Company
believes that such diversification reduces the exposure to economic downturns that may occur in different segments of the
economy or in different industries. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were no significant loan concentrations with
any single borrower, industry, or geographic segment.

It is the Company’s policy to review each prospective credit in order to determine the appropriateness and, when required, the
adequacy of security or collateral to obtain prior to making a loan. In the event of borrower default, the Company seeks
restitution through adherence to state lending laws and the Company’s lending standards and credit monitoring procedures.

The following table summarizes the book value of loans that were pledged to secure deposits and for other purposes as
required or permitted by law at December 31, 2004 and 2003. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
Loans pledged to secure:
DIEPOSIES ...ttt et e ettt $ 25,864 % 54,455
Federal Home Loan Bank AdVANCES.........coooviiiiiiiiiieee et 256,141 326,620
TOTAL .ottt e ettt b e e e et e et e et beeebeeabeeeraae $ 282,005 $ 381,075

Securitization Activity

During November 2004, the Company securitized $74.2 million of real estate 1-4 family loans, converting the loans into
mortgage-backed securities issued through the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. Accordingly, the securitized
amounts were reclassified from loans to securities available-for-sale. The Company retained servicing responsibilities for the
mortgages supporting these securities and collects servicing fees equal to a percentage of the outstanding principal balance of
the loans being serviced. Subsequent to the securitization, the Company sold $56.4 million of the securities and recorded a
pre-tax gain of $1.9 million from the sale. The gain on the sale is included in security gains, net, and the servicing income is
included in other service charges, commissions, and fees on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Mortgage loans
serviced for and owned by third parties are not included in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. The unpaid principal
balance of these loans totaled $73.5 million as of December 31, 2004. The Company retains limited recourse, through
November 30, 2011, for credit losses on $26.4 million of the loans securitized during 2004. The dollar amount of the
potential recourse to the Company is capped at a certain percentage of the initial balance of the loans for which recourse
exists. Accordingly, the Company recorded a liability of $148,000 for the expected costs related to this recourse agreement.
Changes in the carrying value of mortgage servicing rights for the year ended December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows.
(Dollar amounts in thousands.)
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Balance at Deginming Of YEAT .......ccoviiiiiiic i e e et $ -
INEW SEIVICIIE SSEES .oeurieetitieieeieeriesrce st ee s et e et et eeteee e ete e eeaatsetesmc et st b et et e e e aesen e seee it e encnaneeansontemne e 824
ATNOTTZATION .ttt ettt ettt r e ekt b2t st a2 me st eb e e s et seern e st et e b ene st ene e en e e e e I )]

Balance at €0 Of AT ..ot ettt $ 798

Mortgage servicing rights retained by the Company in a sale or securitization of loans are reported at the lower of amortized
cost or fair value and included in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Fair value is initially measured
based on allocating the previous carrying amount of the assets sold or securitized between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values on the date of sale or securitization. Fair value is subsequently determined by
estimating the present value of the future cash flows associated with the mortgage loans serviced. Key economic
assumptions used in measuring the fair value of mortgage servicing rights at December 31, 2004 include prepayment and
discount rates. The Company uses market-based data for assumptions related to the valuation of mortgage servicing rights.
Mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing revenues. On a
quarterly basis, the Company assesses its capitalized mortgage servicing rights for impairment based on their current fair
value. The Company stratifies its servicing rights based on loan type, which it believes is the predominant risk characteristic
of the underlying loans. The impairment recognized, if any, is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage servicing rights
exceeds the fair value of each individual loan type.

6. RESERVE FOR LOAN LOSSES AND IMPAIRED LOANS
Reserve For Loan Losses

A summary of the transactions in the reserve for loan losses follows for the years ended December 31. (Dollar amounts in
thousands.)

2004 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of year.......c.ccooviciiiniini $ 56,404 § 47,929 § 47,745
Loans charged-off ..ot e (15,081) (12,105) (18,177)
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off...........cccovvvniiniinccnnnn. 2,472 2,555 2,951
Net loans charged-off ... (12,609) (9,550) (15,226)
Provision for 10an TOSSES .....coceiviv it 12,923 10,805 15,410
Reserve of acquired bank ..........ccccovivieiinniencinee e : - 7,220 -
Balance at end of Year.......ccocuiiirciiiecee e $ 56,718 % 56,404 § 47,929

Impaired Loans

A portion of the Company’s reserve for loan losses is allocated to loans deemed impaired. All impaired loans are included in
non-performing assets. A summary of these loans and their related reserve for loan losses is as follows. (Dollar amounts in
thousands.)

2004 2003 2002

Impaired loans:
With valuation reserve required e $ 6,851 $ 12,230 § 1,587
With no valuation reserve required .......ccooooveevivireionc e 10,349 7,508 7,736
Total iIMPAITed LOANS ....ccovverirvireiireees ettt $ 17,200 § 19,738 § 9,323
Valuation reserve related to impaired 10ans ...........cccoceeviiciivneccieen, $ 5,524 § 4,167 $ 1,336
Average IMPaired 108NS... ..o $ 19,207 § 13924 § 10,855
Interest income recognized on impaired 10ans @ ..........o.ooocoveiiiovercreen $ 107§ 218§ 345

M These impaired loans require a valuation reserve because the value of the loans is less than the recorded investment in the loans.
Interest income recognized on impaired loans is recorded using the cash basis of accounting.

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans.
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7. PREMISES, FURNITURE, AND EQUIPMENT

Premises, furniture, and equipment at December 31 are summarized as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
LGN 1ttt ettt ettt b et e b vt er b e et e et e et st e et terteaasanns $ 29,969 $ 29,983
& (00T Y=L RO USROS 96,020 98,644
Furniture and eQUIPMENT .........coieieriiic ettt et e et sta et besae vt staaeessestaree sbbereaseereaabenes 69,841 71,518
TOTAL COST .ottt ettt e et e et e e e et s e e s e s ettrae e e e ntaeeeeantneaanes 195,830 200,145
AccUmUIated dePrECIAtION . ...c.cviiiiririn ettt ettt be e se bt errenanenenesenbes (106,827) {108,610)
NEEDOOK VAIUE ..ottt ettt st ere e seeeresreareens $ 89,003 § 91,535

Depreciation expense on premises, furniture, and equipment for the years 2004, 2003, and 2002 totaled, $8.8 million, $8.4
million, and $8.7 million, respectively.

Operating Leases

At December 31, 2004, the Company and the Bank were each obligated under certain noncancellable operating leases for
premises and equipment, which expire at various dates through the year 2015. Many of these leases contain renewal options,
and certain leases provide options to purchase the leased property during or at the expiration of the lease period at specific
prices. Some leases contain escalation clauses calling for rentals to be adjusted for increased real estate taxes and other
operating expenses, or proportionately adjusted for increases in the consumer or other price indices. The following summary
reflects the future minimum rental payments, by year, required under operating leases that, as of December 31, 2004, have
initial or remaining noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

Total
Year-ending December 31,

2005 e ettt $ 1,065
2006 ettt 1,262
2007 ettt et e et ans 1,516
2008ttt ettt et e a et et a e eea e ena 1,468
2009 et e 1,437
2010 and thereafter . ......covvieiviiiiee et 8,490

Total minimum lease Payments ..........ccoeveeeernrrevescerineenssrnes $ 15,238

Rental expense charged to operations in 2004, 2003, and 2002, amounted to approximately $2.2 million, $2.0 million, and
$1.9 million, respectively, including amounts paid under short-term cancelable leases. Occupancy expense has been reduced
by rental income from premises leased to others in the amount of $274,000 for 2004, $217,000 for 2003, and $222,000 for
2002.

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142 which provides that
intangible assets with finite lives be amortized and that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives not be
amortized, but rather tested at least annually for impairment. During fourth quarter 2004, the Company performed its annual

impairment test, resulting in no impairment for 2004.

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2004 is as follows. (Dollar amounts in
thousands.)
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2004 2003

Balance at beginning 0f YEAT......coc.iviiiiriiriie ettt ettt § 83735 § 16,397
Goodwill from bUSINESS COMBDINMATIONS . ......uiiivrieeeiiiiietreeerieesitreseeeeeseetrseeesereesrnnreseereeeeanns - 67,338
Purchase accounting adjuStimMEInts .........eveeuirerieirnueriniiice ettt s es b aene e eeeaes 812 -

Balance at eNd Of YEAT ........ivieeii ettt a et b eve bt S 84,547 § 83,735

Purchase accounting adjustments are the adjustments to the initial goodwill recorded at the time an acquisition is completed.
Such adjustments generally consist of adjustments to the assigned fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
resulting from the completion of appraisals or other valuations and adjustments to initial estimates recorded for transaction
costs or exit liabilities. :

The Company has other intangible assets capitalized on its Consolidated Statements of Condition in the form of core deposit
premiums and a noncompete agreement. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, these intangible assets are being amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 12 years. The Company reviews intangible assets for possible impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable. A summary of the
Company’s other intangible assets follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Gross Remaining Gross Remaining
Carrying Accumulated  Net Carrying Life Carrying Accumulated  Net Carrying Life
Amount Amortization Amount (in years) Amount Amortization Amount _(in years)
Other intangible assets:
Core deposit premium ... $ 13,834 § 2,002 $ 11,832 6.4 $ 15,071 $ 38 $ 15,033 7.3
Noncompete agreement ... 500 167 333 2.0 500 - 500 3.0
Total other intangible
ASSELS.. e e $ 14334 § 2,169 § 12,165 6.2 § 1557) $ 38 § 15533 7.1

Amortization expense of other intangible assets totaled $2.1 million, $38,000, and $1.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Amortization expense on other intangible assets is expected to total $2.1
million in 2005 and 2006, $2.0 million in 2007, $1.9 million in 2008, and $1.5 million in 2009.

9. DEPOSITS

The following is a summary of deposits at December 31. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003

DEIMANA AEPOSIES 1vvvvveeveuitiieeeeeeieritets et ete et es s es s b e bese st se et eae et st ee e e s ase s sn bt e e teesssbene s $ 922540 § 859,080
SAVINES QEPOSIES 1. vceevtieteriieeete sttt ee ettt et rete e se e et st ese e b e et e n et sbesees e et 644,664 629,505
INOW GCCOUNTS ...ttt eeee et e ettt e ettt e e et s e ra s e et e e e e e eabeeae e st ae e et e e eaeeeraeeaeasesneneeenes 891,378 890,461
Money market dEPOSIES ..o e 691,648 740,009
Time deposits Iess than $100,000 ..ottt 1,236,370 1,119,495
Time deposits 0f $100,000 OF MOTE.....cceeiiirieiiiiice ettt se e eve st st staa e aee e ene s 518,778 576,558

TOtA] EPOSIES .vevveeririeiceeeiiectite ettt ettt er e eb e st s bt be bt st re et et s e s b e easessanen b $ 4905378 § 4,815,108

The scheduled maturities of time deposits as of December 31, 2004, for the years 2005 through 2010 and thereafter, were as
follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)
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Total
Year ending December 31,

2005 ettt b et e b $ 1,145875
2006...0.eieeereii ettt ettt et teer s bbb e e ena 457,119
2007 ettt et et ettt ettt ee 84,936
2008t et e b et bt ettt eas e 32,509
2009 ettt bttt re et r e e 34,521
2010 and thereafter.........cooovviiiiiie ettt 188

TOtAL e $ 1,755,148

10. BORROWED FUNDS

The following is a summary of borrowed funds for the years ended December 31. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
Securities sold under agreements to rePUIChASE ......c.coveeiiiecieiirriiie et $ 404,589 $ 564,709
Federal funds purchased..........coovviiiiiiieiiiriiceent e s e et 300,000 315,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advVancCes........covviiviioiieiiriccie ettt stva e seve e nae e 513,743 491,373
Other Borrowed FUNAS .....vooiiiiecc ettt et rra e et - 590
Total DOITOWEA FUNAS ....voeeeii ittt ettt sre e $ 1,218,332 $ 1,371,672

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and Federal funds purchased generally mature within I to 90 days from the
transaction date. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are treated as financings, and the obligations to repurchase
securities sold are reflected as a liability in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Repurchase agreements are secured by
U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities and, if required, are held in third party pledge accounts. The securities underlying
the agreements remain in the respective asset accounts. As of December 31, 2004, the Company did not have amounts at risk
under repurchase agreements with any individual counterparty or group of counterparties that exceed 10% of stockholders’

equity.

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and has access to term ﬁnancing from the FHLB. These
advances are secured by qualifying residential and multi-family mortgages and mortgage-related securities. At December 31,
2004, all advances from the FHLB are fixed rate with interest payable monthly. As of December 31, 2004, the maturity and

rate schedule for FHLB advances is as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

Advance

Maturity Amount Rate (%)
March 16,2005 .....coccoiiiiieice e $ 25,000 1.23
March 31,2005 ....coovieiiiinnei e 48,000 1.27
April 15,2005 .o 67,000 1.47
April 29, 2005 ..ot 25,000 1.78
May 2, 2005 ..o 50,000 1.76
May 13,2005 oo 50,000 1.58
October 3, 2005 ..o 50,000 1.83
October 3, 2005 ....coiiiireisetee e 50,000 1.82
October 31, 2005....c..ccoovininciiinninreeeneee e 75,000 2.10
December 19, 2005 .....ccovivvviiiririiee e 25,000 2.17
December 19,2005 ... 12,000 2.03
March 15,2006 ......ocoovovveeiiicieeie e 14,900 1.70
May 30, 2006 .....covcveriririiiriciteei e 3,000 2.06
July 24, 2006 ...t 5,151 4.17
January 15,2008 ) ..o 10,692 4.63
May 28,2008 ..o 3,000 2.77

$ 513,743 1.81

W Callable quarterly, in whole or in part, at the discretion of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago.
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Other borrowed funds consist of term Federal funds purchased, treasury tax and loan deposits, and short-term credit
arrangements with unaffiliated banks and are generally repaid daily. None of the Company’s borrowings have any related
compensating balance requirements that restrict the usage of Company assets.

Exclusive of the Federal Reserve Bank’s primary credit program, the Company had $917.8 million of unused short-term
credit lines available for use at December 31, 2004.

11. SUBORDINATED DEBT - TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

In November 2003 the Company formed First Midwest Capital Trust I (“FMCT [”), a statutory business trust, organized for
the sole purpose of issuing trust securities and investing the proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentures of the
Company, the sole assets of the trust. The preferred trust securities of the trust represent preferred beneficial interests in the
assets of the trust and are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, upon payment of the junior subordinated
debentures held by the trust. The common securities of the trust are wholly owned by the Company. The trust’s ability to
pay amounts due on the trust preferred securities is solely dependent upon the Company making payment on the related
junior subordinated debentures. The Company’s obligations under the junior subordinated debentures and other relevant trust
agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the trust’s obligations under the
trust securities issued by the trust. The guarantee covers the distributions and payments on liquidation or redemption of the
trust preferred securities, but only to the extent of funds held by the trust.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”), FMCT I qualifies
as a variable interest entity for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary and therefore ineligible for consolidation.
Accordingly, the trust 1s not consolidated in the Company's financial statements and 1s accounted for using the equity method.
The subordinated debentures issued by the Company to the trust are reflected in the Company's Consolidated Statement of
Condition as “Subordinated Debt - Trust Preferred Securities” with the corresponding interest distributions recorded as
interest expense. The common shares issued by the trust are included in other assets in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Condition.

The trust preferred securities are tax-advantaged issues and currently qualify for Tier 1 capital treatment under the Federal
Reserve Board (“FRB”) guidelines. As a result of the issuance of FIN 46R, the FRB is currently evaluating whether de-
consolidation of the trust will affect the qualification of the trust preferred securities as Tier 1 capital. Refer to Note 2,
“Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” and Note 19, “Regulatory and Capital Matters,” commencing on pages 52 and 70,
respectively, of this Form 10-K for additional details regarding risk-based capital ratios.

The common stock, preferred securities, and related debentures as of December 31 are summarized as follows. (Dollar
amounts in thousands.)

Trust
Common Preferred
Issuance Shares Securities Coupon Principal Amount of
Date Issued Issued ¥ Rate ¥ __Maturity Debentures ©/
Issuance Trust 2004 2003
First Midwest Capital Trust I Nov.2003 § 3,866 125,000 6.95% Dec. 1,2033 $ 129,294 § 128,716

() The trust preferred securities accrue distributions at a rate equal to the interest rate and maturity identical to that of the related debentures.
The trust preferred securities will be redeemed upon maturity of the related debentures.

@ The coupon rate is fixed with distributions payable semi-annually. The Company has the right to defer payment of interest on
the debentures at any time or from time to time for a period not exceeding five years provided no extension period may extend
beyond the stated maturity of the debentures. During such extension period, distributions on the trust preferred securities will also
be deferred, and the Company’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock will be restricted.

@3

The Company has the right to redeem its debentures: (i) in whole or in part at any time and (ii) in whole at any time within 90 days after the
occurrence of a “Tax Event,” an “Investment Company Act Event,” or a “Regulatory Capital Event,” (as defined in the indenture pursuant to
which the debentures were issued), subject to regulatory approval. 1f the debentures are redeemed before they mature, the redemption price will
be the greater of: (a) the principal amount, plus any accrued but unpaid interest or (b) the sum of the present values of principal and interest
payments from the redemption date to the maturity date discounted at the Adjusted Treasury Rate (as defined in the indenture), plus any accrued
but unpaid interest. Included in the carrying value are unamortized discounts of $144,900 at December 31, 2004 and $149,900 at December 31,
2003 and a basis adjustment related to fair value hedges of $572,400 as of December 31, 2004, Refer to Note 12, “Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” commencing on page 62 of this Form 10-K.

During January 2004, the Company effectively converted $25 million of the debentures to a floating-rate basis with the use of
an interest rate swap. The swap qualifies as a fair value hedge, and, in accordance with SFAS No. 133, the carrying value of
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the debentures was adjusted by the change in its fair value since designation as a hedged liability. Refer to Note 12,
“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” commencing on page 62 of this Form 10-K.

12. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative instruments
to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings and cash flows caused by interest rate volatility. Derivatives are
also implicit in certain contracts and commitments. SFAS No. 133 requires all derivative instruments to be carried at fair
value on the balance sheet and provides special hedge accounting provisions that permit the change in fair value of the
hedged item related to the risk being hedged to be recognized in earnings in the same period and in the same income
statement line as the change in fair value of the derivative. Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,”
commencing on page 47 of this Form 10-K, provides further detail on how derivative instruments are accounted for in the
financial statements. The Company usually designates derivative instruments used to manage interest rate risk into SFAS
No. 133 hedge relationships with the specific assets, liabilities, or cash flows being hedged. Some derivative instruments
used for interest rate risk management may not be designated in a SFAS No. 133 hedge relationship. Such will be the case if
the derivative instrument is being used to offset risk related to an asset or liability that is accounted for at fair value in the
financial statements, if the derivative instrument has been moved out of a SFAS No. 133 relationship because the hedge was
deemed not effective, or if operational or cost constraints make it prohibitive to apply hedge accounting.

Management uses derivative instruments to protect against the risk of interest rate movements on the value of certain assets
and liabilities and on future cash flows. The derivative instruments the Company primarily uses are interest rate swaps with
indices that relate to the pricing of specific assets and liabilities. The nature and volume of the derivative instruments used to
manage interest rate risk depend on the level and type of assets and liabilities on the balance sheet and the risk management
strategies for the current and anticipated rate environment.

As with any financial instrument, derivative instruments have inherent risks, primarily market and credit risk. Market risk is
the adverse effect a change in interest rates, currency, equity prices, or implied volatility has on the value of a financial
instrument. Market risk associated with changes in interest rates is managed by establishing and monitoring limits as to the
degree of risk that may be undertaken as part of the Company’s overall market risk monitoring process, which includes the
use of net interest income and economic value of equity simulation methodologies. This process is carried out by the
Company’s Asset Liability Management Committee. See further discussion of this process in Item 7a, “Qualitative and
Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” commencing on page 38 of this Form 10-K.

Credit risk occurs when the counterparty to a derivative contract with an unrealized gain fails to perform according to the
terms of the agreement. Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate amount of net unrealized gains in agreements
outstanding, monitoring the size and the maturity structure of the derivatives, applying uniform credit standards maintained
for all activities with credit risk, and collateralizing gains. The Company maintains a policy limiting credit exposure to any
one counterparty to not more than 2.5% of stockholders’ equity. Additionally, the Company has established bilateral
collateral agreements with its major derivative dealer counterparties that provide for exchanges of marketable securities or
cash to collateralize either party's net gains. On December 31, 2004, these collateral agreements covered 100% of the
notional amount of the Company’s interest rate swaps outstanding. Net losses with counterparties must be collateralized, at
the Company’s discretion, with either cash or U.S. Government and U.S. Government sponsored agency securities. The
Company had pledged cash of $123,000 as of December 31, 2004 and $914,000 as of December 31, 2003 to collateralize net
losses with counterparties.

Derivative contracts are valued using observable market prices, if available, or cash flow projection models acquired from
third parties. Pricing models used for valuing derivative instruments are regularly validated by testing through comparison
with other third parties. The valuations and expected lives presented in the following table are based on yield curves, forward
yield curves, and implied volatilities that were observable in the cash and derivatives markets on December 31, 2004 and
2003.

Fair Value Hedge - During 2004 and 2003, the Company hedged the fair value of fixed rate commercial real estate loans
through the use of pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swaps. Also in 2004, the Company hedged the fair value of fixed
rate, subordinated debt — trust preferred securities, through the use of pay variable, receive fixed interest rate swaps. The
Company recognized no ineffectiveness on its fair value hedges, and no gains or losses were recognized related to
components of derivative instruments that were excluded from the assessment of hedge ineffectiveness during 2004 and
2003.
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Cash Flow Hedges - During 2004 and 2003, the Company hedged cash flow variability related to certain indexed deposit and
loan accounts through the use of interest rate swaps. The Company recognized no ineffectiveness on its cash flow hedges,
and no gains or losses were recognized related to components of derivative instruments that were excluded from the
assessment of hedge ineffectiveness during 2004 and 2003.

Gains and losses on derivative instruments reclassified. from accumulated other comprehensive income to current period
earnings are included in the line item in which the hedged cash flows are recorded. Accumulated other comprehensive
income included a deferred after-tax net gain of $287,000 at December 31, 2004 and a deferred after-tax net loss of $328,000
at December 31, 2003 for the derivatives used to hedge changes in cash flows. See Note 14, “Comprehensive Income,”
commencing on page 64 of this Form 10-K, for further detail of the amounts inciuded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. The net after-tax derivative gain included in other comprehensive income at December 31, 2004 related to the
derivatives used to hedge changes in cash flows is projected to be reclassified into interest expense (income) in conjunction
with the recognition of interest payments (receipts) on funding products through June 2006, with $437,000 of the net gain
expected to be reclassified within the next year. During 2004 and 2003, pretax losses of $611,000 and $1.0 million,
respectively, were reclassified into interest expense as adjustments to interest payments on variable-rate funding products.

Other Derivative Activities - The Company’s derivative portfolio also includes derivative instruments not designated in a
SFAS No. 133 hedge relationship. Those instruments include commitments for real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans held for
sale and an interest rate cap. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for purely speculative purposes. The
effect of the mortgage loan commitments was not material for any period presented.

Summary information regarding the interest rate derivatives portfolio used for interest-rate risk management purposes and
designated as accounting hedges under SFAS No. 133 at December 31were as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003 2002
Fair Value Hedges
Notional amount outStaNdINg .........ccoveviriiaiiiririer e e $ 42,527 8§ 1,923  § -
Weighted-average interest rate paid..........cococviinnesiccciei e, 4.23% 2.75% -
Weighted-average interest rate received........o.ccoovinnininininnnne e, 5.26% 1.32% -
Weighted-average maturity (I YEArs).......ccoceverrireirrrernieeiresesesre e, 18.97 4.38 -
Derivative asset fair VAIUE....cc....cvciveresceencienenic et $ 443 § 38 § -
Cash Flow Hedges
Notional amount outStanding .........cccoceeriieiinnierei e ee e $ 120,000 § 75,000 $ 125,000
Weighted-average interest rate paid...........cocoovrorniniiinioinncnie s, 2.34% 2.30% 4.76%
Weighted-average interest rate received........coooeeieeiirveceiiecni e, 1.92% 1.14% 1.39%
Weighted-average maturity (in Years) oo e, 0.91 1.66 0.64
Derivative asset (liability) fair value..........ccoooveiiiiiciiiennc e, $ 471 § (538) $§  (1,063)

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31.
(Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003 2002

Basic earnings per share:

NEL ITICOMIC .. cevvvecte ettt rie sttt sttt st ste ettt st sbetaebe st ere b ane e $ 99,136 § 92,778 § 90,150

Average common shares outstanding ..........ccocvevvreineiiecniieseeenen e 46,469 46,671 48,074

Basic earnings per Share ........o.ocoeeeeeriieein e e $ 213§ 199 § 1.88
Diluted earnings per share:

NEEINCOMIE ....viveieeeeis it ietete et e et teete et a st e et ettt r e et $ 99,136 $ 92,778 § 90,150

Average common shares outstanding ..........ccocovviieiinciniicee e 46,469 46,671 48,074

Dilutive effect of Stock OPHONS ....cciveiiieeiiicreenee e 391 311 341

Diluted average common shares outstanding........c..ccoceeervvicrercrincerinene. 46,860 46,982 48,415

Diluted €arnings Per SHAre .......c.ccveeveiiiarneerie et b 212§ 197 § 1.86
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During 2004, 2003, and 2002, options to purchase 21,200 shares, 369,700 shares, and 353,800 shares, respectively, were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price of these options was greater than the
average market price of the Company’s common stock, and, therefore, the effect would be antidilutive.

14. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes net income as well as certain items that are reported directly within a separate component of
stockholders’ equity that are not considered part of net income. Currently, the Company’s components of other
comprehensive income are the unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale and on certain derivatives. The
following table summarizes the related before and after tax amounts for the years ended December 31. (Dollar amounts in
thousands.)

2004 2003 2002
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on available for sale securities arising during the period:
Unrealized net (I0SSES) ZAINS ...oovvrvevviviiricriiiirieer it e, $§  (29857) § (8534) § 54,185
Related tax (benefit) eXPenSe....cooeiererririiieroreieeiiirereeriresresnsensenesnennn, (11,644) (3,327) 21,132
L ettt ettt ettt sttt b ettt b e et et (18,213) (5,207 33,053
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized during the period:
Realized net gains on available for sale securities...........cccecvvrrervereereenn. 8,104 2,988 206
Related taX EXPENSE ..oovcviviriiiiereee ettt et b s ean e 3,161 1,166 81
N L ottt et s et r et bttt b et tn et 4,943 1,822 125
Net unrealized holding (losses) gains on available for sale securities........... (23,156) (7,029) 32,928
Unrealized holding gains (lossesj on derivatives used in cash flow
hedging relationships arising during the year:
Unrealized net gains (I0SSES) ....ocvovvevireriiiiiie e 398 (502) (1,107)
Related tax expense (DEenefit) .......cooviriiiriineiirinr e, 155 (195) (432)
NEE e OO 243 (307) (675)
Less: Amounts reclassified to interest expense:
Realized net (losses) on cash flow hedges.........cccoooviiiiicniniiinins, (611) (1,027) (3,028)
Realized taX (DENefit) . civiiviricie it e (239) (400) (1,181)
INEE ot (372) (627) (1,847)
Net unrealized holding gains on derivatives
used in cash flow hedging relationships...........ccccoccvrininnininninincee 615 320 1,172
Total other comprehensive (108S) INCOME ......oovrverviereeiierierre e, $  (22,541) §  (6,709) § 34,100

Activity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net.of tax, for the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2004
was as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

Accumulated Accumulated
Unrealized Unrealized Accumulated
Gains on (Losses) Gains Other
Securities on Hedging Comprehensive
Available for Sale Activities Income
Balance, December 31, 2001 .......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii et $ 7,085 % (1,820) § 5,265
2002 CHANGE....iiteitieitieeeieceaaiaeti s e seate et aserereceeareaseassassassasenseasassessaaseas 32,928 1,172 34,100
Balance, December 31, 2002.......cccooiieiviiiiiiiiieee e 40,013 (648) 39,365
2003 ChanGe.....couoiueiieieeice ettt ettt e e (7,029) 320 (6,709)
Balance, December 31, 2003 .........cccooiiiiiiiiriicee e 32,984 (328) 32,656
2004 ChANGE. ....cviviieiirerc ettt e e e ’ (23,156) 615 (22,541)
Balance, December 31, 2004 .........ooiiiiiie et $ 9,828 § 287 % 10,115
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15. INCOME TAXES

Total income taxes (benefits) reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002 include the following components. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003 2002
Current tax expense (benefit):
Federal ..o e $ 32318 § 28850 § 30,874
SEATE ettt ettt (1,992) (26) 705
TOAL o 30,326 28,824 31,579
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
Federal .ot b 1,012 907 512
SEALE ettt ettt e b et e 1,510 1,158 42
TOtAL oot et 2,522 2,065 554
Total INCOME 1AX EXPEISE ...ovvieiieiicetieieeeeie et ee et eaeaae e $ 32848 $ 30,889 § 32,133

Differences between the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the tax bases of assets and liabilities
result in temporary differences for which deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recorded. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
ReSErve TOr [0AN LOSSES ....oviiiiiiiiiiiee et ettt vttt n e eraesan s $ 19,851 $ 19,742
UNTEANZEA 10SSES 1ouviiiurii ettt et ettt ettt et e e e eae e e ets st aeeenee st esaennaeeenes 2,405 951
Accrued retirement BenefltS ..o e 1,523 1,306
State tAX DENETIILS .. .ottt ettt 345 1,327
HET 1ttt ettt et eae et e et ebe b etb et eeabeete e 2,095 1,890
Total defeITed tAX ASSELS . .cvvii ettt ettt e e e 26,219 25,216
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchase accounting adjustments and intangibles ............ocooeniiiiiiininnnec e (3,645) (3,767)
Dividends reCeivabIe. ........iiiiiii et (6,386) (4,966)
Deferred 10aN FEES . ....oviiv ettt n et b ettt (4,530) (3,230)
ORET oottt ettt bbbt bt ettt ettt et et et eabent e esaesae e (2,544) (1,617)
Total deferred tax Habilities ........ccevieieiiiiiiri ettt ee e e (17,105) (13,580)
Net AeferTed taX ASSETS..oviiviieieiiitiiieree e eee e ettt e e e et ettt e e e saaeetb e e e e e e eaesentsseeaeeerae e 9,114 11,636
Tax effect of adjustments related to other comprehensive INCOME ..o (6,467) (20,878)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets including adjustments .........cccccovveieiiiereiieneenee e, 3 2,647 § (9,242)

Net deferred tax assets are included in other assets and net deferred tax liabilities are included in other habilities in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Condition. Management believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred
tax assets will be fully realized, therefore no valuation allowance has been recorded as of December 31, 2004 or 2003.
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The differences between the statutory Federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate on income for the years ended
December 31 are as follows.

2004 2003 2002
Statutory Federal InCOME tax TALE.......cccvivriiiiir ettt 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Tax-exempt income, net of interest expense disallowance........c............. (8.2%) (8.9%) (7.1%)
State income tax, net of Federal tax effect.........c.cooviieiiiiiiiecs (0.2%) 0.1% 0.4%
OHET, NET ..ottt e e ettt st e esa e e et aaeane s (1.7%) (1.2%) (2.0%)
EffeCtive taX TAIE ..ovoviiviiveeiie st sceee sttt se st seeeebe et b e 24.9% 25.0% 26.3%

As of December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the Company's retained earnings includes an appropriation for an acquired thrift’s
tax bad debt reserves of approximately $2.5 million for which no provision for Federal or state income taxes has been made.
If, in the future, this portion of retained earnings were distributed as a result of the liquidation of the Company or its
subsidiaries, Federal and state income taxes would be imposed at the then applicable rates.

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Savings and Profit Sharing Plan - The Company has a defined contribution retirement savings plan (the “Plan”) which
allows qualified employees, at their option, to make contributions up to 15% of pre-tax base salary through salary deductions
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. At the employees’ direction, employee contributions are invested among
a variety of investment alternatives. For employees who make voluntary contributions to the Plan, the Company contributes
an amount equal to 2% of the employee’s compensation. At the Company’s discretion, an additional profit sharing amount
may also be contributed up to a maximum of 6%. The Company’s matching contribution vests immediately, while the
discretionary component gradually vests over 7 years based on the employee’s years of service. The cost of providing this
plan was $4.3 million, $4.1 million, and $4.0 million in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The number of shares of the
Company common stock held by the Plan was 1,784,808 at December 31, 2004 and 1,964,540 at December 31, 2003. The
fair value of Company shares held by the Plan at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $64.8 million and $63.7 million,
respectively. The Plan received $1.6 million in dividends during 2004 and $1.5 million during 2003.

Pension Plan - The Company sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering
substantially all full-time employees that provides for retirement benefits based upon years of service and compensation
levels of the participants. Actuarially determined pension costs are charged to current operations. The Company’s funding
policy is to contribute amounts to its plan sufficient to meet the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, plus such additional amounts as the Company determines to be appropriate.

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of revised FASB Statement No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures About Pension and
Other Postretirement Benefits,” the following table summarizes the Pension Plan’s costs and obligations to participants for
the years ended December 31. Amounts are based on an actuarial measurement date of December 31. (Dollar amounts in
thousands.)

2004 2003

Accumulated benefit 0bHgation. ..o e $ 27,007 § 22,454
Change in benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of YEar ........ccovveveierviriiiieie it $ 33,561 $ 26,316

SBTVICE COSE 1itiitiiiiiie ittt ittt et et e ettt et et e et et eetbe sttt e taeeeeatesetbeesaresebaesabe s staeeeetbeannesanneans 4,123 3,218

IIEETEST COSE uvriiiiiiiii ittt et e s e e e e et b e e eaees e e sttt e e s eneeseeenarereennneen 2,090 1,770

ACTUAITAL JOSSES 1. vttt ettt et e e e e sttt e et e et eaaen 2,867 4,145

Benefits PAId ..covviiicii et e s eb e e (2,203) (1,888)
Projected benefit obligation at €nd Of YEAT ........ccoeviviveerereinie ettt et $ 40,438 § 33,561
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2004 2003

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets of beginning of year...........c.cccoovvviiieiiiic e $ 24,367 §$ 17,949

Actual return on plan @SSETS ... e e 2,468 2,906

Benefits Paid ...o.oiiiiiirei e (2,203) {1,888)

Employer COMIIDULIONS .....eueer ittt et e enenene s 4,885 5,400
Fair value of plan assets at end Of YEaT.......cc.oi vt $ 29,517 § 24,367
Reconciliation of funded status:

FURAEA STALUS ...ovevviiiieiiiie ettt ettt b st eb st et eaes s s en ettt vens $  (10921) $ (9,194)

Unamortized PIIOT SEIVICE COSE ....uierirririririrenireteetre st erceetteetesiesitenrereeaeesreesieaseesneneneaeeeeane 32 41

Unrecognized net actuarial lOSSES ......ocoiviiiriiiiiiii e e 15,693 13,587
Net amount reCOZNIZEA. .......c.ovviiririieieititi it et er ettt et saete b ete st eseeaeen et s esee se et beae e $ 4,804 $ 4,434
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of condition consist of:

Prepaid DENEfIt COST....oiviiiiiiiiiiiiet ittt et eee b b 3 4,804 $ 4,434

Weighted-average assumptions at the end of the year used to determine the
actuarial present value of the projected benefit obligation:

DUSCOUNT TALE ...e.eteertesiet ettt ekttt ettt h et e e sbe bt h et et et ee e nene et 6.00% 6.25%
Rate of COMPENSAtION INCTEASE......ecveerriiiieieiee et et ee e 4.50% 4.50%

Net periodic benefit pension expense for the years ended December 31 included the following components. (Dollar amounts
in thousands.)

2004 2003 2002

Components of net periedic benefit cost:

SEIVICE COS.uiiiuiitiiieceei et iie et e et e et ete e e e et e et aeeee e e s eae e eaaeseae et e saeenee, S 4,123 % 3218 § 2,797

IItETESt COS . ottt e n e, 2,090 1,770 1,539

Expected return on plan assetS......ocooeviviiriiieinrine e, (2,474) (2,168) (1,945)

Recognized net actuarial 10SS......cvvviecreiiiiiiie e 768 402 96

Amortization Of prior SEIVICE COSL......evevrriirrieirinnriceenene e, 8 8 (26)
INE PETIOAIC COSE 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt c e S 4515 § 3230 § 2,461
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net periodic cost:

DHSCOUNE TALE ....eetete ettt eieeie e et ettt en e b e see b es e se e e ea e e 6.25% 6.75% 7.25%

Expected return on plan assets .....ccoceoeverreeriieiereneeeccseee e 8.50% 8.75% 9.00%

Rate of compensation INCIEASE. ........ccvveerereriirirnreececere e e, 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

The asset allocation for the Pension Plan assets as of the measurement date, by asset category, is as follows.

Target
Allocation Percentage of Plan Assets
2005 2004 2003
Asset Category:
EqQUILY SECUTTHIES. . .eveeeeeieiiieerin ettt 50-60% 59% 50%
F1Xed INCOME ..o.vovviiiiiiieiiic e, 30-45% 28% 44%
Cash equIvalents .........coeccreieniniicene e 2-10% 13% 6%
TOtAL oot 100% 100%
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At December 31, 2004, asset category allocations were outside the target range due to a December employer contribution
included in cash equivalents. On January 31, 2005, subsequent to investing this contribution, allocations were 60% equity,
34% fixed income, and 6% cash equivalents.

Unrecognized net actuarial losses -To the extent the cumulative actuarial losses exceed 10% of the greater of the benefit
obligation or the market-related value of the Pension Plan assets, the Company’s policy for recognizing the Pension Plan’s
unrecognized net actuarial losses into income is to amortize the actuarial losses over the future working life of the Pension
Plan participants. The recognized net actuarial loss is a component of the net periodic benefit cost. Amortization of the
unrecognized net actuarial losses is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s future results of operations,
financial position, or liquidity.

Determination of expected long-term rate of return - The expected long-term rate of return for the Pension Plan’s total
assets is based on the expected return of each of the above categories, weighted based on the median of the target allocation
for each class. Equity securities are expected to return 10% - 11% over the long-term, while cash and fixed income is
expected to return between 4% and 6%. Based on historical experience, the Company’s Retirement Plans Committee (the
“Committee”) expects that the Plan’s asset managers will provide a modest (.5% - 1% per annum) premium to their
respective market benchmark indices.

Investment policy and strategy — The investment objective of the Plan is to maximize the return on Plan assets over a long
time horizon, while meeting the Plan obligations. In establishing its investment policies and asset allocation strategies, the
Company considers expected returns and the volatility associated with different strategies. The policy, as established by the
Committee, is to provide for growth of capital with a moderate level of volatility by investing assets per the target allocations
stated above. The Committee decided to invest in traditional (i.e., publicly traded securities) and not alternative asset classes
(e.g., private equity, hedge funds, real estate, etc.) The assets are reallocated as needed by the fund manager to meet the
above target allocations, and the investment policy is reviewed on a quarterly basis, under the advisement of a certified
investment advisor, to determine if the policy should be changed.

Based on the actuarial assumptions, the Company expects to make $6.5 million in employer contributions to the Pension Plan
in 2005. Estimated pension benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, for fiscal years 2005 through 2014, are
as follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2005 . e s hY 324
2006 e e e 412
2007 e e e 570
2008 ... e e 816
2009 e 946
20102014, i 9,952

17. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) - In February 1989, the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted the Omnibus Plan, which allows for the granting of both incentive and non-statutory (“nonqualified”) stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance units, and performance shares to certain key
employees. The total number of shares of the Company's common stock authorized for awards under the Omnibus Plan, as
amended, 1s 6,431,641 of which 325,000 shares may be granted in restricted stock.

Since the inception of the Omnibus Plan, in February of each year certain key employees have been granted nonqualified
stock options. The option exercise price is set at the fair market value of the Company common stock on the date the options
are granted. All options have a term of ten years from the date of grant and vest over three years (subject to accelerated
vesting in connection with death, disability or a change-in-control, as defined in the Omnibus Plan), with 50% exercisable
after two years from the date of grant and the remaining 50% exercisable three years after the grant date.

Nonemployee Directors Stock Option Plan (the “Directors Pian”) - In 1997, the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted the Directors Plan, which provides for the granting of nonqualified options for shares of common stock to
nonmanagement Board members of the Company. A maximum of 281,250 nonqualified options for shares of common stock
are authorized for grant under the Directors Plan. The timing, amounts, recipients, and other terms of the option grants are
determined by the provisions of, or formulas in, the Directors Plan. The exercise price of the options is equal to the fair
market value of the common stock on the grant date. All options have a term of ten years from the date of grant and become
exercisable one year from the grant date subject to accelerated vesting in the event of retirement, death, disability, or a
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change-in-control, as defined in the Directors Plan. Directors elected during the service year are granted options on a pro-rata
basis to those granted to the directors at the start of the service year.

Both the Omnibus Plan and the Directors Plan have been submitted to and approved by the stockholders of the Company.
A summary of the nonqualified stock option transactions under the Omnibus Plan and Directors Plan for the periods noted
are as follows. (Number of shares in thousands.)

Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of year ............ 2,130 §  23.17 2,063 § 21.88 2,069 § 1934
Granted ..........coovveiivinniee e 634 33.91 575 26.55 596 28.86
EXEICISE vvvvvveeeereeeererereeseseeeese e (659) 21.63 (469) 21.33 (580) 19.84
Forfeited ..o (49) 29.65 3H 26.26 (16) 25.01
EXPIred ....cooovovoriiieeeecce e 4 32.43 (8) 27.95 (O] 28.72
Outstanding at end of year ..............c....... 2,052 § 2682 2,130 § 23.17 2,063 § 21.88
Exercisable at end of year ..................... 899 § 2231 1,074 § 19.87 989 § 19.55

The following is a summary of options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2004. (Number of shares in thousands.)

Options Qutstanding Exercisable Options
Average Average
Number Average Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life @ Price Exercisable Price

$10.77 - 322,40 ..ot 459 3.77 $ 18.29 459 % 18.29
$22.41-826.26..ccceicrne. 643 7.45 25.09 218 22.83
$26.27 - $32.72 o 723 7.83 30.90 193 29.47
$32.73 - 838.02 e 227 5.49 35.97 29 34.49
Totaleeeieeerece e, 2,052 6.54 $ 26.82 899 % 22.31

@ Represents the average contractual life remaining in years.

18. STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

On February 15, 1989, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan. Pursuant to that Plan, the
Company declared a dividend, paid March 1, 1989, of one right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of the Company
common stock held on record on March 1, 1989 pursuant to a Rights Agreement dated February 15, 1989. The Rights
Agreement was amended and restated on November 15, 1995 and again on June 18, 1997 to exclude an acquisition. As
amended, each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company 1/100 of a share of Series A Preferred Stock
for a price of $100, subject to adjustment. The Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group has acquired, or
announces the intention to acquire, 10% or more of the Company's outstanding shares of common stock. The Company is
entitled to redeem each for $0.01, subject to adjustment, at any time prior to the earlier of the tenth business day following
the acquisition by any person or group of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company common stock, or the
expiration of the Rights in November, 2005.

As a result of the Rights distribution, 600,000 of the 1,000,000 shares of authorized preferred stock were reserved for
issuance as Series A Preferred Stock.
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19. REGULATORY AND CAPITAL MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory requirements that impose restrictions on cash, loans or
advances, and dividends. The Bank is required to maintain reserves against deposits. Reserves are held either in the form of
vault cash or non-interest bearing balances maintained with the Federal Reserve Bank and are based on the average daily
balances and statutory reserve ratios prescribed by the type of deposit account. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, reserve
balances of $75.9 million and $69.2 million, respectively, were maintained in fulfillment of these requirements.

Under current Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited in the amount it may loan or advance to the Parent Company
and its nonbank subsidiaries. Loans or advances to a single subsidiary may not exceed 10% and loans to all subsidiaries may
not exceed 20% of the bank’s capital stock and surplus, as defined. Loans from subsidiary banks to nonbank subsidiaries,
including the Parent Company, are also required to be collateralized.

The principal source of cash flow for the Company is dividends from its banking and other subsidiaries. Various Federal and
state banking regulations and capital guidelines limit the amount of dividends that may be paid to the Company by its
subsidiary bank. Future payment of dividends by the subsidiaries is dependent on individual regulatory capital requirements
and levels of profitability. Without prior regulatory approval, the subsidiary bank can initiate aggregate dividend payments
in 2005 of $19.7 million plus an additional amount equal to their net profits for 2005, as defined by statute, up to the date of
any such dividend declaration. Since the Company is a legal entity, separate and distinct from its subsidiaries, the dividends
of the Company are not subject to such bank regulatory guidelines.

The Company and the Bank are also subject to various capital requirements set up and administered by the Federal banking
agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines, the Company and the Bank must meet specific guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components of capital and assets, risk weightings, and other factors. Quantitative measures established by regulation to
ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Total and Tier 1
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital to average assets (as defined).
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possible additional discretionary, actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company's financial statements. As of December 31,
2004, the Company and its subsidiary bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

The Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”), the primary regulator of the Company and its subsidiary bank, establishes minimum
capital requirements that must be met by member institutions. As of December 31, 2004, the most recent regulatory
notification classified the Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are
no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the subsidiary bank’s classification.

The following table presents the actual capital ratios for the Company and its subsidiary banks as of the dates presented and
the capital guidelines established by the FRB to be categorized as adequately capitalized and “‘well capitalized.” (Dollar
amounts in thousands.)

First Midwest For Capital Well Capitalized for
Actual Adequacy Purposes FDICIA
Capital Ratio Capital Ratio Capital Ratio
As of December 31, 2004:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc ............. $ 607,028 11.52% § 421,402 8.00% $ 526,753 10.00%
First Midwest Bank .........cccoovvennane. 554,449 10.58 419,391 8.00 524,239 10.00
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc ............. 550,310 10.45 210,701 4.00 316,052 6.00
First Midwest Bank ........ccoovvnnnn. 497,731 9.49 209,695 4.00 314,543 6.00
Tier 1 leverage (to average assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc ............. 550,310 8.16 202,312 3.00 337,186 5.00
First Midwest Bank .........ccccccen..... 497,731 7.41 201,496 3.00 335,826 5.00
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First Midwest For Capital Well Capitalized for

Actual Adequacy Purposes FDICIA
Capital Ratio Capital Ratio Capital Ratio
As of December 31, 2003:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc ............. $ 572815 1141% § 401,620 8.00% $ 502,025 10.00%
First Midwest Bank .........cc.cc.oooenie 494,221 10.82 365,526 8.00 456,907 10.00
CoVest Banc.....cccoovevvieneeenicinnen, 50,317 12.01 33,524 8.00 41,904 10.00
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.............. 516,411 10.29 200,810 4.00 : 301,215 6.00
First Midwest Bank ..........ccocoenee 445,037 9.74 182,763 4.00 274,144 6.00
CoVest Banc.....o.oeviveviveevieiiiinn 45,006 10.74 16,762 4.00 25,143 6.00
Tier 1 leverage (to average assets):
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc ............. 516,411 8.49 182,481 3.00 304,135 5.00
First Midwest Bank .........ccccccoveenee 445,037 7.26 183,774 3.00 306,290 5.00
CoVest Banc.......coocvivviviinienriennns 45,006 7.55 17,887 3.00 29,812 5.00

As discussed in Note 11, “Subordinated Debt — Trust Preferred Securities,” commencing on page 61 of this Form 10-K, the
capital securities held by FMCT I qualify as Tier 1 capital for the Company under FRB guidelines. In calculating the amount
of Tier 1 qualifying capital, the FRB currently allows the inclusion in Tier 1 capital securities such as the capital securities
issued by FMCT I up to an amount not to exceed 25% of core capital components, as defined by the FRB. As of December
31, 2004, the Company’s core capital components totaled $647.0 million, of which $125.0 million, or 19.3% would have
been attributable to the capital securities.

20. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES, AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Credit Extension Commitments and Guarantees

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into a variety of financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk to
meet the financing needs of its customers, to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and to conduct lending
activities. These instruments principally include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, and commercial
letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. The contractual or notional amounts of these financial
instruments at December 31 were as follows. {Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003

Commitments to extend credit:

HOME @QUILY LINES 1.evvieiiieeciisieee ettt a e ems b s eaas § 282,247 § 252,892

All Other COMMILIMENES ..o iviiitiiiertee et et ee ettt s bt es e stsmae e asbeeevareass e 1,099,025 913,517
Letters of credit:

SHANADY ottt et b e et e et et n s eteen e reens 128,799 105,709

COMUIMEICIAL ..ot et ettt e e s e et e et e e r e e r e e eer e an e e e eaeesee e e 4981 755
Recourse on assets SECUITIZEA ... cooiiiiiiiriiier i eie et et e e e et e saesesee s ee e saasesees e e s e e e sesaeessenas 26,365 -

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend funds to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses, have variable
interest rates tied to prime rate, and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash-flow requirements.

Standby and commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit generally are contingent upon the failure of the customer to perform
according to the terms of the underlying contract with the third party and are most often issued in favor of a municipality
where construction is taking place to ensure that the borrower adequately completes the construction, Commercial letters of
credit are issued specifically to facilitate commerce and typically result in the commitment being drawn on when the
underlying transaction is consummated between the customer and the third party. This type of letter of credit is issued
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through a correspondent bank on behalf of a customer who is involved in an international business activity such as the
importing of goods.

In the event of a customer’s nonperformance, the Company’s credit loss exposure is represented by the contractual amount of
those commitments. The credit risk is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers and is subject to
normal credit policies. The Company uses the same credit policies in making credit commitments as it does for on-balance
sheet instruments, with such exposure to credit loss minimized due to various collateral requirements in place.

The maximum potential future payments guaranteed by the Company under standby letters of credit arrangements is
represented by the contractual amount of the commitment. The carrying value of the Company’s standby letters of credit,
which is included in other liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Condition, totaled $770,000 as of December 31, 2004
and $449,000 as of December 31, 2003. The current liability reflects the fair value of the guarantee associated with standby
letters of credit originated since January 1, 2003, the implementation date of the recognition provisions of FIN 45. As of
December 31, 2004, standby letters of credit had a remaining weighted-average term of approximately 16.3 months, with
remaining actual lives ranging from less than 1 year to 10.9 years. If a commitment is funded, the Company may seek
recourse through the underlying collateral provided including real estate, physical plant and property, marketable securities,
or cash.

The Company is obligated under recourse provisions related to the securitization of certain loans. The contract amount of
these loans was $26.4 million as of December 31, 2004. For additional discussion regarding the securitization of the loans,
refer to Note 5, “Loans,” commencing on page 56 of this Form 10-K.

Legal Proceedings

As of December 31, 2004, there were certain legal proceedings pending against the Company and its subsidiaries in the
ordinary course of business. The Company does not believe that liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, arising from
these proceedings, if any, would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of
December 31, 2004.

21. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

A variable interest entity (“VIE”) is a partnership, limited liability company, trust or other legal entity that does not have
sufficient equity to permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties, or
whose investors lack one of three characteristics associated with owning a controlling financial interest. Those
characteristics are: (i) the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about an entity's activities through voting rights or
similar rights; (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of an entity if they occur; and (iii) the right to receive the
expected residual returns of the entity, if they occur.

FIN 46R addresses the consolidation of VIEs. Under FIN 46R, VIEs are consolidated by the party who is exposed to a
majority of the VIE's expected losses and/or residual returns (i.e., the primary beneficiary). Effective December 31, 2003, the
Company adopted the provisions of FIN 46R for all interests held in a VIE. The following summarizes the VIEs in which the
Company has a significant interest and discusses the accounting changes that resulted from the adoption of FIN 46R.

The Company owns 100% of the common stock of a business trust that was formed in November 2003 to issue trust
preferred securities to third party investors. The trust’s only assets as of December 31, 2004 were the $128.7 million
principal balance of the debentures issued by the Company and the related interest receivable of $746,000 that were acquired
by the trust using proceeds from the issuance of preferred securities and common stock. The trust meets the FIN 46R
definition of a VIE, but the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the trust. Accordingly, the trust is not consolidated in
the Company's financial statements and is accounted for using the equity method. The subordinated debentures issued by the
Company to the trust are reflected in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Condition as "Subordinated debt - trust
preferred securities.”

As part of the CoVest Acquisition, the Company acquired interests in 20 trust preferred capital security issuances. Although
these investments may meet the FIN 46R definition of a VIE, the Company is not the primary beneficiary. The Company
accounts for its interest in these investments as available for sale securities. The Company’s maximum exposure to 1oss is
limited to its investment in these VIEs, which at December 31, 2004 had a total book and market value of $1.8 million.

The Company has a significant limited partner interest in 12 low-income housing tax credit partnerships and limited liability

corporations, which were acquired at various times from 1997 to 2004. These entities meet the FIN 46R definition of a VIE.
Since the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the entities, it will continue to account for its interest in these
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partnerships on the cost method. Exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with these entities is limited to the
approximately $5.2 million book basis of the Company’s investment, $4.0 million of which the Company is obligated to pay
but has not yet funded.

22. ESTIMATED FAIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require disclosure of the estimated fair values of certain
financial instruments, both assets and liabilities, on and off-balance sheet, for which it is practical to estimate the fair value.
Because the estimated fair values provided herein exclude disclosure of the fair value of certain other financial instruments
and all non-financial instruments, any aggregation of the estimated fair value amounts presented would not represent the
underlying value of the Company. Examples of non-financial instruments having significant value include the future
earnings potential of significant customer relationships and the value of the Company’s trust division operations and other
fee-generating businesses. In addition, other significant assets including property, plant and equipment, and goodwill are not
considered financial instruments and, therefore, have not been valued.

Various methodologies and assumptions have been utilized in management's determination of the estimated fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments, which are detailed below. The fair value estimates are made at a discrete point in time
based upon relevant market information. Because no market exists for a significant portion of these financial instruments,
fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected economic conditions and loss experience and risk
characteristics of the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective, involve uncertainties, and cannot be determined
with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.

Short-Term Financial Assets and Liabilities — For financial instruments with a short or no stated maturity, prevailing market
rates, and limited credit risk, the carrying amounts approximate fair value. Those financial instruments include cash and due
from banks, funds sold and other short-term investments, mortgages held for sale, corporate owned life insurance, accrued
interest receivable, and accrued interest payable.

Securities Available for Sale and Held to Maturity - The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices or dealer
quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans - The fair value of loans was estimated using present value techniques by discounting the future cash flows of the
remaining maturities of the loans, and, if applicable, prepayment assumptions were considered based on historical experience
and current economic and lending conditions. The discount rate was based on the London Interbank Offering Rate
(“LIBOR’’) yield curve, with rate adjustments for liquidity and credit risk. The primary impact of credit risk on the present
value of the loan portfolio, however, was accommodated through the use of the reserve for loan losses, which is believed to
represent the current fair value of probable future losses for purposes of the fair value calculation.

Deposit Liabilities - The fair values disclosed for demand deposits, savings deposits, NOW accounts, and money market
deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The
fair value for fixed-rate time deposits was estimated using present value techniques by discounting the future cash flows
based on the LIBOR yield curve.

Borrowed Funds - The fair value of repurchase agreements and FHLB advances is estimated by discounting the agreements
based on maturities using the rates currently offered for repurchase agreements of similar remaining maturities. The carrying
amounts of funds purchased and other borrowed funds approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature.

Subordinated Debt-Trust Preferred Securities - The fair value of subordinated debt was determined using available market
quotes.

Derivative Assets and Liabilities - The fair value of derivative instruments are based either on cash flow projection models
acquired from third parties or observable market price.

Standby Letters of Credit — The fair value of standby letters of credit represent deferred fees arising from the related off-
balance sheet financial instruments. These deferred fees approximate the fair value of these instruments and are based on
several factors, including the remaining terms of the agreement and the credit standing of the customer.

Commirmenis - Given the limited interest rate exposure posed by the commitments outstanding at year-end due to their
general variable nature, coupled with the general short-term nature of the commitment periods entered into, termination
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clauses provided in the agreements, and the market rate of fees charged, the Company has estimated the fair value of

commitments outstanding to be immaterial.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments at December 31 are as follows. (Dollar

amounts in thousands.)

Financial Assets:

Cash and due from banks .........cccoocvveviieiiecinie i,
Funds sold and other short-term investments.................
Mortgages held for sale........coovciiiiiiinniinis
Securities available forsale..........coeoiveiveiiiiiiiee,
Securities held to Maturity .......c.coceevveniinennciercee,
Loans, net of reserve for 1oan 10SSes ..........cccoeeviveniennen.
Accrued interest receivable ........ccoovviieiniiiiec e,
Investment in corporate owned life insurance................
DerivatiVe GSSELS v.o.iviiiuieiiieecree e eviiee e erree vt eesestne e

Financial Liabilities:

DIEPOSIES ..vvvireereciiieeiictrierr e eee et e e sba e e
Borrowed funds............cooevviniinini s
Subordinated debt-trust preferred securities ..................
Accrued interest payable. ...
Derivative Habilities......c.ooooeviii e
Standby letters of credit ......ocovvieiiiiieciiiieeee e

23. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2004 2003
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
§ 119.880 $ 119,880 $ 186900 S 186,900
330 330 5,789 5,789
4251 4,251 9,620 9,620
2,179,438 2,179,438 2,229,650 2,229,650
64,576 64,618 67,446 67,514
4,078,560 4,075,674 4,003,378 4,018.977
30,169 30,169 30,506 30,506
151,359 151,359 146,421 146,421
914 914 38 38
$ 4905378 $ 4,904,777 $ 4,815,108 $ 4,825,683
1,218,332 1,215,089 1,371,672 1,373,032
129,294 140,451 128,716 130,721
7,036 7,036 6,828 6,828
- - 538 538
770 770 449 449

Supplemental disclosures to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31 are as

follows. (Dollar amounts in thousands.)

2004 2003 2002
INCOME 1AXES PAI....cviviceitiiiiiitie et ceras et eaa bbb s ea s b $ 24543  § 30,573 $ 27493
Interest paid to depositors and creditors.......cccoeeviverenieicnie e 86,270 82,988 112,638
Non-cash transfers of loans to foreclosed real estate .........cocooveeevvieeviveennennn. 4,156 2,677 8,216
Dividends declared but unpaid............cccceeeriinineniiciiiee s s 11,093 10,264 8,982
Non-cash transfer of loans to securities available-for-sale..........c..ooovveeeen. 74,191 - -

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company, through its subsidiary bank, has made loans and had transactions with certain of its directors and executive
officers. However, all such loans and transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons
and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. The Securities and
Exchange Commission has determined that, with respect to the Company and its significant subsidiaries, disclosure of
borrowings by directors and executive officers and certain-of their related interests should be made if the loans are greater
than 5% of stockholders’ equity, in the aggregate. These loans aggregating $2.3 million at December 31, 2004 and $1.1
million at December 31, 2003 were not greater than 5% of stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 or 2003, respectively.
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25. CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following represents the condensed financial statements of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc., the Parent Company. (Dollar

amounts in thousands.)

Statements of Condition
(Parent Company only)

December 31,

2004 2003
Assets
Cash and interest-bearing dePOSItS........occvvrerirriricrieriase et e $ 59867 § 31,936
Investment in and advances to SUDSIAIATIES ......ccovviiieeeiiiiceiee et 596,428 554,585
GOOAWILL ... ettt ettt ettt st ettt neene e 8,943 56,955
Other INTANGIBLE ASSEIS ..ottt et ss b s et a et 334 14,612
L0 18 115 g 1011 DU U P TR ST OT ORI RRUUORR PO 24,765 29,679
TOtAL ASSEES ....viveeetie it ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e et et en e en st n et n st sres e eres $ 690,337 $§ 687,767
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Subordinated debt - trust preferred SECUTTHIES .......coiiiieiicrerrie s e e eiae e ee e eeceanns s $ 129294 § 128,716
Accrued expenses and other Habilities.........covvveioiviiiie e 29,005 36,511
StOCKNOIAETS' EQUILY .. eeeteeeieeec ettt ettt eaeera s e b e sae e 532,038 522,540
Total liabilities and stockholders' qUILY ......coovvveeiiecriiii e $ 690,337 § 687,767
Statements of income
(Parent Company only)
Years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Income
Dividends from subsidiaries ..o $ 99,320 $ 54,160 $ 92,310
TNEETESE INCOME. ..vieeeieiiecereeiee et ettt e et e saae e sebessar e re e etseeaee e 636 477 376
Security transactions and other INCOME ..........c.ooevriirriiiieieieiee e 1,512 15 319
T OtAL ICOIMNIE ...ttt et e e e et e et e ave e aae e e s 101,468 54,652 93,005
Expenses
TNEETEST EXPEIISE ..eiiieiieerceiie ittt et re et a et esae e 9,015 1,082 -
Salaries and employee benefits......occecveii i 4,337 4215 3,155
Amortization of intangible aSSets........ccovrviiierrieniine e 324 - 149
OtheT EXPENSES .cvveiereririiceiier ettt ettt bbbt b et ene 4,591 2,812 2,659
TOtAl EXPEASES ..creviieieeiriiirite vttt bttt eice e saae et e nenesere e 18,267 8,109 5,963
Income before income tax expense and equity in undistributed income of
SUDSIAIATIES ...ttt ettt ettt et raee et b et s e e e ebseae e 83,201 46,543 87,042
INCOME tAX DENETIt. c.uviiiiiieiriie et e tee e s et ees e en e 6,249 2,948 1,831
Income before undistributed income of subsidiaries..........ccccoeveeeiiveveennnnn. 89,450 49,491 88,873
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries ..........ccoooveviiivcriiienns 9,686 43,287 1,277
INEEITICOIIIE vttt ettt e eee et e s te s e e et s s iaanenaeeas $ 99,136 $ 92,778 $ 90,150
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Statements of Cash Flows

(Parent Company only)
Years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities
INET INCOME ..ttt sttt sttt et st bbbt s are e et re et naeeeas $ 99,136 § 92,778 $ 90,150
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed income from subsidiaries ...........c.ccccorrrenene (9,686) (43,287) (1,277)
Depreciation of premises, furniture, and equipment...............ccoceeveeas 48 49 57
Net (gains) losses on sales 0f SECUTTHES.......eeeviiveiciniiei e, (CY)) - (254)
Tax benefit from employee exercises of nonqualified stock options... 1,362 920 985
Net amortization of goodwill and other intangibles ............ccocecvvenees 323 - 149
Net (increase) decrease in other 8SSEtS .......ooveeerieirierirvirieeneeieeeeeeeeen, 1,825 (17,462) 397
Net increase (decrease) in other Habilities..........ocoveiovrceininnncnieninins 2,388 15,818 (380)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........c.ccccvccrrieriererrerrnns 95,349 48,816 89,827
Investing Activities
Purchases of securities available for sale...........ccooovieniiiinieicee, (236) (9,035) (1,346)
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale........cccccoovcnnnininnn. 233 - 954
Purchase of other assets, net of sales .........cco.ooovieiicinii e, (5) (28) 833
Acquisition, net of cash acquired...........cocoeeiiiiniinnnnnnnnees - (108,658) -
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities.......cooocvecevrrvieennas (8) (117,721) 441
Financing Activities
Proceeds from the issuance of subordinated debt.............ccoveiiiiiieinnnn, - 128,715 -
Net purchases of treasury StOCK ......cooceiiriveiiienr e, (31,240) (22,404) (52,117)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury Stock .........ccocovivriniriininiiiiianeen, 7 6 9
Cash dividends paid.........occocvvrirrree e (41,000) (35,560) (32,879)
Exercise Of StOCK OPIONS ..ocviirieriiiiiiiiece e cere et evs e 4,823 3,021 5,278
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (67,410) 73,778 (79,709)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................... 27,931 4873 10,559
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year............ccccevoveenen, 31,936 27,063 16,504
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.........coocvevierivcvirininne .. $ 59,867 % 31,936 § 27,063
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9a. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this report, (the “Evaluation Date™), the Company carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer and its Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and
15d-14 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). Based upon that evaluation, the President and
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer concluded
that as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. There
were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2004 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining eftective internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board of directors
regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Accordingly, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.
In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework™ issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management has
determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 is effective based on the
specified criteria.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been
audited by Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which appears
below.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework™ issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). First Midwest Bancorp’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our
opinion, First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated statement of condition as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 of
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. and our report dated March 4, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanet ¥ MLLP

Emst & Young LLP
Chicago, [llinois
March 4, 2005
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PART II1

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The Company’s executive officers are elected annually by the Company’s Board of Directors. Certain information regarding
the Company's executive officers is set forth below.

Executive
Officer
Name (Age) Position or Employment for Past Five Years Since
John M. O’Meara (59) President and, since 2003, Chief Executive Officer of the Company; 1987
prior to 2003, Chief Operating Officer of the Company, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
Terry G. Beaudry (56) Group President Trust Division, Chief Operating Officer since 2001; 2004
prior thereto, President and Chief Executive Officer of First Midwest
Trust Company
Kent S. Belasco (53) Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer 2004
Mark M. Dietrich (57) Group Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer of the 2002
Bank
Michael J. Kozak (53) Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank since 2004
2004; prior thereto, Senior Vice President, Regional Credit Officer
Thomas J. Schwartz (55) Group President, Commercial Banking of the Bank 2002
Michael L. Scudder (44) Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Principal 2002
Accounting Officer of the Company since 2002; prior thereto, Group
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Bank
Steven H. Shapiro (46) Executive Vice President and Corporate Secretary since 2003; prior 2003
thereto, Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of FMC
Technologies, Inc.; prior thereto, Associate General Counsel and
Assistant Secretary of FMC Corporation
Janet M. Viano (49) Group President, Retail Banking of the Bank 2002
Stephanie R. Wise (37) Executive Vice President, Business and Institutional Services since 2004

The information required by this item concerning Directors is incorporated herein by reference to the caption “ELECTION

2003; prior thereto, Executive Vice President E-Commerce Division
Manager

OF DIRECTORS?” of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item concerning Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance is incorporated
herein by reference to the caption “SECTION 16 (a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE” of the

Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the caption “EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION”
of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Compensation Committee's Report on Executive Compensation and Stock Performance graph contained in the
“Executive Compensation” section of the Registrant's Proxy Statement shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any
general statement incorporating by reference the Registrant's Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of

1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent the Registrant specifically
incorporates this information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed “filed” under such Acts.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Security ownership information of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference to the

caption “SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS & MANAGEMENT” of the Registrant’s
Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the caption “CERTAIN RELATIONS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS” of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the caption “PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES
AND SERVICES” of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND
REPORTS ON FORM 8§-K

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are filed as a part of this document
under “Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.”

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consolidated Statements of Condition as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The schedules for the Registrant and its subsidiaries are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they
are required, or because the information is set forth in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.
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(a)(3) Exhibits
See Exhibit Index commencing on page 82.
(b)  Reports on Form 8-K
The following Current Reports on Form 8-K were filed or furnished during the fourth quarter of 2004:

On October 20, 2004, the Company announced its earning results for the quarter and nine months ended September 30,
2004,

On November 11, 2004, the Company made available the slide presentation presented at the Sandler O’Neil & Partners,
L.P. 2004 Financial Services conference.

On November 19, 2004, the Company announced the appointment of John E. Rooney to its Board of Directors and the
retirement of director O. Ralph Edwards.
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Exhibit

Number
3.1
3.2

4.1

42

43

44

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4
10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Documents

Restated Certificate of Incorporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q dated March 31, 2002.

Restated Bylaws of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2003,

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, Form of Rights Certificate and Designation of Series A Preferred
Stock of the Company, dated November 15, 1993, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits (1) through (3)
of the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 21, 1995.

First Amendment to Rights Agreements, dated June 18, 1997, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 of
the Company's Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 30, 1997.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 18, 2003 by and between First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. and
First Midwest Capital Trust [ is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003.

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of First Midwest Capital Trust I dated November 18, 2003 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December
31,2003,

Indenture dated as of November 18, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003.

Series A Capital Securities Agreement dated November 18, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003.

Outsourcing Agreement by and between First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. and Metavante Corporation dated April 28,
2004 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30,
2004.

Revolving Credit Agreement by and between First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. and M&I Marshall & Ilisley Bank
dated April 26, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated June 30, 2004.

Restated Savings and Profit Sharing Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2002.

First through Seventh Amendments to the Restated Savings and Profit Sharing Plan.

Short-term Incentive Compensation Plan.

Restated Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2002.

Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors' 1997 Stock Option Plan is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2000.

Amendment to the Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors' 1997 Stock Option Plan is herein
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2003.

Restated Nonqualified Stock Option-Gain Deferral Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2002.

82




10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

11

12
14.1

14.2

21
23
31.1

Restated Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2002.

Restated Nonqualified Retirement Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2002.

Form of Letter Agreement for Nonqualified Stock Option Grant executed between the Company and the
executive officers of the Company pursuant to the Company's Omnibus Stock and Incentive Plan.

Form of Letter Agreement for Nonqualified Stock Option Grant executed between the Company and the
directors of the Company pursuant to the Company's Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan.

Form of Letter Agreement for Nonqualified Stock Option Grant executed between the Company and former
executive of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q dated March 31, 2003.

Form of Indemnification Agreements executed between the Company and executive officers and directors of the
Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated December 31, 1991.

Form of Employment Agreements executed between the Company and certain executive officers of the
Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated December 31, 1997.

Retirement and Consuiting Agreement and Continuing Participant Agreement to the Omnibus Stock and
Incentive Plan executed between the Company and former executive of the Company is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2002.

Retirement and Consulting Agreement and Continuing Participant Agreement to the Omnibus Stock and
Incentive Plan executed between the Company and former executive of the Company 1s incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2002.

Form of Split-Dollar Life Insurance Agreements executed between the Company and certain executive officers
of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K dated December 31, 1991.

Form of Amendment to Split-Dollar Life Insurance Agreements executed between the Company and certain
executive officers of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 1992.

Summary of Executive Compensation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's
Periodic Report on Form 8-K dated February 28, 2005.

Statement re: Computation of Per Share Earnings - The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
included in Note 13 of the Company's Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements included in “ITEM 8.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA?” of this document.

Statement re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Code of Ethics and Standards of Conduct is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003.

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.2 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2003.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consents of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004,
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31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004,

321 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004,

Exhibits 10.5 through 10.20 are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
item 14(a)3.

All other Exhibits that are required to be filed with this form are not applicable.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIRST MIDWEST BANCORP, INC.
Registrant

) WD e

John M. O'Meara
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in their capacities on March 4, 2005.

Signatures
/S/ ROBERT P. OMEARA Chairman of the Board
Robert P. O'Meara
/S/ JOHN M. OMEARA President and Chief Executive Officer, and Director
John M. O'Meara
/S/ MICEAEL L. SCUDDER Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and
Michael L. Scudder Principal Accounting Officer
/S/ VERNON A. BRUNNER Director
Vernon A. Brunner
/S/ BRUCE S. CHELBERG Director
Bruce S. Chelberg
/S/ JOSEPH W. ENGLAND Director
Joseph W. England
/S/ BROTHER JAMES GAFFNEY, FSC Director
Brother James Gaffney, FSC
/S/ THOMAS M. GARVIN Director
Thomas M. Garvin
/S/ PATRICK J. MCDONNELL Director
Patrick J. McDonnell
/S/ JOHN E. ROONEY Director
John E. Rooney
/S/JOHN L. STERLING Director
John L. Sterling
/S/ J. STEPHEN VANDERWOQUDE Director

J. Stephen Vanderwoude



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, John M. O’Meara, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First Midwest Bancorp Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a.

Date: March 4, 2005

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

LRl

President and Chief Executive
Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Michael L. Scudder, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First Midwest Bancorp Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

7{4&&/ it

Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer, and
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: March 4, 2005

87



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of First
Midwest Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 (the “Report™) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company.

Name: John M. O’Meara
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 4, 2005
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to

the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of First
Midwest Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 (the “Report™) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company.

Name: Michael L. Scudder

Title: Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer

Dated: March 4, 2005
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to

the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request. '
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Stockholder Information

Common Stock

FMBT M9

Annual Meeting

Bividend Payments

Direct Deposit

Dividend Reinvestment/
Stock Purchase

Transfer Agent/
Stockholder Services

Investor and
Stockholder Contact

SEC Reports and
General Information

First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. common stock is traded in the Nasdaq National Market tier of the
NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol FMBI. The stock abbreviation appears as
"FstMdWBep" in the Wall Street Journal and in other leading daily newspapers as "FMidBe".

The 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of First Midwest Bancorp, Inc. will be held on
Wednesday, May 18, 2005 commencing at 9:30 a.m. at the Wyndham Hotel Northwest Chicago,
400 Park Boulevard, Itasca, IL. The Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement will be sent to all
Stockholders on or about April 11, 2005.

Anticipated dividend payable dates are April 19, 2003; July 19, 2005; October 18, 2005; and
January 17, 2006.

Stockholders may have their dividends deposited directly to their savings, checking or money
market account at any financial institution. Information concerning Dividend Direct Deposit may

be obtained from the Company or its transfer agent.

Stockholders may fully or partially reinvest dividends and invest up to 5,000 quarterly in First
Midwest common stock without incurring any brokerage fees. Information concerning Dividend

Reinvestment may be obtained from the Company or its transfer agent.

Stockholders with inquiries regarding stock accounts, dividends, change of ownership or address,

lost certificates or consolidation of accounts should contact the transfer agent:

Mellon Investor Services
85 Challenger Road, Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660

(888) 581-9376 www.melloninvestor.com

Steven H. Shapiro

Executive Vice President and Corporate Secretary
First Midwest Bancorp, Inc.

One Pierce Place, Suite 1500

Itasca, Illinois 60143

(630) 875-7345 investor.relations@firstmidwest.com

First Midwest files an annual report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K
and three quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. Requests for such reports and general inquiries may be
directed to Mr. Shapiro at the above address or can be obtained through the Investor Relations

section of the Company's website, www.firstmidwest.com.
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